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Natural Beauty is dedicated to cultivate our
staff, customers, students and franchisees
to appreciate our education, products and
services, which are made by the love and
kindness of our founder, Dr. Tsai Yen Pin,
who made modern ladies beautiful,
confident and wealthy.
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Expressed in HK$'000
ATFETTIR

+31.7%

2008 592,701
2007 450,147

2006 363,746

2005 357,916

Expressed in HK$'000
IAFE IR

+334%

2008 238,579
2007 178,781

2006 122,812

2005 81,011

Expressed in %

LA%5I)7R

7 Zo/ points

AN

/. O B
2008 27.1%
2007 19.9%
2006 14.5%
2005 10.1%
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Expressed in HK$'000
ATFETTHIR

+48.1%

2008 308,477
2007 208,315

2006 174,630

2005 119,905

Expressed in HK$'000

ATHTTHIR
| | (]
2008 167,053
2007 300,000
2006 125,000
2005 66,000

Expressed in %

A%%I) R
5 60 / points
VAN

FD. O 5o
2008 23.2%
2007 17.6%
2006 12.7%
2005 8.9%



Financial Highlights
MBERE

Selected Financial Data SEIEEE FY2005 FY2006 FY2007 FY2008
HK$'000 (except per share data) FAxT (BREERN) ZZTTRE ZTTREF ZTTLF | ZBEBN\F

MHRFE FRFE HREFE HHREE
Turnover ] 357,916 363,746 450,147 592,701
Cost of sales SHE A 73,309 68,725 77,573 86,102
Gross profit EH 284,607 295,021 372,574 506,599
Operating profit Swinyll 119,905 174,630 208,315 308,477
Net income T 81,011 122,812 178,781 238,579
Dividends A F 66,000 125,000 300,000 167,053
EPS — basic FREN—FEX $0.0410 $0.0620 $0.0890 $0.1190
DPS BT $0.0330 $0.0625 $0.1500 $0.0835
Return on Equity (ROE) f& A [E] ¥ 10.1% 14.5% 19.9% 27.1%
Return on Assets (ROA) B EER 8.9% 12.7% 17.6% 23.2%

TURNOVER BY

ACTIVITIES BREAKDOWN (%)

BREBDIN < EFEF(%)

0.1%

Entrustment income

; ﬁ«« MLISZm

2.8%

Service revenue
AR5

97.1%

Product sales
EmiHE

1.6%

TURNOVER BY
GEOGRAPHICAL BREAKDOWN (%)

Others (HK, Macau

and Malaysia)
Hih (FE

P R
B okFTR)

RIIK DT 2 K FE(%)

73.6%

PRC
BB
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TREEE

Dear Shareholders,

The Fiscal Year of 2008 is an eventful year for us in China and in Taiwan.
In spring, we experienced a severe snow storm, followed by a massive
earthquake in Sichuan in May. Then there was the Olympics in August,
but also the financial tsunami in the fourth quarter which seems not yet
subsided as we speak.

We are fortunate to have a substantial part of our business in China,

one of the world’s most dynamic economies. Despite all the bad news
about the recession, unemployment and collapses and nationalization of
financial institutions around the world, our unique business model has
afforded us a leading position that sets us apart from other industries and
players in the market.

Our turnover in 2008 further grew 31.7% to HK$592.7 million, compared

with HK$450.1 million in 2007. We continue to expand our operating
margin and net margin to 52.0% and 40.3% respectively. Our net profit
for equity holders of the Company also increased by 33.4% to HK$238.5
million in 2008.

Basic earnings per share also rose 33.4% from HK$0.0890 in 2007 to
HK$0.1190 in 2008.

The board of directors of the Company recommended the payment of
final dividend of HK$0.0335 per share. Together with the 2008 interim
dividend declared and paid of HK$0.05 per share, total dividend per share
for the year reached HK$0.0835, representing a dividend pay-out ratio of
70%.

BAIRR

“EE) N\MRFEETEAMMAEKRE - #E
TERAH—F - PEEEFEFTEERESNE 3
THA - WIXEERME - \A - BARC7E
BEAEtRRT BEREFUFTHENSIE
WTBRE  E5HARTE -

EREZmH—F  BEREARENOEBILR
hEC MPEDEEREASNNKERRZ
— o BULHATERFREBRLBERE - K% -
TREECRNMBELCERER  BRESEEY
MEBER - BRFIEEREN AL - RIE
TERETSHEFHTFHREML

RZZTNF - EEEFEER EF19450,100,000
BIT EFE31.7%2%592,700,0008 T @ A& &R E=R
N F R D BB EANZE52.0% K% 403% ° KA
) A% B8 FE {5 4T F| I8 _E F+33.4% Z= 238,500,000 78

JC °

R-ZZTENGF » BREAEF A EF 89081
#N33.4% % 11.907 11 °

RRABESEERRERAKRETR0.0335%8
Lo ERBDEEIRAZTHFREREZR0.058
TC o AFERELTEESTRR0.08358 T - IRERE
B70% °
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Chairman’s Statement
FEREE

PROPOSED PRIVATIZATION

It was proposed that the Company be privatized by CVC Asia Pacific Ltd
through a special purpose vehicle in November 2008 by way of a scheme
of arrangement. The Board was of the opinion that the proposal offered
shareholders an opportunity to monetize their investments amid tumbling
economies fraught with uncertainties.

The proposed privatization was voted down by about 27% of the
disinterested shareholders in Court Meeting held on 26 February 2009.
As we emphasized on different occasions, the management'’s confidence
in the research and development, manufacture, education and marketing
remained unchanged in spite of the capacity that carried the operations.
From another perspective, we are glad that shareholders have great
confidence in the Company. We will pursue more growth opportunities
and weather future challenges.

OUTLOOK

China will remain one of the most promising and bright spots for growth
amid the threat of global recession and stagnation in the foreseeable
future. The global trade has made the countries entangled with each
others. The slump in the US domestic market has weakened the exports
of China and indirectly undermined the consumer confidence in respect
to domestic consumption in China. We will, however, continue to boost
our revenue through continuous training of our franchisees, consumer

education and launch of new products.

ISRl =t

RZZTZENF+—A ' CVC Asia Pacific Ltd& i
HERARZEZHRR  REBEARRALE
{bHEE - EFERA - EEBEERERER
) R THAEERNEBERAT EEBEERRE
WIRERH S -

RZBZAFE A +RNARTEEREES
#27% 8 RS ERRERRGRILBLRZ
o BB PBERTRISAPSRHE - EREA
D—R a7 BEEHME 2.
HERITHOELMAKRN— - B —EAEE -
B AAIR PR R A B AT R A NSO R E
S FPRAEFREZLERE  mRAKE
Ez

Al =

EARMAR  RESIHRREETRETER
WEE  TENRARRAEEENOHMEY —
NEAE  2HEHOHRR B RNE
BYETIHENEER ERERTETE - 815
THEMLE DY  METEEEEEL  BETH
BAMER o AT - RIGEBAMBAERER
EIEY BB REERELFER  BEEDSE
EUR A -
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Chairman’s Statement
FEREE

Our other key market, Taiwan, is export-oriented with a focus on the
electronics industry. The threat of the global recession had hit the Taiwan
export hard, with the latest Taiwan GDP forecast for 2009 being put

at negative 2.9%. At Natural Beauty, we strive to maintain our leading
position and to outperform the Taiwan economy in general.

We will continue to promote our brand to the consumers through
various advertising formats and to improve the sense of belonging

of our franchisees within our network, which would make ourselves
perform better than others, especially at a time when consumer spending
confidence is fragile.

I would like to thank the members of the Board, our shareholders and
business partners for their continuous support and guidance throughout
the year. I would also like to thank the Group’s management team

and employees for their relentless efforts to strive of excellence and
improvement, enabling Natural Beauty continues to grow even under
adverse market conditions.

Dr. Tsai Yen Yu
Chairman

Hong Kong
15 April 2009
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B IR e A Mo

2008 2007 Changes
—E2EN\F ZETF )
Turnover by HK$'000 % | HK$'000 %  HK$'000 %
geographical region IR E|D 2 B R FET FAT FAET
PRC ey N 436,516 73.6% 316,808 70.4% 119,708 37.8%
Taiwan = 146,782 24.8% 126,837 28.2% 19,945 15.7%
Others H b= 9,403 1.6% 6,502 1.4% 2,901 44.6%
Total 4t 592,701 100.0% | 450,147 100.0% 142,554 31.7%
PRC | 2008 436,516
FEIARBE | 2007 316,808
Taiwan | 2008 146,782
& | 2007 126,837
Others | 2008| | 9,403
Hip# & | 2007] | 6,502

Turnover surged 31.7% to HK$592.7 million in 2008 as compared with
HK$450.1 million in the previous year. The PRC market continued to deliver
robust sales growth at 37.8%. Meanwhile, the Taiwan market recorded a
15.7% year-on-year growth in turnover. The growth was attributable to

the significant recovery of the core spa product business. For other markets,
including Hong Kong, Macau and Malaysia, sales increased by 44.6%, but the
amount remained insignificant and accounted for only 1.6% of total turnover.

Turnover in the PRC climbed 37.8% or HK$119.7 million to HK$436.5
million in 2008. The increase in turnover generated from the PRC market was
mainly due to an encouraging increase of HK$121.1 million in product sales,
representing a year-on-year growth of 39.4%. The increase in product sales
resulted from enhanced training on selling skills and product knowledge for
our franchisees. The average store sales of the PRC market recorded a further
growth of 30.2% in 2008. At the same time, service income increased by
13.6% to HK$7.8 million in 2008.

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited Annual Report 2008

L EEE R & F 2 450,100,000 TR FA31.7% =
— T T )\ 2592,700,000/8 7T  FEKEM S
ZIHHEBEERYIER - FIRE37.8%  HEILRA
By BEMGHREEEERTIRIEIST%  BE
FTERAARUDKEERMEBBEEER - B
EF  BPARBRAD ZHEMTIEZ S 8T
F44.6% @ WS BALOIDBER - E(HREEE
1.6% °

AR K B 2 2 TR FH37.8% 8¢ 119,700,000/
TLE T T )\ 2436,500,000/8 7T ° R EF
AEMG 2 EEBEN TEAREMBEEEL
F+121,100,0007%8 7T + B Z FILI8E39.4% + AL
BS ANSEE - EMIIEEEIGINE TR N i
BIEEERORERMNENIFE) - RZZEZTN
F o PRAREMSZEETHEERETE— P
£302% ° AR - ZFTEN\F 2 RBBATE K
13.6%%7,800,000/5 7T °



Management Discussion and Analysis

BT S DT

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

In Taiwan, turnover went up by 15.7% or HK$19.9 million to HK$146.8
million in 2008 as compared with HK$126.8 million in 2007. There were
product sales of HK$11.3 million directly attributable to the retail brand
products of Fonperi. Average store sales (excluding the retail products which
use different sales channel) in respect to Taiwan's existing spa channel
registered a 30.4% year-on-year growth.

Other regions include Hong Kong, Macau and Malaysia. Sale in other regions
increased by 44.6% to HK$9.4 million, thanks to higher sales in Malaysia
and the opening of the new concept store in Venetian-Hotel-Resort in Macau
during the year. These regions remained insignificant and accounted for less
than 2% of total turnover.

2y AEEE)

BETH EEER_ZZN\FEMI57%K
19,900,000/ 7L & 146,800,000/8 7T @ M —ZEZ+
F 8115 126,800,000/ 7T © FonperiZ & fmhEE
BEEA11,300,0008 T2 EmHE - MikkiE6

TRNERBHEEZTEER » BBRAKEF
L BT ERBIRFIER304% °

Hib @ BIEEA - BPIRSERAS - At
2 SHEE B IN144.6% 29,400,000/ 7T + TV
RS RPade 2 SHE RGN - ARFSRPIREHTA
B E B HEREESIE o 2 &G LB
TEKX - (HBREEBETE2% °

BAXEMNEARDIE —TTN\FFR
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BRI RS

The Group’s overall gross profit margin increased from 82.8% in 2007 to

85.5% in 2008.

Turnover by activities

Products
PRC
Taiwan
Others

Total

Services
PRC
Taiwan
Others

Total

Entrustment
PRC

Taiwan
Others

Total

BRI S 28R
Eawe
b Bl AT
o
R
it
b3

b B AR
4

B I
it
ST
h B AP
o
Hith
it
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2008

S

HK$'000
FET

428,237
138,770
8,484

575,491

7,762
8,012
919

16,693

517

517

AEBZEBEBEREMNERA T LF828% L

Z2-_FF

2007
TETLF
HK$'000
FHET

307,161
118,130
5,125

430,416
6,830

8,707
1,377

16,914

2,817

J\#85.5%

HK$"000
TAT

121,076
20,640
3,359

145,075

932
(695)
(458)

(221)

Changes

B4
=

%

39.4%
17.5%
65.5%

33.7%
13.6%
-8.0%
-33.3%
-1.3%
-81.6%

n/a”~iE A
n/a-~iE A

-81.6%




Management Discussion and Analysis

B R RS

Turnover by activities REKEI D 2EX£RE
Products Em
Services AR
Entrustment LrteE
Total FEE
Products | 2008
Efm | 2007
Services | 2008 16,693
BB | 2007 16,914

Entrustment | 2008| 517
& | 2007]] 2,817

Products

2008 2007 Changes

—EENF —EELF %
HK$'000 % | HK$'000 %  HK$'000 %

FTHET TAET TAET
575,491 97.1% 430,416 95.6% 145,075 33.7%
16,693 2.8% 16,914 3.8% (221) -1.3%
517 0.1% 2,817 0.6% (2,300) -81.6%
592,701 100.0% @ 450,147 100.0% 142,554 31.7%

575,491
430,416

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of several types
of products, namely skin care products, beauty products, aromatherapeutic
products, color make up and heath supplements, under the “Natural Beauty”
and “Fonperi” brand names. Product sales are the Group's key revenue

contributor and are primarily made through franchise spas, self-owned spas

and retail outlets. In 2008, products sales amounted to HK$575.5 million, or
97.1% of total revenue, compared with HK$430.4 million, or 95.6% in 2007.
Gross margin of product sales for the year further improved by 2.3 percentage

points, from 87.2% in 2007 compared with 89.5% in 2008.

Em
AEBFEBUAERZE | X[ Fonperi | R IE &
HEEEED  XAEM BEER  FHK
EREEMESHEEMN EnHEERLTEEXE
AR - F2REMBIERBELE ZKEF
DREEEH RZ2ZETN\F  ERHEEEA
575,500,000/ 8 LG 4R E5£5097.1% » — T+
I 3430,400,0008 7T kG 48 & 2 8895.6% © =
miEE 2 BRENA ST F87.2%18112.31E
BRME_ZTZTN\F 289.5% °

BAXENNEERLT —TT)\FER
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BRI RS

Products (Continued)

The surge in products sales was mainly attributable to the HK$121.1 million
and HK$20.6 million increase in sales generated from the PRC market

and Taiwan market respectively. Starting from 2008, the Group further
enhanced product offering by introducing products for “family and friends

of our existing customers”. The Group has also launched 109 new products,
including 29 for health supplements. Besides, the Group provided free
intensive training sessions to the franchisees in order to improve both the
service quality and selling skills, which in turn stimulated product sales. The
Taiwan market also recovered from the declining trend of the past two years
and recorded HK$138.8 million in sales of products in 2008, an encouraging
growth of 17.5% from HK$118.1 million in 2007. If the retail sales of Fonperi
were excluded, our spa products registered a 24.1% growth in the year under
review.

Our retail brand “Fonperi” launched in April 2007 recorded HK$11.3 million

in sales during 2008, when compared with HK$15.4 million in 2007.

Other markets such as Hong Kong, Macau and Malaysia only accounted for
1.5% of total product sales for the year.

Eml
ERHEEELA  TERFARNPERERS
BTS2 HE S B N 121,100,000 7T &
20,600,000/87C - B — T )\F# » ANEEHE—
FIEFRHERESE  MIRBRFPZHRIE

= /‘

NEm - REBTHEL109FHMER - BT B
205K R AR o WS - AEBEAINBEE R ERM

RS IIRRR BN EREEEREERT
WmASRERES - RZZEZTNFE - 8EMIEN
WA MEBBER - $£15138,800,000% 7T 2
HERE > BT T 2118,100,000/8 T &
17.5% * BEES NS5 o fiwFonperiz ZEEE &t
R AEEZKEERNBEFEHE524.1%
2K -

REBRZZTZTLFYAHEE D[ Fonperi ] ZE m
R ZTF N\ FHSHERE11,300,000747T © 1
—ZEEFH|A15,400,000/8 7T °

BREEE  BEMAESRAD 2 EMmBEGFR
EmiBHEERE1.5% °

2008 2007 Changes

—EBENF ZET+F o
HK$'000 % | HK$'000 % HK$'000 %

Service income R FHT FET FET
Training income BEIWES 1,672 10.0% 1,332 7.9% 340 25.5%
SPA service income KBRS W e 12,942 77.5% 13,356 79.0% (414) -3.1%
Management fee income BB 327 2.0% 1,314 7.8% (987) -75.1%
Others EHih 1,752 10.5% 912 5.3% 840 92.1%
Total =t 16,693 100.0% 16,914 100.0% (221) -1.3%

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited Annual Report 2008



Management Discussion and Analysis

BRI RS

Services

Service income includes income from self-owned spa with services provided,
training income and management fee received from franchisees, and other
service-related income.

The Group provides skin treatment, beauty and spa services through our self-
owned spas. Service income is generated only from our self-owned spas as
the Group does not share any service income generated in franchised spas
with franchisees under the current franchise arrangement. Service income
generated from franchised spas is vital for them to cover their operating
expenses such as rental, salary and utilities. During 2008, income from services
decreased slightly by 1.3% to HK$16.7 million when compared with 2007.

It is necessary to establish self-owned stores as model spas in new markets,
and the Group considers this a more profitable and cost-efficient way as a
whole to allocate resources to stimulate overall product sales.

On the other hand, SPA service income from self-owned stores decreased
slightly by 3.1% to HK$12.9 million, mainly due to the closure a self-owned
spa in Taiwan.

Entrustment

Entrusted spas are owned by the Group and operated by reputable operators.
The spas were previously operated by the Group. In order to allocate
financial and human resources more efficiently, the Group has entrustment
arrangements in the PRC ranging from one to five years, where our self-
owned spas were entrusted to reputable operators in local areas. The
operators are responsible for all the profits and losses of the operations

and sell the Group's products in their stores, while the Group receives a
fixed annual entrustment fee until those operators repay the Group's initial
investment in five years. The entrusted spas then become regular franchised
spas.

In 2008, entrustment income recorded a further decrease of 81.6% to
HK$0.5 million when compared with HK$2.8 million in 2007. The drop in
entrustment income was because certain entrustment arrangements expired
by the end of 2007. There was only one entrusted spa as at 31 December
2008.

AR %%

IRF Y B 15 B B L L KER OIS RE WS
KA NS B35 5 e e B IR B LA N Bt AR TS 4R
Bl -

REBZEBHEAECERKERLIRHYEZESE
EA KspalRis o HARIRRRIBITINRLER S - A
EETRED 5 11 B2 F L& KB O TS RS
sk - Eit - BRI SER A BB L ERKEFR
o PIERKERLERBKEEINEEERE
T HEBUAEES  FERKEBZELEH
Yo RZFENF - REZERBZEER-F
T FEBCRA1.3% % 16,700,000 7T ©

REBVARFMIHRL B ERLREROIES
KERLES - WRAKERBRRAEEE®
HE BRMSHETRELERERN  AFAK
RRE ©

B—HME - RE B EEE R Z SPARRTER AT E
3.1%%12,900,00087C * EBHNEE—HBEE
R 7 KB ZERTE -

Rt
RACEHKER DB AEBEE W HEEEE
BELERE KEPLAFRAERLE - B
BB BHBERANER  AEBRTHEAK
BEE M ERCEECERER A B EENKESR
D RABEAEECEFHEN T —EAF2E
HTHE e CEEBEAREBRNENEEARER
Em MAEEARGEEETFRICEZ L
EER HEERSKEERATFNBEAEEY
HREBAL - EERTELEZKERLERE
— R INEAKEE R ) o

LB REH T ZT 42,800,000 TiE—
HA81.6% %2 —FF )\F500,000/87T « ZFEALE
WD T ERE TERLEEL R T LF
EEMAE - RZTENF+A=+—0 &
BE R E 2 IKER L ©
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BRI RS

Other income

Other income mainly comprised interest on bank deposits, foreign exchange
gain, financial refunds, gain on disposal of property, plant and equipments
and gain on held-for-trading investments, which was HK$6.6 million, HK$25.4
million, HK$2.2 million, HK$14.7 million and HK$2.6 million respectively

and others for the remaining balance. Other income increased by 79.4%, or
HK$25.8 million from HK$32.5 million in 2007 to HK$58.2 million in 2008.
During the year, there was the foreign exchange gain from the dividend
received from a PRC subsidiary amounting to HK$16.8 million and the gain on
disposal of the building in Taiwan amounting to HK$17.7 million. However,
the increase was partly offset by a drop amounting to HK$7.5 million in
financial refunds in the PRC and decrease in rental income by HK$3.5 million as
we have sold one of our investment properties in Taiwan during 2007.

Distribution and administrative expenses

The Group's distribution and selling expenses as a percentage to turnover
decreased from 26.2% in 2007 to 21.5% in 2008. Total expenses in dollar
terms increased by HK$9.7 million, from HK$117.9 million in 2007 to
HK$127.6 million in 2008. During the year under review, the Group has
reduced the focus on media exposure and introduced products offering
through “family and friends of our existing customers”. Instead of media
advertising, free samples and gifts were given to our existing customers to
promote them to their friends and family members. In percentage terms,
advertising and promotion expenses represent 9.5% of total turnover in 2008,
when compared with 13.2% in the previous year. Other key expenses mainly
included salary, commission, travel expenses and rental expenses, amounted
to HK$22.2 million, HK$5.2 million, HK$4.6 million and HK$14.1 million
respectively.

Administrative expenses as a percentage to turnover increased from 16.6%

in 2007 to 19.0% during 2008. The cost mainly covered salary, legal and
professional fee, depreciation and rental charges. Total administrative
expenses in dollar terms increased from HK$74.5 million in 2007 to HK$112.7
million in 2008. The increase was mainly due to the professional cost incurred
in privatization and group restructuring projects, amounting to HK$9.3 million
and HK$0.9 million. Also, HK$15.2 million of long outstanding receivables
have been written off during 2008.

Other expenses

In 2008, other expenses increased by HK$11.8 million to HK$16.0 million,
compared with HK$4.2 million last year. Other expenses mainly included
donations totaling HK$3.9 million, impairment loss on available-for-sale
investments amounted to HK$3.2 million and bank charges of HK$2.9 million.
The Group made donations immediately after the Sichuan earthquake in May
2008, which measured 8.0 on the Richter scale.
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Profit before taxation

The increase in gross profit and other income, netting the increase in
distribution and selling expenses, administrative expenses and other expenses
contributed to the surge of 48.3% in profit before tax, from HK$208.0 million
in 2007 to HK$308.5 million in 2008.

Taxation

Taxation expenses increased 139.0% from HK$29.2 million in 2007 to
HK$69.9 million in 2008. The effective tax rate of the Group for the year
2007 and 2008 was 14.1% and 22.7% respectively. The increase in taxation
expenses and effective tax rate was mainly due to the withholding tax
amounted to HK$32.3 million has been paid or accrued for the dividend
declared in Taiwan and PRC subsidiaries during 2008.

Net profit for the year
As a result, the net income for the year rose 33.4% from HK$178.8 million in
2007 to HK$238.6 million in 2008.

Liquidity and financial resources

Cash generated from operating activities in 2008 was approximately
HK$269.3 million (2007: HK$274.2 million). The increase was primarily due to
the changes in working capital. As at 31 December 2008, the Group had bank
balances and cash of approximately HK$546.2 million (as at 31 December
2007: HK$588.7 million) with no external bank borrowing.

In terms of gearing, as at 31 December 2007 and 31 December 2008, the
Group's gearing ratio was zero (defined as net debt divided by shareholders’
equity) as the Group was in net cash balance as at both year end dates.
Current ratio of the Group (defined as current assets divided by current
liabilities) as at 31 December 2007 and 31 December 2008 were 7.2 times
and 4.7 times respectively. The relatively low current ratio at 31 December
2008 was due to accrual of withholding tax amounted to HK$25.6 million
for the dividend to be received from PRC subsidiaries, which will be payable
in 2009. As at 31 December 2008, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities, other than those disclosed in its financial statements and notes
thereto. With the cash and bank balances in hand, the Group’s liquidity
position remains strong and the Group has sufficient financial resources to
finance its commitments and working capital requirements.
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Charges on assets

As at 31 December 2008, the Group has a pledge of bank deposit of
HK$428,000 (2007: Nil) for ensuring one of its wholly-owned subsidiary
complies with the terms set in a Tenancy Agreement entered into with the
landlord in order to obtain a right of using a self-owned store

in Macau.

Treasury policies and exposure to fluctuations in exchange
rates

The Group derives most of the revenue denominated in Renminbi and

New Taiwan Dollar from the PRC and Taiwan as our operations are mainly

in these two geographical areas. As at 31 December 2008, approximately
56.7% (as at 31 December 2007: 44.9%) of the Group’s bank balances and
cash was denominated in Renminbi, while approximately 10.1% (as at 31
December 2007: 33.6%) was denominated in New Taiwan Dollar and the
remaining 33.2% (as at 31 December 2007: 21.5%) was denominated in US
Dollars, Hong Kong Dollars, Macau Pataca and Malaysia Ringgits. The Group
continued to adopt a conservative approach in respect of foreign exchange
exposure management. Review of the Group’s exposure to foreign exchange
risk will be conducted periodically and derivative financial instruments may be
used to hedge against such risk when necessary.
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2008 2007 Changes
—ZENF ZETEF #aE)
Turnover by Biig 85 2 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 %
geographic region = 2 FET FAET T
PRC B K BE
Products = 428,237 307,161 121,076 39.4%
Services AR 75 7,762 6,830 932 13.6%
Entrustment P 517 2,817 (2,300) -81.6%
PRC Total AR B K4 ET 436,516 316,808 119,708 37.8%
Taiwan 5]
Products = 138,770 118,130 20,640 17.5%
Services AR 75 8,012 8,707 (695) -8.0%
Entrustment LRtaR - - - n/a“f~iE B
Taiwan Total 146,782 126,837 19,945 15.7%
Others Hitiw &
Products = 8,484 5,125 3,359 65.5%
Services AR 919 1,377 (458) -33.3%
Entrustment BT - - - n/a“iE
Others Total HipdbR 4aat 9,403 6,502 2,901 44.6%
PRC | 2008 255,201
B RFE | 2007 174,024
Taiwan | 2008 74,907
B& | 2007 44,732
Others | 2008 (10,542)
Hiti#h & | 007 (5,198)
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PRC Market

The Group continues to maintain our leading position in the PRC market
despite intense market competition. In 2008, the encouraging growth in
product sales resulted from strengthening of service quality and selling skills
in relation to franchised stores. The improvement was attributable to video
conferencing facilities in 13 locations across the PRC and headquarter training.
Product sales in the PRC rose 39.4% to reach HK$428.2 million.

The Group had raised the selling price of most of the products in the first

half of 2008 amid the inflation pressure in China. Hence, the Group's overall
gross profit in the PRC market increased by HK$117.7 million and the product
gross margin surged by 3 percentage points from 87.7% in 2007 to 90.7% in
2008.

Operating profit increased by 46.6% to HK$255.2 million from HK$174.0
million in 2007. Overall net margin also grew by 4.3 percentage points, from
49.9% in 2007 to 54.2% in 2008.

Taiwan Market
During 2008, product sales in Taiwan market also improved by 17.5% to
HK$138.8 million as compared with HK$118.1 million in 2007.

Operating profit in Taiwan market increased by 67.5% to HK$74.9 million
from HK$44.7 million in 2007. There was encouraging improvement in both
operating margin and net margin. Overall operating margin increased by 15.7
percentage points to 51.0% in 2008, from 35.3% in 2007, and overall net
margin also increased from 33.0% in 2007 to 41.7% in 2008, representing a
surge of 8.7 percentage points.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued) %ﬁ%@?ﬁé’ )
Distribution channels SEEEE
Franchisee- Self- Self-
owned Entrusted  owned Total Entrusted  owned Total Group Retail Grand
Spa Spa Spa Spa  Counter  Counter  Counter Total  Channel Total
RERREN mEH
Store Number by Ownership ~ EHEE #E ZtEE pBESE  AERD  ERGE  pELE | £8 gE ]
As at 31 December 2008 R=BEN\EtZA=+-H KERD  OkERL KERD &3t g g azt st RE it
Taiwan g 438 - 9 447 - - - 447 3,628 4,075
PRC hELAR 1,446 1 7 145 14 Q 5% 1510 - 1500
Others EfitE 53 - 2 55 - - - 55 - 55
Total :t 1937 1 18 1,956 14 ) 56 2,012 3,628 5,640
REAEES ZEHEA Franchisee- Self- Retail
Store Number by Ownership RZZZNF owned Entrusted owned Channel Total
As at 31 December 2008 +=A=+-H nBEREE EiRe BERE TERE et
Taiwan = 438 - 9 3,628 4,075
PRC B R B 1,446 15 49 - 1,510
Others Hitin 2 53 - 2 - 55
Total st 1,937 15 60 3,628 5,640
STORE NUMBER STORE NUMBER
~ BY OWNERSHIP (5,640) ~_BY OWNERSHIP (%)
AR D 2 JEHZA (5,640) RER S D 2 JEFHEE (%)
15 60 0.3% 1.1%
Entrusted Self-owned Entrusted Self-owned
ERED RHEEE ST A&iEH
1,937 34.3%
Franchisee- Franchisee-
owned 3,628 ovned 64.3%
MEBEHRE Retail Channel MEBEHEE Retail Channel
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Distribution channels (Continued)

2008 2007
Average Average
2008 2007 sales sales
Average Average | per store per store
store* store* ZBENFE —TTLF
ZBENF —TTLF =1 M
15+ B4 EEEY EETY Changes
Average sales per store BRERTOHESR FHHE* FHHE*  HER HER #
HKS$ HK$ HK$ %
B BT BT
PRC B KR 1,487.5 1,407.0 293,000 225,000 68,000 30.2%
Taiwan*** =) Rk 452.0 483.5 300,000 230,000 70,000 30.4%
Group total** SE st 1,939.5 1,890.5 295,000 227,000 68,000 30.0%

* Average store number is calculated by (opening period total + closing period
total) / 2
**  Group total does not include Hong Kong and Malaysia turnover and store count.

***  Taiwan sales figure excluded retail sales of “Fonperi” brand products which are
sold by different distribution channel.

The Group principally derives income through our unique distribution
channels, namely spas and counters in department stores. As at 31 December
2008, there were 1,956 spas and 56 counters. All spas provide a variety of
services, including hydrotherapy, facial treatment, body care and skin care
analysis to its customers, whereas counters in department stores usually
provide skin care analysis.

As at 31 December 2008, there were a total of 1,937 franchisee spas, and 18
spas and 42 counters directly operated by the Group. There were also 1 spa
and 14 counters being entrusted to reputable operators.

A total of 198 new stores were opened and 161 stores were closed during
the year under review.
The average sales per store in the PRC increased by 30.2%, from HK$225,000

in 2007 to HK$293,000 in 2008. In Taiwan, average sales per store also
improved by 30.4%, from HK$230,000 in 2007 to HK$300,000 in 2008.
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Distribution channels (Continued)
Our objective is to encourage franchisees to open bigger spas, so as to
improve average store sales by adding more service spaces.

Franchised spas are owned by franchisees and they are responsible for the
capital investment of their spas, and are obliged to use “Natural Beauty” or
“NB" brand for products in their spas.

Retail Business

Since the launch of Fonperi products, the retail outlets in Taiwan has increased
from 1,394 as at 31 December 2007 to 3,628 points of sales as at 31
December 2008, including Watsons, Carrefour, Geant, RT-Mart, Wellcome,
FamilyMart and others.

Research and Development

In order to maintain our competitive edge, the Group puts much emphasis

on research and development, so as to improve the quality of existing
products and develop new products. The Group has been collaborating with
overseas cosmetic companies on technological development and imported
biotechnology materials from Europe, Japan and Australia, which have been
applied in over 700 NB’s products. The Group's research and development
team comprises 13 members and a number of overseas consultants with
experience and expertise in cosmetics, medical, pharmacy and bio-chemistry.
NB’s products are constantly enhanced and modified with new ingredients
developed by its research and development team. The Group believes that the
collaboration of different expertise and experience within the team, together
with Dr. Tsai’s over 30 years of industry experience and knowledge, can help
develop high quality beauty and skin care products. NB principally uses natural
ingredients to manufacture the products and adopts special formulation to
cater to the specific needs of the delicate skin type for oriental women. NB's
products are attentive to the natural metabolism of skin with long-lasting
effects.

In developing new products, the research and development team will take
into account the feedback and advice from senior management of the
Group. Prototype of new products will be distributed to over 1,000 selected
senior beauty professionals. In accordance with the outcome of the tests,
refinements or modifications to the products may be made, prior to its

full commercial launch to ensure the high quality, effectiveness and safety
standard of NB’s products. When a product requires registration with relevant
authorities, it will be done prior to market launch. All NB products are
carefully produced to meet all relevant regulations.
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Research and Development (Continued)

In addition to NB's dedicated research and development team, NB has
collaborated with a leading researcher in the field of human genome and
stem cell technology, in the development of anti-aging NB-1 product family
and other products for spot removing, whitening, anti-allergy and slimming.
With Dr. Tsai's over 30 years of experience in the beauty and skin care industry
and the strong professional portfolio of our research and development

staff members, NB has the competitive advantages in the research and
development of beauty and skin care products.

The total research and development costs remain steady at HK$1.7 million in
both 2007 and 2008.

New Products

After the successful launch of our flagship product, anti-aging NB-1 series in
late 2003, we launched NB-1 Whitening series, NB-1 anti-allergy and NB-1
pore refining series. In 2008, over 271,000 sets / bottles (2007: 176,000

sets / bottles) of NB-1 family products were sold with a turnover of HK$200.2
million (2007: HK$134.5 million), accounting for more than one-third of total
product sales during the year under review.

We also targeted our health food and supplement products as one of the
growth drivers in 2008, which turnover grew 186% from HK$16.6 million in
2007 to HK$47.4 million in 2008.

We also launched a retail brand “Fonperi” in Taiwan in April 2007, Fonperi
products are sold via retail channels like hypermarkets and drugstores,
including 6 key accounts, namely Watsons, Carrefour, Geant, RT-Mart,
Wellcome and FamilyMart, as well as 10 wholesalers. There were 3,628 retails
points of sales selling “Fonperi” products in Taiwan. Up to 31 December
2008, over 205,000 units were sold, generating a turnover of HK$11.3

million.

During 2008, the Group continued to enrich the product range and launched
109 new products, including 12 new products of “Fonperi” and 29 new
health supplement products.

Information Technology

The Group starts to implement ERP system by Oracle to link the key decision
making process throughout the Group’s value chain. The ERP system is
expected to enhance the Group’s information flow, and to enable the
generation of more accurate and timely production planning and sales
forecast.
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Information Technology (Continued)

The implementation of the ERP system in Taiwan was completed in 2004.
There were three logistic centers in the PRC operated by the Group. The
Warehouse Management System (WMS) is now linked to Oracle ERP system.

In order to improve operating efficiency, the Group has developed a B2B
portal for our franchisee to order goods online. In addition, we also have a
B2C portal on our website for retail customers to shop online.

Human Resources

As at 31 December 2008, the Group had a total of 1,029 employees, of
whom 809 were based in PRC, 195 in Taiwan and 25 in other areas. Total
remuneration (excluding directors’ emoluments) for the year ended 31
December 2008 was appropriately HK$97.3 million (2007: HK$79.5 million),
including retirement benefits cost of HK$10.4 million (2007: HK$7.9 million).
Competitive remuneration packages are maintained to attract, retain and
motivate capable staff and are reviewed on a regular basis.

The Group maintains good relations with our employee and is committed to
offering them training. Professional training courses are offered to beauticians
employed by the Group and our franchisees on a regular basis to promote
and maintain the quality and consistency of the services provided.

In addition, the Group adopted a share option scheme on 11 March 2002,
with a view to providing incentives and reward to eligible participants who
contributed to the success of the Group’s operations. The Directors may, at
their discretion, invite any employee or director of the Group or any qualified
person as set out in the scheme, to subscribe for shares. On 16 July 2008,

the Group granted options to certain employees to subscribe a maximum of
2,213,456 shares, subject to achieving certain performance targets. The stock
options could be vested at a ratio of 50%, 30% and 20% for a three-year
period. There were 1,336,354 options forfeited as certain performance targets
were not achieved based on the audited results of respective subsidiaries of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2008. As an additional employee
incentive, the Company will pay the relevant option holder a cash bonus in
the amount of the total exercise price payable for the exercise of the options.
The option holders are required to use any such cash bonus towards payment
of the exercise price of the relevant options and HK$ 1,125,397 of cash bonus
had been paid and used directly for exercising those options for 639,430
share issued. On 7 July 2008, there were 639,430 ordinary shares of the
Company allotted and issued in connection with the exercise of vested portion
of employee stock options granted in the previous year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Human Resources (Continued)

The Directors also strengthened its professional management team by
recruiting new staff members to fill in some key management positions
like head of sales and head of marketing from multinational companies for
the PRC and Taiwan markets. The Board believes that the addition of more
industry experts will be beneficial to the Group's expansion and long-term
development in future.

Capital Expenditures

The Group'’s major capital expenditures were related to self-owned spas and
machinery in our factories. There were HK$35.4 million additions to fixed assets
in 2008 (2007: HK$53.8 million), comprising renovation cost and the cost
incurred as a result of additional furniture and fixtures for our new Taiwan
office, as well as our newly opened self-owned spas in Beijing and Macau,
which amounted to HK$14.2 million, HK$3.9 million and HK$2 million
respectively.

Franchisees are responsible for the capital expenditures of their spas.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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China

Amidst a weakening global economy, the Group still believes that the
growth in PRC is far more rapid than in any other major economies. PRC
market remains the Group's strategic focus in the foreseeable future. With
the strengthening of sales skill training and product knowledge of the
franchisees, together with new products introduced and further expansion of
the franchise network, overall sales and average sales per store are targeted
to improve further. Also, the Group had acquired a related company which
principally engaged in the research, development and manufacture of

health supplements during the year. Through this acquisition, the Group can
further strengthen its position in expanding health supplements business and
improving its overall competitive edge.

Taiwan

In spite of the high expectations for the newly elected Taiwan President,
Taiwan’s economy has not turned around during 2008. Under the worldwide
economic crisis, general economy and retail market are expected to remain
weak, but we will focus more on our core business of franchising spa products
to outperform the economy in general.

For both markets, new products, especially health supplements, will be
introduced to reach extended family and friends of our existing clients.
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The Board and management of the Company are committed to maintaining
high standards of corporate governance. The Board had adopted Corporate
Governance Guidelines (the “CG Guidelines”) (available on website:
www.nblife.com/ir) which gives guidance on how corporate governance
principles are applied to the Company.

The Company applied the principles and compiled with all the code provisions
set out in Appendix 14 Code of Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code")
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The following
summarises the Company's corporate governance practices and explains
deviations, if any, from the Code.

In addition to complying with applicable statutory requirements, we aim to

continually review and enhance our corporate governance practices in light of
local and international best practices.

A. Directors

Details of Directors’ attendance records in 2008 are as follows:

RARBlEEeRERER IHEFERZEZ D
E¥ETAKFE -EZGCEMNEHADQR LM
EACEERRAZOEERES (REL
www.nblife.com/ira] 1t 2255 ) -

ARRICEMERBHRERZMAR AR (B
Frl) &z EmARAI EmRA DM R4z 0RE
AERTA TR DAERA - B TERPT
HEMTAE - TXBMAARBZEEERT
B WREREST R (E) 2 RHA -

BB BRERI - RRABBAN2 A N BEE

S
BB BERHRRECKEARR -

A EE

TN\ FZERBEREFBNOT

Independent
Remuneration Audit Board
Committee Committee Board Committee
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
B
yHEEE® BREES Exg ESZEg
25 = 23 28
Executive Directors HITES

Dr. TSAl Yen Yu ZEmEEL n/a n/a 12/13 n/a
Mr. LEE Ming Ta THELAE n/a n/a 12/13 n/a
Dr. SU Chien Cheng BEHRELT n/a 3/3 13/13 n/a
Dr. SU Sh Hsyu e L n/a n/a 12/13 n/a

Independent Non-Executive Directors BN FEITEE
Mr. YEH Liang Fei HEREBEE 11 3/3 12/12 3/3
Mrs. CHEN SHIEH Shu Chen BREMZ &t 171 3/3 1112 3/3
Mr. CHEN Ching BT A 11 3/3 12/12 3/3

Note: One of the Board meetings was related to renewal of the service
Contracts of two of the Independent Non-Executive Directors, hence
the total number of Board meetings relevant to Independent Non-
Executive Directors was one less than that of the Executive Directors.
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orporate Governance

Directors are consulted to include any matter in the agenda for
regular Board meetings.

The Company generally gives notice and draft agenda of regular
Board meetings at least 14 days in advance. The Company aims at
giving reasonable notice generally for all other Board meetings.

All Directors have access to the Company Secretary who is
responsible for ensuring that Board procedures are complied with
and advises the Board on corporate governance and compliance
matters.

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking minutes of Board
meetings and its committee’s ("Board Committee”) meetings,
which would be sent to Directors within a reasonable time (generally
within 14 days) after each meeting and would be made available
for inspection by Directors and Board Committee members.

Natural Beauty’s CG Guidelines allow Directors to take independent
professional advice at the Company’s expense.

Instead of by way of circulation, full Board meetings will be held
for any material transactions with connected persons. Independent
Non-Executive Directors who, and whose associates, have no
material interest in the transaction should be present at such
meeting.

The Company’s articles of association (the “Articles”) provide
for voting and quorum requirements conforming with the Code
requirements.

Dr. TSAI Yen Yu serves as the Chairman and Mr. LEE Ming Ta
serves as the Chief Executive Officer. The Chairman focuses on
Group strategic and Board issues while the Chief Executive Officer
has the overall responsibility for operations and development.

The Chairman has a clear responsibility to provide the whole
Board with all information relevant to the discharge of the Board’s
responsibilities.
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The Company aims to continually improve on the quality and
timeliness of the dissemination of information to Directors. (See
Section A6 — “Supply of and access to information” for further
details)

Composition of the Board, by category of Directors, including
names of the Executive Directors and Independent Non-Executive
Directors are disclosed in all corporate communications.

All Directors, including Executive and Non-Executive Directors,
serve three-year terms, and are subject to re-election.

According to the Articles, new Directors are required to submit
themselves to election at the first general meeting (either Annual
General Meeting (“AGM") or Extraordinary General Meeting
("EGM")) following their appointment.

At each AGM, one-third of the Directors (including Executive

and Non-Executive Directors), or, if their number is not three or a
multiple of three, then the number not less than one-third, shall
retire from office by rotation such that every Director is subject

to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. The
Directors to retire in every year shall be those who have been
longest in office since their last election but as between persons
who became Directors on the same day those to retire shall (unless
they otherwise agree between themselves) be determined by lot. A
retiring Director shall retain office until the close of the meeting at
which he retires, and shall be eligible for re-election thereat.

On appointment, new Directors will be given a comprehensive
orientation training by the Company’s legal counsel, to explain the
responsibilities and duties, and other regulatory requirements.

The Company Secretary is responsible for keeping all Directors
updated on Listing Rules and other statutory requirements.

All Independent Non-Executive Directors are members of the two
standing committees of the Board, namely the Audit Committee
and the Remuneration Committee.

There was satisfactory attendance for Board and Board Committee
meetings in 2008.
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orporate Governance

Throughout the year, Directors complied with the required
standards of the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules regarding Directors’ securities transactions.

There were compliance manuals provided to each of the Directors
and members of senior management, which set out (a) the
principal continuing obligations of the Company and the Directors
as a result of the listing of the securities of the Company on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited; and (b)
the systems and procedures that the Company, its Directors and
senior management should follow in order to ensure compliance
with such obligations.

Board papers were sent to all Directors at least three days before
the date of the Board/Board Committee meeting.

Senior management members are from time to time brought into
formal and informal contact with the Board at Board meetings and
other events.

Board papers and minutes are made available for inspection by
Directors and Board Committee members.

Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management

The Company has set up a Remuneration Committee. Full
terms of reference are available on the Company’s website:
www.nblife.com/ir.

With reference to the remuneration committee charter, each
committee member had carefully reviewed and considered the
terms of the expired service contracts (namely Dr. TSAI Yen Yu, Mr.
LEE Ming Ta and Dr. SU Chien Cheng) during the year, contribution
of each of the Executive Directors to the Group, the Directors’
experience in the beauty and spa business and the market rate
paid by comparable companies.

The Board also reviewed and considered the terms of the expired
service contracts of two Independent Non-Executive Directors
(namely Mr. YEH Liang Fei and Mrs. CHEN SHIEH Shu Chen)
during the year, contribution of each of these two Independent
Non-Executive Directors to the Group, their experience in the
beauty and spa business and the market rate paid by comparable
companies.
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The terms of the renewed service contracts of each of these
Executive Directors and Independent Non-Executive Directors
remain unchanged and the service contracts were renewed for
another three years.

Independent professional advice will be sought to supplement
internal resources where appropriate.

C. Accountability and Audit

Directors are provided with reports on the management’s strategic
plans, updates on lines of business, financial objectives, plans

and actions. The Directors are responsible for keeping proper
accounting records and preparing accounts of each financial
period, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Group and of the results and cash flow for that period. In
preparing the accounts for the year ended 31 December 2008, the
Directors have:

° approved the adoption of all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards which are issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants;

e selected and applied consistently appropriate accounting
policies;

° made judgements and estimates that are prudent and
reasonable;

e prepared the accounts on going concern basis.

A statement by the auditors about their reporting responsibilities is
included in the Report of the Auditors on page 60.

The Board will present a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment to annual and interim reports, other price-sensitive
announcements and other financial disclosures required under the
Listing Rules, and reports to regulators as well as to information
required to be disclosed pursuant to statutory requirements.
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orporate Governance

The Board has overall responsibility for the system of internal
controls and for reviewing its effectiveness. Management regularly
reviews the effectiveness of the risk management and system

of internal controls and compliance with best practices. The
Executive Directors and Financial Controller also report to the Audit
Committee twice a year on key findings regarding internal controls.
The Audit Committee, in turn, communicates any material issues to
the full Board.

The Board'’s review will also consider the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function, and their training programmes
and budget.

Draft minutes prepared by the Company Secretary are sent to
members within 14 days of each meeting. None of the three Audit
Committee members is former partners of the external auditors.
Full terms of reference (Audit Committee Charter) are available on
the Company'’s website: www.nblife.com/ir.

The Audit Committee recommended to the Board (which in turn
endorsed the view) that, subject to shareholders’ approval at the
forthcoming AGM, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu be reappointed as
the external auditors for 2009.

During 2008, the Group paid to the auditor HK$3.4 million for
2008 statutory audit services of the Company.

There is an agreed procedure for Audit Committee members to
take independent professional advice at the Company’s expense.

D. Delegation by the Board

There is a defined schedule of matters reserved for full Board
decision, including:

—  Long-term objectives and strategies;

- Extension of group activities into new business areas;

—  Preliminary announcements of interim and final results;
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orporate Governance

- Material banking facilities;

—  Material acquisitions and disposals;

- Material connected transactions; and

— Annual internal controls assessment.

The Board has established two Board Committees (Audit

Committee and Remuneration Committee) with specific terms of
reference available at the Company’s website: www.nblife.com/ir.

Board Committees present their respective reports to the Board
after each meeting, which reports address their work and findings.

Communication with Shareholders

Separate resolutions are proposed at the meeting on each
substantially separate issue, including the election of individual
Directors.

Chairman and/or Executive Directors, Independent Non-Executive
Directors, and Chairman of the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee are requested to attend the forthcoming
AGM.

There were one AGM and two EGMs held since the issue of last
annual report.

This code provision stipulates that the chairman of the board and
chairman of audit committee of a listed issuer should attend the
issuer’'s AGM and EGM. Dr. Tsai Yen Yu, the Chairperson of the
Company, has been heavily committed to business operations of
the Group in the Mainland China and Taiwan. Despite her utmost
intention to be present at the Company’s 2008 annual general
meeting held on 12 June 2008, business circumstances made it
impossible. However, although she was unable to attend, she had
duly arranged for Dr. Su Chien Cheng, an executive director of
the Company who is well versed in all the business activities and
operations of the Group, to attend on her behalf and to chair the
meeting and to respond to shareholders’ questions. Dr. Su also
attended the EGM held on 16 October 2008 on behalf of the
Board to answer questions from the shareholders.
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orporate Governance

Mr. CHEN Ching, an Independent Non-Executive Director, attended
and chaired the EGM held on 16 February 2009. Dr. SU Chien
Cheng also attended the meeting.

There is a dedicated section of “Shareholder Services” in the
Company's website: www.nblife.com/ir to provide comprehensive
information related to shareholders.

Procedures for demanding a poll were set out in the notice of AGM
and EGMs during the year. These procedures were also explained
during the AGM and EGMs proceedings.

A representative of the Company’s Share Registrar, Hong Kong
Registrars Limited was appointed as scrutineer during the AGM
and EGMs.

Poll results were published on the same day following the meetings
and posted on the website of the Stock Exchange and that of the
Company at www.nblife.com/ir.

Institutional shareholder communications

We consider it is important to have dialogues with institutional shareholders
based on mutual understanding of objectives. We participated in various road
shows during the year.

Our investor relations website was also won the “Greater China Region —
TOP 5 Financial Disclosure Procedures” award accredited by Investor Relations
Global Ranking (IRGR) in 2009.

Additional shareholders’ services can be found in the investor relations section
of the Company’s website: www.nblife.com/ir.
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Aged 61, the founder and the Chairman of the Group. Dr. Tsai founded
the Group in 1972 and is responsible for the Group’s overall management,

strategic planning and development, and formulation of company policies and

business strategy. Dr. Tsai is a renowned and authoritative expert in Taiwan,
PRC, as well as in Southeast Asia with over 30 years. In these years, Dr. Tsai
has been awarded numerous honours, positions and prizes such as:

e Honorary Doctor of Commerce, Dewey University, the USA

e Fellowship of Asian Knowledge Management Association

e Female Entrepreneur Award by Ernst & Young “Entrepreneur of the Year”

e Taiwan’'s Top Ten Most Influential Female Entrepreneur awarded by
CommonWealth Magazine

e Qutstanding Entrepreneurs of Taiwan awarded by Taiwan WWomen's
Business Association

e “Top 100 Chinese Entrepreneurs” of China

e “Bai Yu Lan” Award by the Shanghai City Government

e Principal consultant in the Chinese Ministry of Labor and the programme
"Ji Qing Chuang Ye" of CCTV

e Principal consultant of cosmetology arbitration panel in the Chinese
Ministry of Law

e 1st Pacemaker Award and Education Award of Beauty and Cosmetics
Industry in China

e Chairman of Association of Beauty Technique in Taipei

e Chairman of Association of Beauty and Hairstyle in Taiwan

Aged 61, the husband of Dr. Tsai, is the executive director of the Group and
is responsible for the general administration and internal management of the
Group. Prior to joining the Group in 1993, Mr. Lee had worked for various

financial institutions at senior management level for over 10 years in corporate

management and staff training. Mr. Lee graduated in Fengchia University in
Taiwan with a bachelor degree in Banking and Insurance.

Aged 37, the son of Dr. Tsai, is the executive director and Vice President of
the Group. He is responsible for the financial management and strategic
business development of the Group. Dr. Su graduated from the University of
Westminster with a master degree of business administration and obtained
his PhD in Business Management in the Shanghai University of Finance and
Economics of the PRC. He joined the Group in 1999, and assisted in leading
the listing of the Group on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange in 2002.
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Aged 35, the daughter of Dr. Tsai, is the Executive Director of the Group
since 21 September 2004. She advises the Group in various aspects including
i) strategic planning and development, ii) project management involving in
the full process from development to roll-out of products and services, iii)
exploring new distribution channels and advising on the enhancement of the
existing ones and iv) identifying potential strategic partner and involving in
the negotiation of partnership. Dr. Su graduated from the London School of
Economics with a master of science degree in industrial relations, personnel
management and human resources management and obtained her PhD in
International & Comparative Education, Columbia University in New York, US.
Dr. Su had been actively engaged in the marketing and business development
of the Group in Taiwan and the PRC during the period from 2004 to 2007.

Aged 77, worked in the police force of Taiwan for more than 40 years.

Mr. Yeh held senior positions in several police bureaus in Taiwan. After

his retirement from the police force, Mr. Yeh was appointed the honorary
President of Ta Feng Securities Co., Ltd. in Taiwan. He is very experienced
in administration and human resources management in large organisations.
Mr. Yeh graduated from Central Police Officer College of Taiwan. He was
appointed as the Company’s independent non-executive director in March
2002.

Aged 54, is a director of Taipei Australia International Investment Pty. Ltd., a
company engaged in real estate development in Australia. Mrs. Chen is also

a director of Ho Yin Garments Manufacturing Co., Ltd. in Taiwan. She has
been a director of Taipei Australia International Investment Pty. Ltd. for over
10 years and is experienced in property investment, general management and
global trading. Mrs. Chen graduated from SooChow University of Taiwan with
a bachelor degree of Arts in History. She was appointed as the Company’s
independent non-executive director in March 2002.
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Aged 45, is the Independent Non-Executive Director of the Group. He is

also the Managing Partner of Dinkum & Co, CPAs in Taiwan and has over

15 years of experience in accounting. He was a part-time lecturer of the
Accounting Information Department in Takming College from 2000 to 2001
and Accounting Department in Chung Kuo Institute of Technology from
2001 to 2002, respectively, both of which are tertiary academic institutions in
Taiwan. Mr. Chen is an Independent Director of Yufo Electronics Corporation,
a company listed on the GreTai Securities Market (Over-The-Counter Market)
in Taiwan. Mr. Chen graduated from the National Cheng-Chi University with
a master of science degree in accounting and is a member of Certified Public
Accountants Association of Taiwan.

Aged 50, Group Chief Operating Officer, is responsible for consolidating and
expanding the Group operations. Mr. Shiao graduate from Department of
Journalism of Taiwan Culture University in 1981. Prior to joining the Group
in October 2006, Mr. Shiao has over 23 years of operational management
experience in the consumer goods industry. He was the National Sales
Director of Energizer Schick Taiwan Limited, leading the sales team of the
company operating globally in the broad categories of household and
personal care products. He also worked for Warner-Lambert in Taiwan as the
National Sales Directors and Unilever Taiwan as Channel Sales Manager.

Aged 42, Supply Chain Director of NB Shanghai and is responsible for

the supply chain management in the PRC, including ERP, logistics and IT
department. Mr. Wang was graduated in the Chinese Culture University in
Taiwan with a Bachelor of Mass Communication. He was the head of IT and
also held senior position in Amigo Logistics Corporation in Taiwan. Mr. Wang
has been working in China since year 2000. Prior to joining our Group in
2006, Mr. Wang held senior positions in Dragon Logistics Co., Ltd and Trust-
Mart Hypermarket.

Aged 60, is the Head of Administration for NB Shanghai and is responsible
for the administration, logistics and human resources of the Group’s PRC
operation. Prior to joining the Group in 1993, Ms. Chen had over 10 years of
regional administrative experience in Taiwan. She is one of the key employees
for the Group’s expansion in the PRC.
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Aged 48, is the Head of accounting and finance for NB PRC region and is
responsible for the accounting and financial management function of the
Group's PRC operation. Ms. Yan graduated from the Shanghai University of
Finance and Economics with a bachelor degree in economics in 1983 and
graduated from West Virginia University in the US with a master degree in
Statistics in 1997. Prior to joining the Group in 2000, Ms. Yan worked in
commercial bank in US and China holding management position and has over
10 years of working experience in internal control and business administration.

Aged 54, is the head of accounting and finance for NB Taiwan and is
responsible for the financial management and accounting function of the
Group's Taiwan Business. Prior to joining the Group in 1980, Ms. Fong
worked in an international accounting firm and has served management
positions in a number of corporations in the region and has over 30 years of
experience in accounting, finance and auditing.

Aged 36, is the Sales and Marketing Director of NB Taiwan and is responsible
for the sales and marketing of our franchise operation, self-own spas, as well as
the branding in Taiwan. Ms. Yang was graduated from Shih-Chien University
in Taiwan and also studied in Fashion Institute of Technology in New York.
Prior to joining the Group in 2003, Ms. Yang had been working in various
organizations, such as Otto, Citibank etc., in the field of merchandising and
marketing. She is also the wife of Dr. Su Chien Cheng.

Aged 42, Brand Director of NB Taiwan and is responsible for the branding
and marketing execution in Taiwan. Mr. Lu was graduated with a MBA major
in international management in Thunderbird, American Graduate School of
International Management of USA in 1998. Prior to joining the Group in
March 2007, Mr. Lu has extensive product and branding experiences of fast
moving consumer products including Product Manager of Warner Lambert
and Senior Product Manager of L'OREAL Taiwan.
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Aged 43, National Sales Director of Natural Beauty in China and is responsible
for the sales operation and franchisee recruitment in China. Ms. Wang was
graduated in the Wuhu Institute of Technology with a diploma of Business
Administration and currently studying an Executive MBA program in School
of Business Nanjing University. Ms. Wang has over 21 years of working
experience. Prior to joining our Group in 2007, Ms. Wang was the District
Sales Director of Avon China.

Aged 40, is the Financial Controller and Company Secretary of the Group. Mr.
Chan is responsible for the financial planning and monitoring. He graduated
from the University of Hull in the UK with a bachelor’s degree in economics
(economics and accounting) in 1992 and graduated from Richard Ivey School
of Business with University of Western Ontario, Canada with an Executive
MBA in 2008. He is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. Prior to joining the Group in July 2004,

Mr. Chan worked in an international accounting firm and had served senior
financial positions in @ NASDAQ listed company and a renowned German
exhibition company.
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Directors’ Report
EFEWSE

The directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in (a) manufacturing and selling of skin care, beauty and
aromatherapeutic products and (b) provision of skin treatments, beauty and
spa services and skin care consulting and beauty training. The activities of
its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2008 are set out in
the consolidated income statement on page 62.

An interim dividend of HK$0.050 per share amounting to HK$100,032,000
was paid to the shareholders during the year. The directors now recommend
the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.0335 per share to the shareholders
on the register of members on 26 May 2009, amounting to approximately
HK$67,021,000. Details of the dividends are set out in note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales and purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers and suppliers were less than 30% of the Group’s total turnover
and purchases for the year respectively.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group's investment properties at 31 December 2008 were fair valued by
an independent firm of professional property valuers. The fair value increase
of approximately HK$15,000 has been recognised in the consolidated income
statement. Details of movements during the year in the investment properties
of the Group are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the year in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.
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eHEE

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive directors:

Dr. Tsai Yen Yu (alias Dr. Tsai Yen Pin)
Mr. Lee Ming Ta (alias Mr. Lee Ming Tah)
Dr. Su Chien Cheng

Dr. Su Sh Hsyu

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Yeh Liang Fei

Mrs. Chen Shieh Shu Chen

Mr. Chen Ching

In accordance with Article 117 of the Company’s articles of association, Dr.
Su Sh Hsyu, Mr. Yeh Liang Fei and Mr. Chen Ching will retire by rotation and,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Rules (the “Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive directors independent.

All the independent non-executive directors are members of the Company’s
Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2008, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the Company'’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders were
approximately HK$515,953,000 which represents the share premium and
retained profits of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The directors’ service contracts entered into between the Company and

all executive directors were for a term of three years, commencing from

11 March 2008, in the case of Dr. Tsai, Yen Yu (“Dr. Tsai”), Mr. Lee Ming
Ta (“Mr. Lee”) and Dr. Su Chien Cheng (“Dr. Su Chien Cheng”) and from
21 September 2007 in the case of Dr. Su Sh Hsyu (“Dr. Su Sh Hsyu"). The
service contracts of the independent non-executive directors were also for

a term of three years, commencing from 11 March 2008 in the case of Mr.
Yeh Liang Fei (“Mr. Yeh”) and Mrs. Chen Shieh Shu Chen (“Mrs. Chen")
and from 21 September 2007 in the case of Mr. Chen Ching (“Mr. Chen").
These services contracts may be terminated by either party giving to the other
not less than three calendar months’ notice in writing. The initial aggregate
annual remuneration pursuant to such service contracts is HK$2,988,000 (as
to HK$1,000,000 to Dr. Tsai, HK$700,000 to Mr. Lee, HK$600,000 to Dr.
Su Sh Hsyu, HK$600,000 to Dr. Su Chien Cheng, HK$20,000 to Mr. Yeh,
HK$20,000 to Mrs. Chen and HK$48,000 to Mr. Chen) subject to an annual
increment at the discretion of the directors of not more than 10% of the
annual remuneration immediately prior to such increase.

Each of Dr. Tsai, Mr. Lee, Dr. Su Chien Cheng and Dr. Su Sh Hsyu is also
entitled to a management bonus. The aggregate amount of the bonuses
payable to these executive directors will not exceed 15% of the audited
consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of the Company in respect of
that financial year of the Group. For the year ended 31 December 2008, the
Remuneration Committee had recommended and the Board had approved
the payment of the bonuses of HK$4,000,000 to Dr. Tsai, HK$3,000,000

to Dr. Su Chien Cheng and HK$3,000,000 to Dr. Su Sh Hsyu, totaling
HK$10,000,000 for the year, which represents approximately 4.0% and
4.2% of the audited consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company prior and after such expense, respectively.

Save as disclosed above, no director has any unexpired service contract
which is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than normal statutory obligations.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2008, the interests of the directors, the chief executive
and their associates in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of

the Company and its associated corporations, as recorded in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO"), or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code") contained in the Listing
Rules, were as follows:

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the
Company

Ordinary shares

E= VR
RZFZNE+-_A=+t—H #F IBTK
ABREEZBEALTRAR R K& E AR B K
Betn ~ MBI REFT - BHLENARER
BESLEEGD([BF R ])E352(5F
EMELCH  SRELTRAME LT RRES
Lﬂaﬂ;&} 2 ZHIREST R ([RETRI DEMER
N S EER FTR R T

REQTRG RAEABROHEE

Number of ordinary shares

ZRERHAE
% of the issued
share capital of
Family Corporate the Company
interests interests AN TE BT
Name of directors BEEME RikfER AR R BAEBSE
Dr. Tsai gEiE+ - 838,530,000 41.91%
(Note 1)(FffE1)
Dr. Su Chien Cheng Bamigt - 236,580,000 11.83%
(Note 2)(FftzE2)
Dr. Su Sh Hsyu BmiELt - 236,580,000 11.83%
(Note 3)(Fff5E3)
Mr. Lee FEE 838,530,000 - 41.91%
(Note 1)(FfF&ET)
Notes: B

(1) The two references to 838,530,000 shares relate to the same block of shares. Such
block of shares are held by Efficient Market Investments Limited (“Efficient Market”)
which is beneficially wholly-owned by Dr. Tsai through Knightcote Enterprises
Limited (“Knightcote”).

Mr. Lee, the spouse of Dr. Tsai, is deemed to be interested in 838,530,000 ordinary
shares of the Company.

(2) The reference to 236,580,000 shares is held by Adventa Group Limited (“Adventa”)
which is beneficially wholly-owned by Dr. Su Chien Cheng through Beautivalue
Holdings Limited (“Beautivalue”). Dr. Su Chien Cheng is the son of Dr. Tsai.

(3) The reference to 236,580,000 shares is held by Fortune Bright Group Limited
("Fortune Bright”) which is beneficially wholly-owned by Dr. Su Sh Hsyu through
Colour Shine Holdings Limited (“Colour Shine”). Dr. Su Sh Hsyu is the daughter of
Dr. Tsai.
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SR
DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (continued) YN Eﬁ@éﬁﬁ‘ %)
Other than as disclosed above, none of the directors, the chief executive nor BEXEBEEN RZEE)N\F+_A=+—
their associates had any interests or short position in any shares, underlying H #EEE F2TBRASRKREIBEAL
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations as AR B sk B AR ARE A B M E R AR (D - MERERR
at 31 December 2008. NREHPHERTAERIAE °
SHARE OPTIONS u/uHXT
The Company PN
Particulars of the Company’s stock option scheme are set out in note 26 to IN/N wﬂ’iﬁé SR 2 FHBEHN G PR IRR M T
the consolidated financial statements. 26 °

On 16 July 2008, the Group granted options to certain employees to subscribe  WNZZEENE+A+NH @ KAEHAE TIEER
for a maximum of 2,213,456 shares and the stock options will be vested at a AR RE - AR S %2,213,456 %0815 © ;A_rw
ratio of 50%, 30% and 20% over a three-year period subject to the grantees  J¥#E ¥ 1E &I AERE FTEITIRIES 1S /RT

achieving certain performance targets. FHAEIES0% ~ 30% K% 20% 2 th KGR

The following table discloses movements in the Company'’s share option TRBERRAARRIENRERN 2 EE) :
during the year:

Category 1: Employees A ER
Outstanding Outstanding
Exercise atbeginning  Granted Exercised  Forfeited  Expired atend
Option type Date of grant Exercisable period price of year during year during year during year during year of year
REY RER
BRER RiLAH L % HAGE RERRY REATE REARK RERER  HAGR
2007 Type | 27 July 2007 1 July 2008 to 26 July 2017 1.76 639,430 - (639,430) - - -
“TTHEE R ZTTtE “ETN\ELA-AZE
tAZt+H ZEtELAZRE
2007 Type |l 27 July 2007 1 July 2009 to 26 July 2017 1.76 383,659 - - - - 383,659
e ZTTtE “EENFLA-HE
tAZt+tH ZEtELAZTRE
2007 Type ll 27 July 2007 1 July 2010 to 26 July 2017 1.76 255,772 - - - - 255772
e ZTTtE “E-TELA-HE
tAZt+tH ZEtELAZTAE
2008 Type | 16 July 2008 1 July 2009 to 15 July 2018 1.69 - 1,106,728 - (668,177) - 438551
“ZT\5EH —TTN\F “EENFLA-HE
tA+A - \$tA+EA
2008 Type |l 16 July 2008 1 July 2010 to 15 July 2018 1.69 - 664,037 - (400,906) - 263131
“TT\FECH —TTN\F “E-TELA-HE
tA+RA -\t A+ER
2008 Type I 16 July 2008 1 July 2011 to 15 July 2018 1.69 - 442,69 - (267,271) - 175,420
—ZT\5E=R —TTN\F —E—FtA-HE
tA+RA - \$tAt+ER

1278861  2,21345  (639,430) (1,336,354)

1,516,533
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EERRER

SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

The Company (Continued)

Category 1. Employees (Continued)

The closing price of the Company’s share immediately before 16 July 2008,
the date of grant of the 2008 options, was HK$1.69.

There were 1,336,354 options forfeited as certain performance targets were
not achieved based on the audited results of respective subsidiaries of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2008.

As an additional employee incentive, the Company will pay the relevant
option holder a cash bonus in the amount of the total exercise price payable
for the exercise of the options. The option holders are required to use any
such cash bonus towards payment of the exercise price of the relevant options
and HK$ 1,125,397 of cash bonus had been paid and used directly for the
exercise of those options for 639,430 share issued.

There was no options granted to substantial shareholders, executive directors
or independent non-executive directors during the year.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme disclosed above, at no time during

the year was the Company or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of
the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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EERRER

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2008, the register of substantial shareholders maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows that, the
following shareholders had notified the Company of relevant interests in the
issued capital of the Company.

TERR

RZZEN\F+ZA=+—A ARAREES
BRI ROEERBAMET - 5
TREEAEARVRENAR AR BITRAL
A -

Long position in shares and underlying shares of the

Company

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

S\ =] L

A2 A ERAR

RAERXTRG REBRONEFR

EJE0. 108 7T iy Z 8%

Percentage of

Number of the issued
ordinary shares  share capital of
beneficially held the Company
Name of shareholder Notes Capacity BE&kE ERDRERT
RREE/EH Mk 59 EBERYE REEAH
Efficient Market 1 Beneficial owner 838,530,000 41.91%
BREBA
Knightcote 1&2 Beneficial owner and held by a controlled corporation 838,530,000 41.91%
BB ARBRXEEERE
Adventa 3 Beneficial owner 236,580,000 11.83%
EHEBA
Beautivalue 3&4 Beneficial owner and held by a controlled corporation 236,580,000 11.83%
B ARBXEZERE
Fortune Bright 5 Beneficial owner 236,580,000 11.83%
EREBA
Colour Shine 5&6 Beneficial owner and held by a controlled corporation 236,580,000 11.83%
EalEARBXEZERE
Dr. Tsai 2 Beneficial owner and held by a controlled corporation 838,530,000 41.91%
3k BB ARBXEGEERE
Dr. Su Chien Cheng 4 Beneficial owner and held by a controlled corporation 236,580,000 11.83%
st BB ARBXEEERE
Dr. Su Sh Hsyu 6 Beneficial owner and held by a controlled corporation 236,580,000 11.83%
HapEL BB ARBRENEERE
Martin Currie Inc. 7 Beneficial owner 90,231,000 451%
ExEBA
Martin Currie Investment Management 7 Beneficial owner 83,865,000 4.19%
Limited B=EEA
ETANRAEEERAR
Martin Currie Ltd. 788 Beneficial owner and held by a controlled corporation 174,096,000 8.70%
BRHBARBREGEERSE
Martin Currie (Holdings) Ltd. 8 Beneficial owner and held by a controlled corporation 174,096,000 8.70%
BT AR (BR)BRAR EnlB ARBXEEERE
Keywise Capital Management (HK) Limited Beneficial owner 161,540,000 8.07%
HBEREER(EB)ERLA EHEBA
UBS AG Beneficial owner 120,737,000 6.03%
EHEBA

BAXENNEBERLT —TT)\FFR

55



Directors’ Report
EERRER

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Long position in shares and underlying shares of the
Company (Continued)

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company (Continued)

Notes:
1. Efficient Market is beneficially wholly-owned by Knightcote.

2. The controlled corporation, Knightcote, is beneficially wholly-owned by Dr.
Tsai. These shares are attributable to Dr. Tsai in respect of her 100% interest in
Knightcote.

3. Adventa is beneficially wholly-owned by Beautivalue.

4. The controlled corporation, Beautivalue, is beneficially wholly-owned by Dr. Su
Chien Cheng. These shares are attributable to Dr. Su Chien Cheng in respect of his
100% interest in Beautivalue.

5. Fortune Bright is beneficially wholly-owned by Colour Shine.

6. The controlled corporation, Colour Shine, is beneficially wholly-owned by Dr. Su
Sh Hsyu. These shares are attributable to Dr. Su Sh Hsyu in respect of her 100%
interest in Colour Shine.

7. Martin Currie Inc. and Martin Currie Investment Management Limited are
beneficially wholly-owned by Martin Currie Ltd.

8. Martin Currie Ltd. is beneficially wholly-owned by Martin Currie (Holdings) Ltd.

Save as the interests disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of
any other relevant interests or short positions in the issued share capital of the
Company as at 31 December 2008.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS'
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Group had the following significant transactions with connected persons:

(i) During the year, Shanghai Natural Beauty Sanlian Cosmetics Company
Limited (“NB Sanlian”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary, purchased
natural health food of approximately HK$6,530,000 from Shanghai
Natural Beauty Bio-Med Company Limited /8B AEAMEEFR A A
("Bio-Med"), a company beneficially-owned as to 20% by Dr. Tsai, 40%
by Dr. Su Chien Cheng and 40% by Dr. Su Sh Hsyu pursuant to a renewed
natural health food purchase agreement dated 16 January 2008. On 16
January 2008, NB Sanlian and Bio-Med entered into the Renewed Natural
Health Food Purchase Agreement, for the period from 1 January 2008 to
31 December 2008, with the annual cap amount of HK$9,000,000. The
transaction under the Renewed Natural Health Food Purchase Agreement is
regarded as continuing connected transactions pursuant to Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange. Details of which were set out
in the announcement of the Company dated 16 January 2008.
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EERREE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS'
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (continued)

(i) On 20 August 2008, Natural Beauty China Holding Limited, an indirect

(iii

=

wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has entered into the Sales

and Purchase Agreement with Uni Way Associates Limited (“Uni

Way") to acquire the entire interests of Bio-Med at a consideration of
USD3,313,966 (equivalent to approximately HK$25,848,936). Uni Way

is a company beneficially-owned as to 20% by Dr. Tsai, 40% by Dr. Su
Chien Cheng and 40% by Dr. Su Sh Hsyu. The details of which were set
out in the announcement of the Company dated 20 August 2008 and the
circular of the Company dated 10 September 2008.

On 3 November 2008, (a) the Taipei Tenancy Agreement was entered into
between Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Company Limited B $AE4EY)
RHEA D B BR A R (formerly Natural Beauty Cosmetics Company Limited
B AE it m& 1 BBR A F]) (“NB Taiwan”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, as tenant and Dr. Tsai as landlord for a period
of two years from 1 November 2008 to 31 October 2010 with a monthly
rental of TWD2,250,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$521,304); (b)
the Pa-Der Tenancy Agreement was entered into between NB Taiwan

as tenant and Dr. Su Chien Cheng as landlord for a period of two years
from 1 January 2009 to 31 December 2010 with a monthly rental of
TWD70,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$16,218); (c) the Beijing
Tenancy Agreement 1 was entered into between Beijing Natural Beauty
Cosmetics Company Limited bt R B AZE L iam AR A (“Beijing

NB"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as tenant

and Beijing Zhong Ao Yi Natural Beauty Cosmetics & Hair-Style Training
Company Limited 3t AR E B AEER R EERMIEIIBR QA (“Beijing
ZAY") as landlord for a period of two years from 1 December 2008 to

30 November 2010 with a monthly rental of RMB230,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$259,711); and (d) Beijing Tenancy Agreement 2 was
entered into between NB Sanlian, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, as tenant and Beijing ZAY as landlord for a period of two
years from 1 December 2008 to 30 November 2010 with a monthly rental
of RMB60,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$67,751). Beijing ZAY is a
company beneficially-owned by Dr. Tsai, Dr. Su Chien Cheng and Dr. Su
Sh Hsyu as to 20%, 40% and 40% respectively. Details of these tenancies
were set out in the announcement of the Company dated 3 November
2008.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS'
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (continued)
(iv) On 10 November 2008, Dr. Tsai, Dr. Su Chien Cheng and Dr. Su Sh Hsyu
(collectively the “Licensors”) and the Company (the “Licensee”) entered
into a license agreement at a consideration of HK$10 for the royalty-
free, fully paid-up, perpetual and non-revocable licence and privilege
throughout the world to use the certain trade marks on exclusive use and
non-exclusive use basis.

(v) On 10 November 2008, the Company (the “Licensor”) and Dr. Tsai (the
“Licensee”) entered into a license agreement at a consideration of HK$10
for a non-exclusive, royalty-free and perpetual licence (including the right
to grant sub-licences) to use certain trademarks solely in relation to the
operation of resorts and hotels, for education related purposes and in the
field of healthcare and only in the jurisdiction in which such trademarks
are registered or has been applied for. The Licensee shall offer the
Company the opportunity to participate in any new investments.

The above transactions are regarded as connected transactions pursuant to
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Particulars of the transactions are disclosed
in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

The independent non-executive directors confirm that the transactions
have been entered into by the Group in the ordinary course of its business,
on terms no less favourable than terms available from independent third
parties and in accordance with the terms of the agreement governing
such transactions that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Save as disclosed above:

(i) no contracts of significance subsisted to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the

year or at any time during the year; and

(i) there were no transactions which need to be disclosed as connected
transactions in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the board
of directors on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the executive directors of the Company are recommended
by the Remuneration Committee and are decided by the board of directors,
as authorised by shareholders at the annual general meeting, having regard
to the Company’s operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to directors
and eligible employees, details of the scheme is set out in note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s bye-laws,
or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year
ended 31 December 2008.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY"’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-appoint
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Dr. Tsai Yen Yu
Chairman

Hong Kong
15 April 2009
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Independent Auditor’s Report
VR I E e

Deloitte.
=2

TO THE MEMBERS OF
NATURAL BEAUTY BIO-TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Natural Beauty
Bio-Technology Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 62 to 147, which comprise the
consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2008, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true
and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility
includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant

to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards

or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the HKICPA. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
as to whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited Annual Report 2008

HEREKEMRIBR AR
TR

(REASHBEMELINERLR)

AzEEN (AT I8 EERII BN E62
ETEEARAREMRRAR AR A TEE 2
Bl REMBARAT AR EE ) NERE %
BE - BEEPBRReER T N\E+ A
St HNERABEREBR  BEEZALFE
MR ER  GERREBRIGARERE
x o UAREBGFBRME R AN ERE -

EERGAUHRERAAENELE

AAERAABERBETESHAMASRMANEE
B HmEENRFB(ABRIDREH LEEm A
PR SR MHRE - ERERERR
Btk RS R EE M AT RES M
BRMAENAIIES - AESEMBRRIFE
MR AFF R ME RN EBARBRIML - BB
EREENSEE  REBERELEEN S
flat e

(2 GllEON=g=

BB EEREBERMANBREZEEA MR
RELER - ZPNREE/BRR(EL—EE
MRS WTAREMEMEH - LWL TFHA
WE AR ERE M A TAEERRBRER
EREME - RPICREFESTMAIGSRMANE
BEFEETER - BLERERFMETE
BRE - WRERWITEZ  UAEREESREY
BRRER M A EMERFHRERAL -



Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZBMmES

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about

the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and
true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair

view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2008 and of the
Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

15 April 2009
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Consolidated Income Statement

IR

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE_ZTZ\F+-_A=+—HLEFE

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Distribution and selling expenses
Administrative expenses

Other expenses

Share of loss of an associate

Share of profit of a jointly
controlled entity

Profit before taxation
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company
Minority interests

Dividends

Earnings per share
Basic
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Notes

B aE

2008 2007

S L% e
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT T
592,701 450,147
(86,102) (77,573)
506,599 372,574
58,222 32,461
(127,587) (117,937)
(112,731) (74,536)
(16,026) (4,247)
= (373)

= 87
308,477 208,029
(69,898) (29,248)
238,579 178,781
238,477 178,707
102 74
238,579 178,781
300,032 185,000

11.9 centsi&1l

8.9 centsi#Il




Consolidated Balance Sheet

e BERAER

At 31 December 2008
RZPENE+=A=+—B

Non-current assets
Investment properties
Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid lease payments
Goodwill
Available-for-sale investments
Deferred taxation assets

Current assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Prepaid lease payments
Pledged bank deposit
Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Deferred income
Taxation payable

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liability
Retirement benefit obligations

FRBEE

REME
TEE - BiZ k&M
B AL EER
kS

AHHERE
BB E

REBE

&

B 5 MEMm R ARR
BALEER
EHEMIRITER
RITREFERE

mBAE

B 5 MEMmENRR
AT W as

FEFTEIR

MBEEFE

REERRBDAR

FRBARE
RAEBNEE

Notes

B aE

14
15
16
17
18
27

19
20
16
21
21

22
23

24

2008
—BEN\F
HK$’000
TR

4,486
230,569
9,809
25,766
5,926
9,156

285,712

100,859
92,744
278
428

546,205

740,514

105,979
10,374

41,207
157,560
582,954

868,666

12,259

856,407

2007
—ETEF
HK$'000
FAT

4,544
218,025
9,516
24,562
9,126
7,550

273,323

71,017
98,971
262

588,741

758,991

90,308
9,763
4,693

104,764
654,227

927,550

11,899

915,651
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
MEBEEABR

At 31 December 2008
R-ZEE)\F+-_A=+—H

Notes
M aE
Capital and reserves IR K (1
Share capital [N 25
Reserves (]
Equity attributable to equity holders of NARIRCRFE GRS
the Company
Minority interests DB R M R
Total equity A

The consolidated financial statements on pages 62 to 147 were approved and 2562 % 147 B H)4R & M B WER

2008
—BEN\F
HK$’000
TR

200,064

649,896

849,960
6,447

856,407

2007
—ETEF
HK$'000
FAT

200,000
709,626

909,626
6,025

915,651

—ETNFINA

authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 15 April 2009 and are signed ~ THBEE=SHEWEETIE WHATES

on its behalf by: REREE
Dr. Tsai Yen Yu Mr. Lee Ming Ta
BEEET FHESE
Director Director
BE BE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE_ZTZ\F+-_A=+—HLEFE

At 1 January 2007

Exchange differences arising from
translation of foreign operation
recognised directly in equity

Profit for the year

Total recognised income and expense

for the year
Transfers

Contribution from minority shareholders
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 28)

Dividends paid (note 12)

Recognition of share based payments

Forfeiture of share options

At 31 December 2007

Exchange differences arising from
translation of foreign operation
recognised directly in equity

Profit for the year

Total recognised income and expense

for the year
Transfers

Contribution from minority shareholders
Acquisition of additional interest in

a subsidiary
Dividends paid (note 12)

Recognition of share based payments

Forfeiture of share options

Shares issued upon exercise of

share options

At 31 December 2008

RZEE+5—-A—H
FEERNERRED 2
BINER

ExzH
REFR

RAFERAL
WARFR% 2%
EEE
LEREEE
WE-FNELR
(Fiszr28)
JEEH%‘J (FsE12)
RRHR
SR

RZZTLE
T-A=1-A
REERNERRERL
BINERS
ExZH
REERF

HAFERDL
WARR% &%
25
SERRTE
WE—RMB AR
ZEIMER
Bk (fiz12)
ERRHAR
YRR
TR BRI BT

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

RARRRER
Share
Share  Capital ~ Share Statutory Translation  option Retained Minority
capital  surplus premium reserve reserve reserve  profits Total interests Total
2 |

RA E4XB% ROEE FERE EXREIRERE RSEN & RREs @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TExr T TEr TEr  TEx  TEr  TEx  TEr TEn ThEx
200,000 42,554 336,758 106,803 26,124 - 166,500 878,739 432 819,17
- - - - 37,01 - - 37,019 27) 37,052
- - - - - - 178,707 178,707 74 178,781
- - - - 37,019 - 178,707 215,786 47 - 215,833

- - - 43919 - (43919
- - - - - - - - 5115 5115
- - - - - - - - @ 431
- - - - - - (185,000) (185,000) - (185,000)
- - - - - 138 - 138 - 138
- - - - - (37) - (37) - (37)
200,000 42554 336,758 150,722 63,203 101 116,288 909,626 6,025 915,651
- - - - 519 - - 519 317 836
- - - - - - 238477 238477 102 238,579
- - - - 519 - 238477 238996 419 239,415
- - - (2379 - - 2376 - -
- - - - - - - - 377 377
- - - - - - - S € 17 )
- - (300,032) - - - - (300,032) - (300,032)
- - - - - 840 - 840 - 840
- - - - - (595) - (595) - (595)
64 - 1,298 - - (237) - 1,125 - 1,125
200,064 42554 38,024 148346 63,722 109 357,141 849,960 6,447 856,407
BREEYRFEERAT — 2T\ FERH
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
maEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE—_TT)\F+_A=+—HLEE

SHARE PREMIUM

In accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share
premium account is distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on which the dividend is
proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

STATUTORY RESERVE

According to the relevant laws and regulations in the People’s Republic of
China (“the PRC"), the PRC companies with foreign investment are required
to transfer a certain percentage of its profit after taxation, as determined
under PRC accounting regulations (the “net profit under PRC generally
accepted accounting principles” (“PRC GAAP")), to the general reserve fund,
enterprise expansion fund. Distribution of these reserves shall be made in
accordance with the Article of Association and approved by the board of
directors each year. Other PRC companies are required to transfer a certain
percentage of their net profit under PRC GAAP to the statutory surplus
reserve fund until the reserve balance reaches 50% of their paid-in capital.

According to the laws and regulations of Taiwan, Taiwan companies shall set
aside 10% of their statutory net income each year for legal reserve, until the
reserve balance has reached the paid-in share capital amount.

CAPITAL SURPLUS

The capital surplus represents the difference between the consideration paid
and the relevant share of the carrying value of the subsidiaries’ net assets
acquired upon Group Reorganisation in year 2002.

These above-mentioned reserves and funds cannot be used for purposes

other than those for which they were created and are not distributable as
cash dividends.

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited Annual Report 2008
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

/\\/T\ E/% 7 ;/z;_i % %%

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE_ZZEN\F+_A=+—HILFE

2008 2007
—EENF ZETF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Operating activities LR
Profit before taxation R T BT A 308,477 208,029
Adjustments for: KRR ZIE
Interest income F B = (6,583) (6,754)
Depreciation of property, plant TEE - BSMREITE
and equipment 17,131 17,522
Gain on disposal of property, plant HETEE « BEREE
and equipment Wiz (14,699) (858)
Gain on disposal of an associate HE —F B A = (1,024)
Gain on disposal of investment properties HEREMERZ - (1,199)
Release of prepaid lease payments OB AT SR 275 252
Gain of held-for-trading investments BEEEERE WG (2,617) (4,102)
Increase in fair value of investment EMENFERN
properties (15) (50)
Write back of obsolete inventories FREFERD (1,495) (M
Impairment loss on trade receivables B 5 REBER TR EE R 15,243 2,185
Impairment loss on available-for-sale At HEREREREER
investments 3,200 -
Share of loss of an associate JEG—KEE R RIEE = 373
Share based payments R 1~ R 245 101
Share of profit of a jointly controlled entity — FE{E — 3K £ [RI3% ] & 52 % F| - (87)
Operating cash flows before movements in &84 & E8aT 2
working capital KERERE 319,162 214,387
Increase in inventories FEEN (27,010) (7,443)
(Increase) decrease in trade and Z 5 K E e AR
other receivables (32 0n) > (8,032) 65,132
Decrease in held-for-trading investments BIEEERERD 2,617 31,815
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 R Hopth FE T RRFIE AN 16,530 19,604
Increase in deferred income IR 2518 N 611 427
Increase in defined benefit obligations EFIRRAIE EE M 360 582
Cash generated from operations CEREEEEZIRE 304,238 324,504
Overseas tax paid BEEINRIA (34,950) (50,306)
Net cash from operating activities RESEBN SIS FEE 269,288 274,198
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

mealangx
For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE-ZT)\FH+-_A=+—HILFE

Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Acquisition of a subsidiary
Increase in pledged bank deposit
Acquisition of additional interest in
a subsidiary
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant
and equipment
Interest received

Proceeds on disposal of investment properties

Proceeds on disposal of an associate
Acquisition of available-for-sale investment

Net cash (used in) from investing activities

Financing activities
Dividends paid
Contribution from minority shareholders

Net cash used in financing activities

Net (decrease) increase in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
the financial year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at end of
the financial year,
represented by bank balances and cash

Notes
liiE=s
wEES
BETHE 5Kk
Bl
Wi — KM E AT 28

SRR FIE 0

WE—RHBARZ
BSME

HENBE - BiZM&E
FR1SRIE

BEUFE

HEREMEMETIR

HE B2 QRIS RIA

WA M ERE
KREZRB(FIA)MSREFE
BELH

IR AR

LERFEE

BERPTARSER

ne KRS FENOID)
#%F5

MBENZRE IR EEY

sk ) > p e

MRFER RS RREFEY
(FERITEFRRE)
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2008
—EENEF
HK$'000
FET

(35.427)
(3.123)
(428)

(374)

30,356
6,583

(2,413)

(300,032)
377

(299,655)

(32,780)

588,741

(9,756)

546,205

2007
—ETEF
HK$'000
FAT

(53,778)
(6)

2,732
6,754
158,056
1,024
(2,340)

112,442

(185,000)
5115

(179,885)

206,755

356,243

25,743

588,741



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Are TSR M At

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE_ZTZ\F+-_A=+—HLEFE

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in Cayman Islands on 29 June 2001

as an exempted company with limited liability. Its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on
28 March 2002. Its ultimate holding company and immediate holding
company are Knightcote Enterprises Limited and Efficient Market
Investments Limited, respectively, and both were incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands. The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the introduction to
the annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in (a) manufacturing and selling of skin care, beauty
and aromatherapeutic products and (b) provision of skin treatments,
beauty and spa services and skin care consulting and beauty training.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is also the functional currency of the Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied the following amendments
and interpretations (“new HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") which are or have
become effective.

HKAS 39 & HKFRS 7
(Amendments)

Reclassification of Financial Assets

HK(IFRIC) = Int 11 HKFRS 2: Group and Treasury Share
Transactions

HK(IFRIC) = Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements

HK(IFRIC) — Int 14 HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined Benefit
Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements

and their Interaction

The adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material effect on how the
results and financial position for the current or prior accounting periods
have been prepared and presented. Accordingly, no prior period
adjustment has been required.

—fREFY

ARRRZZEZE—F AT HLBERSE
SHAMKZREREERAR - ARHHRZ
EECE=ACTN\AEEEBERFE
KE&’AT(FH@%?&?)’TJ)LH? HEHERARR
HE KRR A5 B AKnightcote Enterprises
Limited )2 Efficient Market Investments Limited -
MRARIREBER A STMA - &
NRZFAMFER R EZ L EME 2 mibn
FRESPHRE -

KRB RREERAT - AREEEEBA
(QEENHEEE EARBEEMRD)R
HYLEERE - A KspalR7% A &S &2
BRI REREIRE - EBRARZE2H
TEE AR & B S R 7535 -

RAEMBRRALARB ZHEEEELZ
5If e

B MKIER BB TSR
HER([FEVHREEL]])

RAEE  ARERBEEGHNAR([E
BEAMNg DABEMZEREXREERZ
Rl k([ BBV HHEER]) -

2

BAETRAFEIIRR
EEEBREER
FTR(ETR)

B (R BRES %
ZEE)-REEN
Ef&([‘f%ﬁﬁ%#&ua%%z
ZEg)-RESNR
BE(ERBRERE FA

BN EEREE

BBMBHREERNFELR
EELEBBRHNRS
fror sy B2

SIHER|E 9%

ZEE)-RBE 4R RERMEERE
REEEHRER
HigEmE

RinFr 2B RS ERH A g5 HRE S

FETHRRE RV BRI RERZEHTT
TIELWEXE’% o Fitt - BALEH AT
R e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e VSR

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE_ZEN\F+_A=1+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2.

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(H HKFRSs ”) (Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
standards, amendments or interpretations that have been issued but are
not yet effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs!
HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements?
HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs?
HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements?
HKAS 32 & 1 Puttable Financial Instruments and
(Amendments) Obligations Arising on Liquidation?
HKAS 39 (Amendment) Eligible Hedged Items?
HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27 Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary,
(Amendments) Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate?
HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Vesting Conditions and Cancellations?
HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations?
HKFRS 7 (Amendment) Improving Disclosures about
Financial Instruments?
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments?
HK(IFRIC) = Int 9 & Embedded Derivatives*

HKAS 39 (Amendments)

HK(IFRIC) = Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes®

HK(FRIC) — Int 15 Agreements for the Construction of
Real Estate?

HK(IFRIC) - Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in
a Foreign Operation®

HK(IFRIC) = Int 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to
Owners?

HK(IFRIC) - Int 18 Transfer of Assets from Customers’

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009 except
the amendments to HKFRS 5, effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2009

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009

4 Effective for annual periods ending on or after 30 June 2009

E Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 October 2008
7 Effective for transfers on or after 1 July 2009
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e VSR

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE_ZTT\F+_A=+—HALFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
<”HKFRSS”) (Continued)

The application of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the Group’s accounting
for business combination for which the acquisition date is on or after 1
January 2010. HKAS 27 (Revised) will affect the accounting treatment
for changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of the
other new and revised standards, amendments or interpretations will
have no material impact on the results and the financial position of the
Group.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis, except for investment properties and certain
financial instruments which are measured at fair values, as explained in
the accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company (its
subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated income statement from the effective date
of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

B REE T BB
258 ([ & BRI RS £A )
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BERASEHUBERRARR T —FF—A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE-_ZE)\E+-_A=1+—RIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)
Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those used
by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are
presented separately from the Group's equity therein. Minority interests
in the net assets consist of the amount of those interests at the date of
the original business combination and the minority’s share of changes
in equity since the date of the combination. Losses applicable to the
minority in excess of the minority’s interest in the subsidiary’s equity are
allocated against the interests of the Group except to the extent that
the minority has a binding obligation and is able to make an additional
investment to cover the losses.

Business combinations

The acquisition of businesses is accounted for using the purchase
method. The cost of the acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred
or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable to the
business combination. The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities that meet the conditions for recognition under
HKFRS 3 Business Combinations are recognised at their fair values at the
acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and initially
measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the business
combination over the Group's interest in the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised. If, after
reassessment, the Group's interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of
the business combination, the excess is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is initially measured

at the minority’s proportion of the net fair value of the assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary
On acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary, goodwill is measured
at the aggregate of the carrying amounts of identified assets and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any excess of the consideration over the
net assets acquired.

Goodwiill
Gooadwill arising on acquisitions prior to 1 January 2005

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of net assets and operations of
another entity for which the agreement date is before 1 January 2005
represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's interest
in the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the relevant
acquiree at the date of acquisition.

For previously capitalised goodwill arising on acquisitions of net assets
and operations of another entity after 1 January 2001, the Group has
discontinued amortisation from 1 January 2005 onwards, and such
goodwill is tested for impairment annually, and whenever there is an
indication that the cash generating unit to which the goodwiill relates
may be impaired (see the accounting policy below).

Gooawill arising on acquisitions on or after 1 January 2005

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business for which the agreement
date is on or after 1 January 2005 represents the excess of the cost of
acquisition over the Group's interest in the fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the relevant business at the
date of acquisition. Such goodwill is carried at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses.

Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is presented
separately in the consolidated balance sheet.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e VSR

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE_ZEN\F+_A=1+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Goodwill (Continued)
Gooawill arising on acquisitions on or after 1 January 2005
(Continued)
For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising from an
acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating units, or
groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, and whenever
there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a financial year, the cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of
that financial year. When the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is
allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
unit first, and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis
of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised directly in the consolidated income statement. An
impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Interest in associate
An associate is an entity over which the investor has significant influence
and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture.

The results and assets and liabilities of the associates are incorporated
in these consolidated financial statements using the equity method

of accounting. Under the equity method, investments in associates

are carried in the consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted for
post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the net assets of the
associate, less any identified impairment loss. When the Group's share
of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in that associate
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of
the Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. An additional share of losses

is provided for and a liability is recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of that associate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e VSR

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE_ZEN\F+_A=1+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Interest in associate (Continued)
Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group, profits
and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
relevant associate.

Joint ventures

Jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment of a separate
entity in which venturers have joint control over the economic activity of
the entity are referred to as jointly controlled entities.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities are
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting. Under the equity method, investments in jointly
controlled entities are carried in the consolidated balance sheet at cost
as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the net
assets of the jointly controlled entities, less any identified impairment
loss. When the Group'’s share of losses of a jointly controlled entity
equals or exceeds its interest in that jointly controlled entity (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group's net investment in the jointly controlled entity), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. An additional share
of losses is provided for and a liability is recognised only to the extent
that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of that jointly controlled entity.

When a group entity transacts with a jointly controlled entity of the
Group, profits or losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
interest in the jointly controlled entity.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold and services
provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts and sales
related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when goods are delivered
and title has passed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e VSR

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE_ZTT\F+_A=+—HALFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)
Service income is recognised when services are provided. Payments
that are related to service not yet rendered are deferred and shown as
deferred income in consolidated balance sheet.

Entrustment fees arising from arrangements for third party operators
to operate the same business as the Group are recognised in the
consolidated income statement in equal instalments over the
entrustment periods.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the terms of the relevant leases.

Interest income from a financial asset, including financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, is accrued on a time basis, by reference to
the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable,
which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s
net carrying amount.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes
(other than freehold land and construction in progress) are stated at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property, plant
and equipment (other than freehold land and construction in progress)
over their estimated useful lives and after taking into account of their
estimated residual value, using the straight-line method.

Freehold land is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if
any.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e VSR

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE_ZTT\F+_A=+—HALFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Construction in progress includes property, plant and equipment in
the course of construction for production or for its own use purposes.
Construction in progress is carried at cost less any recognised impairment
loss. Construction in progress is classified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended
use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property
assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the item) is included in the consolidated
income statement in the year in which the item is derecognised.

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation.

On initial recognition, investment properties are measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair values using
the fair value model. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of investment property are included in profit or loss for the period
in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in the consolidated income statement in the year in which
the item is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e VSR

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE_ZEN\F+_A=1+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leasing
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease

transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.

All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the consolidated
income statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or loss

on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits
received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating lease
are recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a
straight-line basis.

Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are charged as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Leasehold land and building

The land and building elements of a lease of land and building are
considered separately for the purpose of lease classification, unless

the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
building elements, in which case, the entire lease is generally treated as
a finance lease and accounted for as property, plant and equipment. To
the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably,
leasehold interests in land are accounted for as operating leases except
for those that are classified and accounted for as investment properties
under the fair value model.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e VSR

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-_ZEN\E+_A=+—BHILEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies
In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and
on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss

in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in
profit or loss for the period.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign operations are translated
into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars)

at the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date, and their
income and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for
the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period,
in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised as a
separate component of equity (the translation reserve). Such exchange
differences are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the
foreign operation is disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on or after 1 January
2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and

retranslated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date.

Exchange differences arising are recognised in the translation reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e VSR

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE_ZTT\F+_A=+—HALFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Government grants
Government grants are recognised as income over the periods necessary
to match them with the related costs. Grants related to expense items
are recognised in the same period as those expenses are charged in the
consolidated income statement and are reported separately as other
income.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Funds as required under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance and the
Labour Standards Law (as amendment) in Taiwan and the PRC municipal
government retirement scheme, are charged as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing
benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method, with
actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date.
Actuarial gains and losses which exceed 10% of the greater of the
present value of the Group’s pension obligations and the fair value of
plan assets are amortised over the expected average remaining working
lives of the participating employees. Past service cost is recognised
immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested, and
otherwise is amortised on a straight-line basis over the average period
until the amended benefits become vested.

The amount recognised in the consolidated balance sheet represents
the present value of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for
unrecognised actuarial gains and losses and unrecognised past service
cost, and as reduced by the fair value of plan assets. Any asset resulting
from this calculation is limited to unrecognised actuarial losses and past
service cost, plus the present value of available refunds and reductions in
future contributions to the plan.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e VSR

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-_ZEN\E+_A=+—BHILEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated income
statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax

is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable profit, and
is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries, associates, and interests in joint
ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance
sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset
to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised. Deferred
tax is charged or credited to profit or loss, except when it relates to
items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred
tax is also dealt with in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e VSR

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE_ZTT\F+_A=+—HALFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
expenditure is recognised only if it is anticipated that the development
costs incurred on a clearly-defined project will be recovered through
future commercial activity. The resultant asset is amortised on a
straight-line basis over its useful life, and carried at cost less subsequent
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible asset is
the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when the intangible
asset first meets the recognition criteria. Where no internally-generated
intangible asset can be recognised, development expenditure is charged
to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible asset
is reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets acquired
separately.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
calculated using the weighted average method.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the balance
sheet when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or

loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e VSR

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE_ZTT\F+_A=+—HALFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets
The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the three
categories, including financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial assets. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace. The accounting policies adopted in respect of each
category of financial assets are set out below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss represents financial
assets held for trading.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the
near future; or

e itis a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments that
the Group manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

e itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging
instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e VSR

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE_ZTT\F+_A=+—HALFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)
At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value recognised directly in profit or loss in the
year in which they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
excludes any dividend or interest earned on the financial assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. At
each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including trade and other receivables, pledged bank deposit
and bank balances) are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see accounting
policy on impairment loss on financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured are measured at cost less any identified impairment
losses at each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets below).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e VSR

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE_ZTT\F+_A=+—HALFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets
Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at each
balance sheet date. Financial assets are impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows
of the financial assets have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:
o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or
o default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade and other
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are
subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include

the Group's past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period ranging from one to six months, observable changes in national
or local economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the
asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in profit or loss in subsequent
periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e VSR

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE_ZEN\F+_A=1+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment
loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade and other
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of
an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss. When a receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment losses
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what

the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will not be
reversed in profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in
the assets of the group after deducting all of its liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over

the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of
the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

86  Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited Annual Report 2008

%BZ

%%ﬁ%@ﬁ%ﬁ%’ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%#%ﬁ
B - HEE 5 R AR S BEE
%W@°%ﬁ$2$ﬁﬁ%“ C RIE R B
R o BRI R AR E - RN R
BRMEH o R 12 Bl B A M B 2 5RAE - RIGH
UNCE

SIRBHERAF B2 2REE @ MBERE
HEREREIRD - MR A] SR RE
BREREZEMHEBME  MBTERER
MEBREREEED  EROREERE
ERMETSEARRYEERREZRE

B RAR E 2 R ERIAT B 4
R BT -

THEERRTER
HEFETERETSMABERRAT
B B TANRHNEARSBREER
BATEY TEHHE -

BATAREREEEERNSELE (KK
HArERE) ZEMEH -

- =8~
ERNEERATE SRR EREKARRE
MHES MBS 2% - BRNERE
BRI eRABERFHR(ER) B Y
BIfETARRR SN R -

BRI IRER B R EERER



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e VSR

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BHE_ZT\F+_A=+—HLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Financial liabilities
The Group's financial liabilities including trade and other payables are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash

flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of a financial asset,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss

that had been recognised directly in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise

the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for
proceeds received.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in
the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and
the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e VSR

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE_ZEN\F+_A=1+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Share based payment transactions
Equity-settled share based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees
The fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair
value of share options granted at the grant date is expensed on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period or recognised as an expense in
full at the grant date when the share options granted vest immediately,
with a corresponding increase in equity (share options reserve).

At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact
of the revision of the estimates during the vesting period, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to share
options reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share premium.
When the share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in
share options reserve will be transferred to retained profits.

Impairment losses on tangible assets (other than
goodwill)

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts
of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any indication

that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If the recoverable
amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e VSR

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BHE_ZT\F+_A=+—HLFE

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below.

Estimated impairment of trade receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group takes
into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition). Where the actual future
cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise.
As at 31 December 2008, the carrying amount of trade receivable

is approximately HK$65,302,000 (2007: HK$59,351,000), net of
allowance for doubtful debts of approximately HK$2,963,000 (2007:
HK$1,767,000).

5. REVENUE

Revenue represents (i) the net amount received and receivables for
goods sold by the Group to outside customers which is stated net of
sales returns and allowances, (i) service income from provision of skin
treatments, beauty and SPA services and (iii) entrustment fee income for
the year, and is analysed as follows:

Sales of goods EmiHE
Service income BRAFUA
Entrustment fee income ZreeE s
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H2ERAER)NEZ G RRBERER
B BENREEZ R REEER) ZEHE
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A=+—H B3 ERERZEEEN A
65,302,000 7T (= ZZ+ 4 59,351,000
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2008 2007
—sENF —EELF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&xT FHET
575,491 430,416
16,693 16,914
517 2,817
592,701 450,147
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e VSR

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-ZZT)\F+-_A=1+—HILFE

6. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS
Geographical segments
The Group's operations are located in the PRC, Taiwan, Hong Kong,
Malaysia and Macau.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and contribution to segment results
and segment assets and liabilities by geographic segments based on
customers’ location, irrespective of the origin of the goods/services, is
presented below:

E QIS S RE AL

b3 2 55
A& B 7 F AR BARE

F5 R P s BORPT o

B

REBIRET P AN E 2 3855 & (T
g/ REIR) 8D 2 A - B
BZBERARDFEERBEZINT

PRC Taiwan Others Total

HE AR =)= Hith Mgt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FEx FExT FExT

For the year ended HEZTTN\F
31 December 2008 +-A=1+—H
IHEE

Revenue WA 436,516 146,782 9,403 592,701

Segment results DEEE 255,201 74,907 (10,542) 319,566
Unallocated corporate expenses REBECARSH (30,982)

Unallocated income REEE 19,893

Profit before taxation PR A AT F 308,477
Income tax expense FTERiFAX (69,898)

Profit for the year REEZHF 238,579
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e VSR

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BHE_ZZN\F+_A=+—HLFE

6. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS 6. 1% NHI 3 H )

(Continued)

et

Geographical segments (Continued) hig 56 (4)
Consolidated balance sheet AREEEBEX
PRC Taiwan Others Total
KB =) | Hite et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FTHERT FET TET
Assets BE
Segment assets DEEE 315,898 140,542 9,626 466,066
Unallocated corporate assets AERAREE 560,160
Consolidated total assets RAEBEE 1,026,226
Liabilities afE
Segment liabilities HEEE 51,373 47,794 1,921 101,088
Unallocated corporate liabilities AERARAE 68,731
Consolidated total liabilities ReEaE 169,819
Other information H &R
Capital expenditure e 18,280 15,017 2,130 35,427
Depreciation of property, THE - B5Rk
plant and equipment HETE 10,321 4,702 2,108 17,131
Release of prepaid lease BEERTH
payments HEXK 275 - - 275
Loss (gain) on disposal of HEREE -
property, plant and equipment % S A&
EiE(s) 3,100 (17,953) 154 (14,699)
(Write back of) allowance for REFE(EE)
obsolete inventories B (1,501) (82) 88 (1,495)
Impairment loss on B SRR
trade receivables REEE 13,963 1,280 - 15,243
Increase in fair value of WEME
investment properties N RIER I = 15 - 15
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A PERERN T

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE-_EZN\E+-_A=+—HIEE

6. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS 6. FRKHIE D E @)

(Continued)

Geographical segments (Continued) o35 25 BB (48)
PRC Taiwan Others Total
alEipN 3 a4 Hil BEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAET FAET FAET
For the year ended HEZTTLHF
31 December 2007 +=-A=+—8H
HFE
Revenue LN 316,808 126,837 6,502 450,147
Segment results DEEE 174,024 44,732 (5,198) 213,558
Unallocated corporate expenses  REFEARISH (11,997)
Unallocated income REEE 6,754
Share of loss of an associate e — K E A A
&8 (373)
Share of profit of FEE—RHR
a jointly controlled entity B ERREN 87
Profit before taxation MR R BV A 208,029
Income tax expense PRS2 (29,248)
Profit for the year REE ) F 178,781
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A PERERN T

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE-_EZN\E+-_A=+—HIEE

6. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS 6. 5K DEB )

(Continued)

Geographical segments (Continued) o35 25 BB (48)
Consolidated balance sheet EEEREX
PRC Taiwan Others Total
alEipN 3 A Htt waEr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FAET FAET
Assets BE
Segment assets DEEE 291,155 131,218 10,666 433,039
Unallocated corporate assets RBEAREE 599,275
Consolidated total assets IREHAE 1,032,314
Liabilities afE
Segment liabilities HEEE 58,448 45,728 1,824 106,000
Unallocated corporate liabilities AERARAE 10,663
Consolidated total liabilities FEHER 116,663
Other information H &R
Capital expenditure e 44,821 4,408 4,549 53,778
Depreciation of property, THE - B5Rk
plant and equipment HETE 11,461 4,930 1,131 17,522
Release of prepaid lease payments %[0 &5 A i E % 252 - - 252
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, HE&EREE « Fiis R
plant and equipment i () i (884) 3) 29 (858)
Gain on disposal of HE R E M
investment properties - (1,199) - (1,199)
(Write back of) allowance for BREFE (BE)RE
obsolete inventories (866) 809 56 1)
Impairment loss on B SRR
trade receivables REEE 1,401 784 - 2,185
Increase in fair value of BEMERFAELM
investment properties - 50 - 50
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e VSR

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BHE_ZZN\F+_A=+—HLFE

6. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS
(Continued)
Business segments
For management purposes, the Group is currently organised into 2
operating divisions — (i) sale of cosmetic products and provision of
beauty services and (i) leasing of investment properties. In the opinion
of the directors, the leasing of investment properties are not considered
as the principal activity of the Group, and accordingly, the income from
this segment is not included as revenue.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue by business segments is presented
below:

6. 75 NIbiE B

%iﬁz/'\u
REEENME

C REEIR D BMIEE A

FI— () B D E mm MR =T RS LA K (i)
LR EME - EERAE - LHEEMEY
PRERNEBEZER - Bt - REKHH
ZWATETAZEEEENA o

REBIRER D EEID

D ZWADHTIAT

Revenue Other income
WA Hitrza
2008 2007 2008 2007
—E2E)N\F e —EENF ZETHF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx FET TER FHT
Cosmetic products and EREMR
beauty services e 592,701 450,147 = -
Investment properties KEYE - - 195 4,942
Others Hib - - 58,027 27,519
592,701 450,147 58,222 32,461

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment assets
and capital expenditure analysed by the business segments in which the
assets are included:

REEMEXRB D& D 2D BEEREE
NERFSIANWT

Carrying amount
of segment assets

Capital expenditure

DHEEREE BARX
2008 2007 2008 2007
ZEENF ZEELE —EENF —EELE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET TET FAT

Cosmetic products and EREMR

beauty services e 461,580 428,495 35,427 53,778
Investment properties HEME 4,486 4,544 = -
466,066 433,039 35,427 53,778
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iR E IR R M
For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE-ZTT)/\F+-_A=+-—HLFE

/. OTHER INCOME

Interest on bank deposits
Rental income from
investment properties
Rental income from
other properties and equipment
Financial refunds (note)
Increase in fair value of
investment properties
Foreign exchange gain
Gain on held-for-trading investments
Gain on disposal of an associate
Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Gain on disposal of
investment properties
Write back of obsolete inventories
Others

RITERFE
KEREMEZ
THe e
REEMAEER
wz He s
TR AR (M RE)
REYZE N TEIEM

FE 52
FEEBR AR
L — 5B 2 A RS

HETBE - BiZ kBl

HEREME W
REFE#MD
Hit

Note: Pursuant to the local practice of the finance bureau of the provinces
in which certain of the PRC subsidiaries operate, the PRC subsidiaries
will receive financial refunds in the form of government grants by way
of negotiation with the relevant finance bureau with reference to the
percentage of income and other taxes paid. These financial refunds are
treated as tax exempted by such finance bureaus. However, the refunds

and the tax exemption treatment thereof are subject to review annually. It is

therefore uncertain if these subsidiaries will continue to be eligible for such
financial refunds and the tax exemption treatment thereof in the future.

z

/|

fib U 2
2008 2007
=t 2 A% —TTE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FHET
6,583 6,754
180 3,693
4,745 3,839
2,170 9,659
15 50
25,371 -
2,617 4,102
- 1,024
14,699 858
- 1,199
1,495 1
347 1,282
58,222 32,461

Mzt REPBEKREETHBEARGEMERD

Z B BER PP ER AN E OB B - o BRPENY
BARSNEABYBEMIERR 25
Wes B Bt SO R B B 0 LB BT
B2 ST RN - ZEMBRRK
WEEZ S I REPIEH 2 BIR A R B
B R - ARERERBRRFBAE
FEH - At TREBREZSMBEARAR
BRGEESERETEXEYBRREHEA
RS

BAXENNEBERLIT —FT)\FER

95



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e VSR

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BHE_ZZN\F+_A=+—HLFE

8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The charge comprises: XHEIE
Taxation in PRC and Taiwan AR B A Pz [ & Ve 2 18
Current year REE
Underprovision in prior years MEFEREDR
Deferred tax (note 27): RIERIA (M7527):
Current year REE
Attributable to a change in tax rate Rz &
Dividend withholding tax A& FEFOEL

On 16 March 2007, the PRC promulgated the Law of the PRC on

Enterprise Income Tax (the “New Law”) by Order No. 63 of the President

of the PRC. On 6 December 2007, the State Council of the PRC issued
Implementation Regulation of the New Law. Under the New Law and
Implementation Regulation, the Enterprise Income Tax rate of the
Group's subsidiaries in the PRC was reduced from 27% or 33% to 25%
from 1 January 2008 onwards. The relevant tax rate for the Group's
subsidiaries in the PRC is 25% (2007: 27% or 33%).

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, certain of the
Group's PRC subsidiaries are exempted from PRC income tax for two
years starting from their first profit-making year, followed by a 50%
reduction for the next three years (the “Tax Holiday”). The Tax Holiday
will continue on the implementation of the New Law using the new tax
rate of 25%.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in Taiwan, certain of the
Group's Taiwan subsidiaries are eligible to certain tax concessions.
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HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
37,667 26,772
1,537 233
39,204 27,005
(1,566) 1,625

= 618

(1566) 2243
32,260 -
69,898 29,248
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ZEBRBRR -

REEBEMEGIRAG - AEEETEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE_TZEN\EF+T_A=+—HILFE

8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 8.

On 26 June 2008, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed the
Revenue Bill 2008 which reduced corporate profits tax rate from 17.5%
to 16.5% effective from the year of assessment 2008/2009. Therefore,
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2007: 17.5%) of the

estimated assessable profit for the year.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the Company
and its subsidiaries have no assessable profit for both years.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before
taxation per the consolidated income statement as follows:

Profit before taxation

Tax at domestic rates applicable to
profits of taxable entities in
the countries concerned
Tax effect of expenses not
deductible for tax purpose
Tax effect of income not
taxable for tax purpose
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised
Tax effect of tax concession
provided to a Taiwan subsidiary
Tax effect of tax exemption
granted to a PRC subsidiary
under the Tax Holiday
Underprovision in prior years
Increase in opening deferred tax
liability resulting from
a decrease in applicable tax rate
Dividend withholding tax
Deferred tax liabilities arising on
undistributed profits of
PRC subsidiaries from
1 January 2008

Tax charge for the year

BR A5 AT A

R ERNEEEZG
HEWREFE
THIR M2 REEE

BAERBIW S 2 B &

RERTIEE B 2 S &

BT —RAEWNBRRHNBERZ
MGTE

B —KP AN EA T
m%ﬂ%%%ﬁﬁ%%Zﬁ%%%

BEFEREBTE
i R R T 8 M B 8

AATEIERTE & &2
A& F FEFO R
AfEMBATE SN \E—A—H
AR Z R s FmEEZ
FERIES (F

FARIEBEZ N

Note: As the Group operates in several different tax jurisdictions, separate
reconciliations using the domestic tax rate in each individual tax jurisdiction

have been aggregated and presented.

B
:EEJ\ix\H_+/\EI ' %/%I/f@@i@
(ZEENFRAEHEZR) - ARIFIEFE
M17.5% FHEE165% B -ZTF)\/—F
TEAFRREERER - MUt - BEFEH

TR E AR F E AR ERRUE R R 16.5%
(ZBT+F 1 175%):18 -
AR R R REM B A REMREFE Y ERE
RHEA - BT ER B AT S TE LB -
FERBIES B4R A WS R TR RS 7
SRR ¢
2008 2007
—EEN\F s
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHETT
308,477 208,029
89,154 66,429
11,264 9,026
(7.325) (5,769)
10,578 4,593
(7,859) (6,614)
(60,803) (39,268)
1,537 233
= 618
32,260 -
1,092 -
69,898 29,248
B3 0 AR AEBER S ETERGAFEE S L

55 LR EEBBR S RDEAER S R X
EHZ B HRE AL 27 -
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HE-_TZ)\E+-_A=+—HLEE

9. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Profit for the year has been arrived at
after charging (crediting):

Staff costs:
— directors’ emoluments
(note 10)
— other staff costs

Retirement benefits scheme

contributions, excluding directors:

— defined contribution plans
(note 24 (b))

— defined benefit plan
(note 24 (a))

Share based payments
Equity-settled share based
payments

Total staff costs

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Release of prepaid lease payments
Auditors’ remuneration
Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Research and development costs
Write back of obsolete inventories
Cost of inventories recongised as
an expense
Net exchange (gain) loss
Impairment losses on trade receivables
Impairment losses on
available-for-sale investments

RS HE IR (FTA)
THIFRIA

BITAHA

—EEMe
(FF5E10)

—Ef B THRA

RRREFIFH BN -
TBEESE:

— RS

(KiEE24(0))

— RS

(MtsE24(a))

BRI
BARS S LRI

BT AR

TEE  BHM
REEITE

O A A HEER

ZEE &
HETHE - MiH5 Kk
JEdES

L IDWIN

PRET EH M
BHERAMRYT 2
FERA

FE 5, (Uezs ) 18 F5

B 5 RE R ER TR B

A ER AR EEE
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2008
—2ENF
HK$'000
T

14,325
86,684

101,009

9,509

866

10,375

245

111,629

17,131
275
3,435

(14,699)
1,714
(1,495)

86,102
(25,371)
15,243

3,200

2007
ZETF
HK$'000
FAT

1,560
71,476

73,036

7,062

870

7,932

101

81,069

17,522
252
3,508

(858)
1,693
(1)

77,573
180
2,185
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
BHE_ZT\F+_A=+—HLFE

10. DIRECTORS" EMOLUMENTS 10. ESME
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the seven (2007: seven) ENSENER(ZEELF  +R)EEY
directors were as follows: e :
For the year ended 31 December 2008 BE-SEZNF+=-A=+—HLEE
Mrs. Chen
Dr. Tsai Mr. Lee Dr. Su Dr. Su Mr. Yeh Shieh  Mr. Chen Total
YenYu  MingTa Chien Cheng  ShHsyu LiangFei  Shu Chen Ching 2008

it
FREME TREEE WREML FERED XRWEL REMDLT  EREE SRS
HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
TAR  FER AR FER TR FER  TER AR

Fees ws 1,000 700 600 600 20 20 48 2,988
Other emoluments Eg
Salaries and other benefits ek
EthigH| 15 340 305 664 - - - 1,324
Contributions to retirement BINERET 2
benefits scheme #m - 6 5 2 - - - 13

Discretionary and performance BV R ESE
related incentive payments AR

(Note) BElCiED) 4,000 - 3,000 3,000 - - - 10,000
Total emoluments HiemsE 5,015 1,046 3,910 4,266 20 20 48 14,325
For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE-TTLF+A=1T—HILFE

Mrs. Chen
Dr. Tsai Mr. Lee Dr.Su Dr. Su Mr. Yeh Shieh  Mr. Chen Total
Yen Yu Ming Ta Chien Cheng Sh Hsyu Liang Fei ~ Shu Chen Ching 2007
@t

ERIBT ZUENE REIBT FSFARL RRERE RAMPL:  #RRE TR
HK$'000  HK$'000 ~ HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEr  TEr  TAR  TEAT  TEr TEr  TAR TR

Fees we 1,000 700 600 600 20 20 48 2,988
Other emoluments Hindle
Salaries and other benefits e REMEH 14 325 29 805 - - - 1436
Contributions to retirement BINMERIEHE
benefits scheme =3 - 17 15 4 - - - 36

Discretionary and performance B9 R #&3R
related incentive payments HhIRENTE

(Note) (P3E) - - - - - _ _ _
Waiver of fees EL0En (1,000) (700) (600) (600) - - - (2,90)
Total emoluments We e 14 342 307 809 20 20 48 1,560

BAXEYNEBERLIE —TTN\FFH 99
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE_ZEN\F+_A=1+—HILFE

10. DIRECTORS" EMOLUMENTS (continued)
Note: Dr. Tsai, Mr. Lee, Dr. Su Chien Cheng and Dr. Su Sh Hsyu are entitled
to a management bonus aggregately not exceed 15% of the audited
consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of the Company in respect
of that financial year of the Group, as recommended by the Remuneration
Committee.

For the year ended 31 December 2007, each of the executive directors
voluntarily agreed to waive their entitlement to certain remuneration of
approximately HK$2.9 million. No directors waived any emoluments in
the year ended 31 December 2008.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office during the year ended 31 December 2007 and 2008.

11.EMPLOYEES" EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, three
of them (2007: Nil) were directors of the Company whose emoluments

are included in the disclosures in note 10 above. The emoluments of the
two (2007: five) individuals were as follows:

Salaries and other benefits %ﬁ%&ﬁi\‘rﬁlﬁﬂ

Contributions to retirement RNEFET SR
benefits scheme

Share based payments expense SRR

Discretionary and performance 1% R /IR H A RN AT 2

related incentive payments
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10. E50<

11.

(43
NVRW:=Y)

M REFHEZESZES  £8+ =%
& HERIS T RESFEE T ERKEE
HFTBBARARRELAEE GBI IRF
BREEEEZEAREMN15% 2 BRI
4T o

HE _ZEZ+HF+_-_A=+—"HILFE -
BRTESTERRERERDE THESH
2,900,000 8T - HE-ZEZEZNF+ = A
“t+—HLFE  BESERECAHE -

REE-_ZEZ+FER_ZTETN\F+ A
=+ —HLFE  AEBERERE S
& (ERINBEAEE R E R 2 R0 ok BB
1 -

EEME
AEEREERFTMATER=2(ZFZF
+tF B)RARRES BEZHEHE
EREXHIFF10HE - S TMA(ZEE+
F:RB)ALZEBSHT -

2008 2007
—E2TN\F —ETERF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TAET
3,919 6,223

31 36

61 70

372 1,545

4,383 7,874
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE-ZTT)/\F+-A=t+—HILFE

11.EMPLOYEES" EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

The emoluments of the two (2007: five) within the following bands:

HK$0 - HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000

12.DIVIDENDS

Dividends recognised as

distribution during the year:
Interim dividend, paid

— HK$0.050 per share

(2007: HK$0.030 per share)
Interim special dividend, paid

— Nil per share

(2007: HK$0.020 per share)
Final dividend, paid

— HK$0.042 per share for 2007

(2007: HK$0.030 per share for 2006)

Final special dividend, paid
— HK$0.058 per share for 2007
(2007: HK$0.0125 per share
for 2006)

ZTEILE 1,000,000 7T

1,000,001/ 7C£ 1,500,000 70
1,500,001/ 022,000,000/ 70
2,500,001 7T 23,000,000/ 7T
3,000,001 L £3,500,000/8 7T

FRERB RN IRZIH -

BR AR B A — & A%0.05078 7T
(ZZEZ+F : §i%0.030/8T)

B A A BRRF RIS FI — SRR T
(ZZZ+F : §%0.020%8T)

EYREEN: el
—ZZETLFER0.042ETT
—EELF ZEERFER
0.030/%&7T)
EYREER S
— 2T FFAR0.058F T
(ZZBELF  —EETXFER
0.0125/%87T)

11.

EEMNE @)
Ma (-4 BR)BSTMALZEH
SNTFLUTHE :

2008 2007
—EENF —ETF
Headcount Headcount

A" A
- 1
- 3
1 —
1 —
- 1
. J&A

2008 2007

—EEN\F ZETF

HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
100,032 60,000
- 40,000

84,000 60,000
116,000 25,000
300,032 185,000

BAXENNEBERLT —FT)\FER
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BE_ZEN\F+_A=1+—HILFE

12.DIVIDENDS (continued)
The final dividend of HK$0.0335 per share (2007: HK$0.0420 per share
for 2007), amounting to approximately HK$67,021,000 have been
proposed by the directors and is subject to approval by the shareholders
in general meeting.

No final special dividend (2007: HK$0.0580 per share for 2007) has
been proposed by the directors after the balance sheet date.

13.EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to the
equity holders of the Company is based on the profit attributable to
the equity holders of the Company of approximately HK$238,477,000
(2007: HK$178,707,000) and on the weighted average number of
2,000,310,980 (2007: 2,000,000,000) ordinary shares of the Company
in issue during the year.

No diluted earnings per share has been presented because the exercise

price of the Company’s options was higher than the average market
price of the shares for both years.

14.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

FAIR VALUE AFE
At 1 January 2007 RZZEZLF—-H—H
Exchange realignment (R
Disposal during the year FALE
Increase in fair value recognised in R A WERERZ
the consolidated income statement AFEIEN
At 31 December 2007 R-ETHF+-A=+—H
Exchange realignment EREH%
Increase in fair value recognised in REF AW RERZ
the consolidated income statement NFEE NN
At 31 December 2008 RZEENFE+ZA=+—H
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12.

13.

R elIC)
EFEBIRNTARHRMER0.0335F (=
TELF  ZETEFEH0.042087T)
4 #4967,021,0005 7T  HEEFREARE
RSP o

REERE  ESHEESRNRBERIK
M =ZEZLF  —EZTLFFHHR0.0580%
JL) °

FHR&EF

AR R EEEREREF THIRIEAQR
% B8 B % F 49238,477,0008 7T ( —EE+

£ 1 178,707,000/ 7T ) A RA R F A pIREF
BB #1TE BA%E2,000,310,9800% ( —F =
+4F : 2,000,000,0000% )5+ -

HRARRRBETEESNRMEFEZE
PP mE - MY EZ25SREE AT -

14. REYE

HK$'000
TAET

162,228
(877)
(156,857)

50

4,544
(73)

15

4,486
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
The fair values of the Group’s investment properties at 31 December
2008 and 2007 have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried
out on that date by Messrs. Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited
and Euro-Asia Real Estate Appraisers Firm, respectively, independent
qualified professional valuers not connected with the Group. Both
Messrs. Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited and Euro-Asia Real Estate
Appraisers Firm are members of the Institute of Valuers, and have
appropriate qualifications and recent experiences in the valuation of
similar properties in the relevant locations. The valuation was arrived at
using the direct comparison approach by reference to market evidence
of recent transaction prices for similar properties in the same locations
and conditions.

All of the Group's property interests held under operating leases to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured using
the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as investment
properties.

The carrying value of investment properties shown above are situated on
freehold land outside Hong Kong.

14. I EYVZE )

AREFZREPER_EEN\ER_TT+
FHZAZ+—BZRAFEDRIRERSE
B E@EEs BLAEREEGEMBE
Hr & B 57 B8 B PR A 5] & Euro-Asia Real
Estate Appraisers FirmiE77 2 (1B B EES
oo B A & AT G EE R B BR A 7] K Euro-
Asia Real Estate Appraisers Firm13 & (& (& Al
22 (Institute of Valuers) 88 - AEAEE
1 BRIL A FHE AR R B 2 K
5o BEGERERLERET  DHE2E
Al RO R RABA M2 2 A B S ER T
GBS -

AEE G LT E RSB ERRA SR E A

BEZMEDERED  HURFEENXG
B WO BARINEREME -

iR EMEREEBRMLREBIRINZK
AKRELM -
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE-ZTZT)/\F+-_A=+—HILFE

15.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. ~"BE -« M5 N&iE

Leasehold Furniture,
Freehold improve-  Plantand Motor fixtures and Construction
land  Buildings ments machinery  vehicles equipment in progress Total
KA
KAKELH BF HEXR BERES nE RERRE ERIE L
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
T TR FiEx T TEx TR T TR
cost B
At 1 January 2007 RZEBLF
—A—H 24,154 135,275 60,453 28,052 6,120 49,762 554 304,370
Exchange realignment i 132 8,005 2,728 1,940 377 2219 1,280 16,681
Additions B - 30 9,5% 2,032 3,115 9,130 29,875 53,778
Disposals HE - (1,176) (9,223) (683) (2,581) (1,353) - (15,016)
At 31 December 2007 R-TZ+E
+-A=1+—H 24,286 142,134 63,554 31,341 7,031 59,758 31,709 359,813
Exchange realignment A% (12) 6,722 1,411 1,580 298 1,411 1,888 13,298
Additions IR - - 23,065 3,534 561 8,125 142 35,427
Disposals HE (8,635) (3,709)  (25,162)  (11,633) (1,886) (9,303) - (60,328)
Acquired on acquisition of NGt YNGS
subsidiaries (note 28) BA(MET28) - - - 768 - 300 - 1,068
Transfer R - 1,336 - - - - (1,336) -
At 31 December 2008 R-EEN\F
+-A=1+—H 15,639 146,483 62,868 25,590 6,004 60,291 32,403 349,278
DEPRECIATION wE
At 1 January 2007 RZZTLF
—A—HR - 24,953 43,784 20,671 3,668 37,815 - 130,891
Exchange realignment e - 1,287 1,949 1,500 181 1,600 - 6,517
Provided for the year ENEE - 3,246 7,066 1677 453 5,080 - 17,522
Eliminated on disposals R E R 3 - (463) (9,223) (489) (1,931) (1,036) - (13,142)
At 31 December 2007 RZTZ+E
+-A=1+—H - 29,023 43,576 23,359 2,371 43,459 - 141,788
Exchange realignment i 5 % - 1,051 1,157 1,241 118 894 - 4,461
Provided for the year ENEE - 3,514 5,568 1,657 729 5,663 - 17,131
Eliminated on disposals R ER - (1,192) (24,608) (9,843) (844) (8,184) - (44,671)
At 31 December 2008 RZEENE
~“R=+-H - 32,39 25,693 16,414 2,374 41,832 - 118,709
CARRYING VALUES REME
At 31 December 2008 R-EEN\F
+ZRA=1+-H 15,639 114,087 37,175 9,176 3,630 18,459 32,403 230,569
At 31 December 2007 RoZRLE+ A
=1+-A 24,286 113,111 19,978 7,982 4,660 16,299 31,709 218,025
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
BHE_ZT\F+_A=+—HALFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 15. NEhE ~ M5 M ek s )

The carrying values of buildings shown above are situated on: FEFEREMEMN A TS -
2008 2007
ZEBENF —ETLEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT

Land held in the PRC under AR BIAR PR A A 4

medium-term land use rights ElEEE ST S i 101,161 96,930
Freehold land in Taiwan REERE 2 KAFERE T 12,926 16,181
114,087 113,111
The above items of property, plant and equipment, other than FRIEBR IR - LT ENE - B5 KR EIA

construction in progress, are depreciated on a straight-line basis at the BRBERERATFERNE

following rates per annum:

Freehold land Nil KAZERE T i

Buildings 40 - 55 years 1gF 40—55%F

Leasehold improvements  The shorter of the unexpired period of MEMR TIERTH & & B I fd st o]
the lease and estimated useful life of FRFHIEI0FZ
3 to 10 years BREE

Plant and machinery 5-10 years [R5 [ e 5—10%F

Motor vehicles 3 -5 years AE 3—5%F

Furniture, fixtures and 2 - 15 years RE - KEREHE 2—15F

equipment

At 31 December 2007, certain plant and equipment with a total carrying R-ZEZLE+A=+—H - #REE

values of HK$1,798,000 were entrusted to the operators of the Group 1,798,000 L2 & T REEHEE LT

(note 20). Such entrustment of plant and equipment was terminated REE 2 E (MiEE20)  BRERKS R&E

during the year ended 31 December 2008. ZEFEREEZTTN\FE+_A=+—H

LIEFERELE -

BRAXENNEERLIE —TFT/\FFH 105



106

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A VSR
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BHE_ZT\F+_A=+—HALFE

16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

17.

The Group's prepaid lease payments

comprise leasehold lands
rights in the PRC under
medium-term land use rights

Analysed for reporting purposes as:
Non-current asset
Current asset

GOODWILL

COsT
At 1 January 2007
Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2007
Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2008

IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2007, 31 December
2007 and 31 December 2008

CARRYING VALUES
At 31 December 2008

At 31 December 2007

REEZ BRI HEERBER
B AR BRI R A 2

KA L
SRR :
FREE
RBEE
A
=
3

RZZFZLFF+—A=+—H
V& H A%

R-BENF+ZA=1+—H

A

16. Bt HBEER

2008
—EENF
HK$’000
FTHET

10,087

9,809
278

10,087

17. &

R-ZEBLHE-A—-R - ZFBLFE+ZA=+—-HK

—2E\F+=A=1—8

IRE{E
R-ZZBNE+ZA=+—H

R-ZFZLF+_A=1t—H
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2007
ZETEF
HK$'000
FHET

9,778

9,516
262

9,778

HK$'000
TAT

26,399
1,355

27,754
1,204

28,958

3,192

25,766

24,562
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

)

17.

18.

—EEN\F+_A=t+—HILFE

GOODW”_L (Continued)

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated to
an individual cash generating unit, namely, sale of cosmetic products
(CGU). The carrying amounts of goodwill as at 31 December 2008 and
2007 is allocated to this CGU.

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined based on

a value in use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management covering a five-
year period using a declining growth rate, and discount rate of 5%
(2007: 8%). This growth rate is based on the relevant industry growth
forecasts and does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for
the relevant industry. Another key assumption for the value in use
calculations relate to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which
include budgeted sales and gross margin, such estimation is based on
the unit’s past performance and management’s expectations for the
market development.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

Available-for-sale investments comprise:

Unlisted equity securities, at cost ELEMBRAFS - KA

The above unlisted investments represent investments in unlisted equity
securities issued by private entities incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands and Cayman Islands which are engaged in investment holding
and online health consultancy service respectively. They are measured at
cost less accumulated impairment at each balance sheet date because
the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that the fair values cannot
be measured reliably.

17.

18.

P ()

SRERAITS  HEESREERBELE
B (NEERER)  RCEENER
—EE A=A HEEAED
SRE MBS A B -

RAEeELBUNATKOSED RIEEREE
AHE - FENARREERCRENTEY
BRENRSRERD  UTHRERER
5%(—ZFZLF : 8%)ITREFHE - thiEK
KRBT RIGRIEA - METFIEBBRZ
HETEFORMEREX - EREEHES
FEz B AT ERREMFRSRA M
(BRBEHEEERENER)ARM - ARG
BRECELBM 2 BERRNEEEETS
R TEHETE -

AHEERE
A ERE R
2008 2007
—BENF —ETHF
HKS°000 HK$'000
FTHET THETT
5,926 9,126

LI ERIREERABEBARBEERMAS
BEEMMATL - DRI EREZR LS L2
R RS 2 A B BT EITIF L MARAE
FHERE - IR R FFLHREN G EHE
RNHEREER - KAREFRBA/ TR S
BERFE  BUZFHFLTRENSHEE
Rz AR REHRE & -
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-_ZT)\F+-_A=+—HILFE

19.INVENTORIES

Raw materials
Work in progress
Finished goods

R
HEm
Sk R

20.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables
Less: allowance for doubtful debts

Prepayments and deposits
Financial refunds receivable
Other receivables

Total trade and other receivables

B 5 YRR
B REREHE

BNFRRAE
FEMEA TR R
Ho At & YR K

B 5 MM EK AR A
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19. 7 &

2008
—BTN\F
HK$"000
TER

49,612

51,247

100,859

20. 25

Ko B At R BR K

2008
—E2T)N\F
HK$"000
FTEx

68,265

(2,963)

65,302
16,713

10,729

92,744

2007
ZETLF
HK$'000
FAT

35,735
2,354

32,928

71,017

2007
ZETF
HK$'000
FAT

61,118

(1,767)

59,351
14,064

9,834
15,722

98,971
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20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
The Group allows a credit period ranging from one to six months to its
trade customers. The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables
(net of allowance for doubtful debts) at the balance sheet date:

Within 180 days 180H A

181 days to 365 days 181HZ=365H
1 to 2 years 15826

Over 2 years 2F LA E

Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses an internal credit
system to assess the potential customer’s credit quality and defines
credit limits by customer. Limits to customers are reviewed twice a year.
89% (2007: 76%) of the trade receivables that are neither past due nor
impaired have the best credit attributable under the system used by the
Group as at 31 December 2008.

Included in the Group's trade receivable balance are debtors with
aggregate carrying amount of HK$7,410,000 (2007: HK$14,477,000)
which are past due at the balance sheet date for which the Group has
not provided for impairment loss. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances. The average age of these receivables is within 180
days (2007: within 180 days).

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired:

181 days to 365 days
1to 2 years
Over 2 years

181H %3650
1826
29 LA F

0. B 5 B H htr FEMLBRER ()

ZFE@ %ﬁfé%%}g ERNEAZEE
REERRRERER 2B S EKER
/T)\Eléﬁ DT

2008 2007
—BTNF —ETERF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTET TAET
57,892 44,874
3,828 5,096
3,246 7,391

336 1,990
65,302 59,351

BESARMESA - AEERBASEES
B i EEEF 2 EEEERREFET
EEHE BEFEEESFRIAMA - KT
ENE+-_A=1+—8 BEAEERAZ
EEHE  89%(ZFTT+F : 76% )L 5E
U BR R B I 0 R RE -

TAREE B S EWRRESR AN EEH
B8 HA 1 AN 52 B 0 AR SRR (B 5 18 2 FEUR
FEREEA $£7,410,0008 T ( — T4 ¢

14,477,000/%575) AEEIW TP ZEEH

FAEAMER - ZFRIRR 2 FHRRA

180H(=ZZ+%F : 180H)

EAHERREZE S RYSRRZ Rk -

2008 2007
—BTN\F —ETERF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TEx TAT
3,828 5,096
3,246 7,391

336 1,990

7.410 14,477

BAXENNEERLT —FT)\FER
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20.

—EEN\F+_A=t+—HILFE

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Since 2002, certain subsidiaries have entered into Assets Entrustment
Agreements with various operators. Pursuant to these agreements,
these subsidiaries and the operators agreed for the latter to manage and
operate the same business (the “Entrusted Assets”) as the subsidiaries,
including the provision of spa and beauty services, the sale of beauty
and skin care product, the provision of beauty training courses and

the provision of assistance by the subsidiaries to the operators in the
development of the franchise network. The appointments are effective
for period ranging from one to five years and the operators are required
to pay the subsidiaries an entrustment fee which is determined with
reference to the net asset value of the respective subsidiaries at the date
of the agreement. The operators are entitled to retain any profits and
are obligated to bear any losses, excluding the depreciation of property,
plant and equipment, arising from the operation of the Entrusted Assets
under the operators’ management and operation. The subsidiaries
retain the title to the property, plant and equipment. As security for the
operators’ obligations under the agreement, the operators are required
to place a security with the subsidiaries. The Group is not permitted to
repledge the collateral in the absence of default by the operators.

The impact of the assets entrustment agreements on the consolidated
financial statements are summarised as follows:

Carrying values of plant and R ERS LREREE
equipment entrusted

Entrustment fee income for the year
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HEIREspa MERR - HEZANEE
Ef - REEREFIRE LK B A A5
BEMBMBAEEE KEETHAE—=
1F  SEARNBRARSN —£2E5M
BARNIGZAREEFEE ZEALE
B KEEBRRBENER R HM
BIRESITEEEELENTMET - WAEEK
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s

2008 2007
—2TNF —ETLE
HK$'000 HK$'000
T it
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20.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 20. B 5 K A M e I AR R ()

At the balance sheet date, the following outstanding balances arising REEH  UTAREENEES RS
from the assets entrustment agreements with operators are included as

BEEZRANWGZSRE  RNEAEERERT

other receivables in the consolidated balance sheet: EE fib RIS BR X
2008 2007
—EENFE —ETF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FH&xT FHET
Entrustment fees receivables R EEEE A 960 3,686
Consideration receivables for MIEEEHEEERI
sale of assets (other than RIE (BHRRERIN)
plant and machinery) to the operators 1,862 1,990
2,822 5,676
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts RIRBEEH
2008 2007
—EENF —ERF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Balance at beginning of the year FHERR 1,767 2,300
Impairment losses recognised on R IEWER R IER < R B S8
receivables 15,327 3,502
Amounts written off as uncollectible A B BR Rz EiliiE £ 58 (14,047) (2,718)
Amounts recovered during the year FRABWEIEFE (84) (1,317)
Balance at end of the year FREEER 2,963 1,767

RIFEET SEMEBRERHIEE RS
2 FEURBR R AE SRS $£2,963,00008 L (= F
+ 4 11,767,000 7T) « NEBEWEREZF
A AR -

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually impaired
trade receivables with an aggregate balance of HK$2,963,000 (2007:
HK$1,767,000), which have been identified with financial difficulties.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

BAXEYNREARIE —TT/\FFH 1M1
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21.PLEDGED BANK DEPOSIT/BANK BALANCES
AND CASH
Pledged bank deposit
The pledged bank deposit is an interest-free deposit which represents
deposit pledged to bank to secure the obligation under the rental
agreement. The pledge will be released upon the termination of the
relevant rental agreement.

Bank balances and cash

Bank balances and cash comprises cash held by the Group and short-
term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.
The amounts bear interest at market rates which ranged from 0.36% to
2.86% per annum (2007: 0.18% to 5.27% per annum).

At 31 December 2008, the Group's bank deposits of US$22,970,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$178,031,000) (2007: HK$124,940,000)
was denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the
relevant group entity.

22.TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables H S EMNRR

Deposits from customers LY SE ik

Other tax payables HAth R IE

Other payables H A ERTAR R

Total trade and other payables B 5 R H M ER AR AR
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21. EERMIRITERRITEE N

BE

EEARTENR
EERRTERASCERTRITEREE R
#E TEEZERNREEFR - BRFER
BRHE MR LR ARRR -

RITEERES
RITHEFRRSPREASEMFRES KRE
HBEZEASARZ EEHRITER - 25X
RIEFFE036EE28EHE(ZTZT L
& FERRQABEES27E) o

RZZEZNF+ZA=+—80 %K%
R 17 17 3% 422,970,000 % 7t (HHE R
#9178,031,000 % 7t ) ( Z T T + F
124,940,000 7T) + Ty AR B B EE Y142
BEDIN EBE -

2. B 5 N E MR

2008 2007
—EENE —RELF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET T
14,035 21,813
25,730 25,389
9,998 12,743
56,216 30,363
105,979 90,308
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22.

23.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables at the balance sheet
date:

Within 180 days 180H A

181 days to 365 days 181HZ365H
1 to 2 years 15826

Over 2 years 2N

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 90 days. The Group
has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all
payables within the credit timeframe.

DEFERRED INCOME

Prepaid treatment fees FEREIRE

Deferred income represents the receipts via credit cards, cheques and
cash from sales of beauty services to customers and recognised in the
consolidated income statement upon provision of the services to the
customers.

22.85K

REEHR

H S BRK ()
B SRR ST ¢

2008
—EENF
HK$’000
FHT

13,814
199
22

14,035

== ]
Eﬁg 8 nn

2007
~“FTLF
HK$'000
FHT

21,795

2
16

21,813

ZFHEERRIOR - AEEER

M BREREIRIE - AR B B IR
RNREEERRA -

23, IRAEY ZS

2008

—E2T)N\F
HK$°000
FTEx

10,374

2007
ZETF
HK$'000
FAT

9,763

B IE AR PHEXTREMERER
T XERRSUIMZFIE - TRAEFIR
HERTSES AR & I an AR HERR o

BAXRENNEERLT

~BENEEH
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24 RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS
(a) Defined benefit plan

The Group's Taiwan subsidiaries participate in a central pension
scheme providing benefits to all employees in accordance with the
Labour Standards Law (as amended) in Taiwan. The Group has an
obligation to ensure that there are sufficient funds in the scheme
to pay the benefits earned. The Group currently contributes at 2%
of the total salaries as determined and approved by the relevant
government authorities. Under the schemes, the employees are
entitled to retirement benefits equals to two months’ salary for
each year of service for the first 15 years and one month’s salary
for each year of service following the 15 years, but not more than
45 months’ salary in aggregate on the attainment age of 60. No
other post-retirement benefits are provided.

The Group's net obligation in respect of the pension scheme

is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their service in the current and
prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine the present
value, and the fair value of any plan assets is deducted. The
calculation is performed by a qualified actuary using the projected
unit credit method. An actuarial valuation as at 31 December

2008 and 2007 was carried out by a qualified staff member of
PricewaterhouseCoopers Taiwan, who is a member of the Taiwan
Enrolled Pension Actuary. The actuarial valuation indicates that the
Group's obligations under this defined benefit retirement scheme
are 2% (2007: 15%) covered by the deposits paid with the Bank of
Taiwan, Ltd.
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(a) TEEAE
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24 RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS (Continued)
(a) Defined benefit plan (Continued)

U]

(ii)

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the
actuarial valuations were as follows:

rEEx
FHEIEETRHIm R
TS 218 IR E

Discount rate
Expected return on plan assets
Expected rate of salary increases

The actuarial valuation showed that the market value of plan
assets was HK$560,000 (2007: HK$1,282,000).

Amounts recognised in profit or loss in respect of the defined
benefit plans are as follows:

B IRIEARA
RSN N
AHEIEERYERE

Current service cost
Interest on obligation
Expected return on plan assets

(a) EFEBRIFHE

24, RIKERIEH Bl

i3

‘

=

() FIERAEEF

e

B

2008
—EENF

2.75%
1.50%
2.50%

HISEBRMT

3.50%
2.75%
2.50%

e EERT & & EMEA560,000
BIL(ZFT 4 1 1,282,00087T) °

(i)  MIEz R L E BE R M AT B HERR

SEELT

2008
—BTN\F
HK$°000
FTRET
407
495

(36)

866

2007
—ETLF
HK$'000
TET
446
478

(54)

870

BAXENNEBERLT —TT)\FFR
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24 . RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS (continued)

(a) Defined benefit plan (Continued)

(iii)  The amounts included in the consolidated balance sheet
arising from the Group’s obligation in respect of its defined

benefit plans are as follows:

Present value of funded defined
benefit obligations

Fair value of plan assets

Net unrecognised actuarial
gains (losses)

Net liability arising from defined
benefit obligation

ERESTRENELGRE

HEIEEATE
REERBE W (818 ) F8

EEENEREE 2 AEFE

(iv)  Movements in the present value of the defined benefit

obligations in the current year were as follows:

At 1 January

Current service cost

Interest on obligation

Benefits paid

Actuarial (gains) losses

Exchange differences on
foreign plans

At 31 December
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n—H—R

RS ARG AR
BEBHE
EfER

BE (W) B8
BINTBIER Z5

KWt+ZA=+—H

24 RIREFETE ()
(a) TEEBRISHEI
(i) AEEFTERE
BLEEA

=

T -

2008
—EENF
HK$'000
FTET

12,162

(560)

657

12,259

BRI EIMELR
AERER

2007
=i
HK$'000
FHT

13,757

(1,282)

(576)

11,899

V) RAFEZ EREHELRES

N

2008

S L
HK$'000
FHBT

13,757
407
495

(1,095)

(1,247)

(155)

12,162

2007
=i
HK$'000
FHT

12,827
446
478

(1,105)

1,031

80

13,757
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24 RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS (Continued)
(a) Defined benefit plan (Continued)
(v)  Movements in the fair value of the plan assets in the current
year were as follows:

At 1 January w—H—H
Contributions from the employer 18 E{t5%
Expected return on plan assets  +EI&EETEHIEITRE

Benefits paid B A& R
Actuarial gains EE W
Exchange differences on EINETEIE N Z 5

foreign plans

At 31 December Rt+-—A=+—H

The major categories of plan assets, and the percentage of
the fair value at the balance sheet date for each category are
as follows:

Deposits with finandial institutions {5t B 7 #4824

Short term bills HEEE
Stocks &)
Bonds B+
Others Efth

24, RIRAEFET 8l )
(a) EEREFIGHE

(v)

2008
—EENF
HK$’000
FHT

1,282
293
36

(1,095)
33

1

560

WAEEZHBEEATEED
mT -

2007
TR
HK$'000
TAT

1,965
356
54

(1,105)
8

1,282

FEBEZTRRAIARELESG
REEAZAFEBDLIT

2008
—EEBNEF
%

32.27
12.90
12.11
11.69
31.03

100.0

39.58
11.61
11.17
12.20
25.44

100.00
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24 . RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS (continued)

(b) Defined contribution plans

(i)

(ii)

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
("the HK MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed
under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance and Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme under
the Labour Standards Law (as amended) in Taiwan (the “TW
MPF Scheme"”). The HK MPF scheme and TW MPF Scheme
are defined contribution retirement scheme administered

by independent trustees. Under the HK MPF scheme and
TW MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% and 6%,
respectively, of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a
cap of monthly relevant income of HK$20,000 for HK MPF
Scheme while there is no cap to monthly income under TW
MPF Scheme. Contributions to the scheme vest immediately.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of the state-managed retirement benefit plan
operated by the PRC government. As stipulated by the
regulations of the PRC, these relevant subsidiaries participate
in various defined contribution retirement plans organised by
the relevant authorities for its PRC employees. The employees
are entitled to retirement pension calculated with reference
to their basic salaries on retirement and their length of service
in accordance with the relevant government regulations.

The PRC government is responsible for the pension liabilities
to these retired staff. The Group is required to make
contributions to the retirement plans which are calculated
based on certain prescribed rates and the salaries, bonuses
and certain allowances of its PRC employees. The Group

has no other material obligation for the payment of pension
benefits associated with these plans beyond the annual
contributions described above.

The total cost charged to consolidated income statement of
HK$10,388,000 (2007; HK$7,968,000) represents contributions payable
to these schemes by the Group in respect of the current accounting

period.
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25.SHARE CAPITAL 25. I& 7R
Number of shares Share Capital
R EE &N
2008 2007 2008 2007
—E2E)N\F ZEELE —EENF —ETLE
‘000 '000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR Fh THET FAT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each ~ SRE(E0.1/ETZ
LA
Authorised: EERA
At beginning of year and RENRFL
end of year 4,000,000 4,000,000 400,000 400,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRAR
At beginning of year NG 2,000,000 2,000,000 200,000 200,000
Shares issued upon exercise of LR AR
share options 17D 640 - 64 -
At end of year RER 2,000,640 2,000,000 200,064 200,000
26.SHARE OPTION SCHEME 26. Rkt

Pursuant to the written resolution passed by the shareholders on 11
March 2002, the Company has adopted a share option scheme (The
“Scheme”) for the primary purpose of providing incentives to directors
and eligible employees. Under the Scheme, the Company may grant
options to full-time employees (including executive or non-executive
Directors) of the Company or its subsidiaries to subscribe for the shares
at a consideration of HK$1 for each lot of share options granted.
Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date of grant.
The Scheme with remain valid for a period of 10 years commencing on
11 March 2002.

BERRN -_ZTT-_F=-A+—BBBzE
FRER  ARQRICHEM—BERREE
([REREETED EEREEREERESR
R IE - BIFRRIET S AARAIAA
ARAREMNBRARZ2BEES (BERTE
HYIFWTES) BRERERE  BEHED
R HELAR B 1B TREBIRD » IR HRR
AR A BB A28 B i AR o SRARAE
HEEN TR -F= A+ AR TEHE
BB

BAXENNEBERLT —TT)\FFR
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26 SHARE OPT|ON SCHEME (Continued)

Options granted may be exercised during such period as would be
determined by the board of directors of the Company (the “Board”)
and notified to each grantee upon grant of the option, but in any

event not later than 10 years from the date of grant of the option. The
subscription price for shares under the Scheme may be determined by
the Board at its absolute discretion but in any event will not be less than
the higher of: (a) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of the option,
which must be a business day; and (b) the average of the closing price
of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant of the
relevant option.

The Company may grant share options to specified participants over and
above the scheme mandate limit or the refreshed scheme mandate limit
referred to above subject to shareholders’ approval in general meetings
and the issue of a circular.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme
and any other schemes of the Company (or the subsidiary) must not
exceed 30% of the relevant class of securities of the Company (or the
subsidiary) in issue from time to time. No options may be granted under
any schemes of the Company (or the subsidiary) if this will result in the
limit being exceeded.

At 31 December 2008, the number of shares in respect of which options
had been granted and remained outstanding under the Scheme was
1,516,533 (2007: 1,278,861), representing 0.08% (2007: 0.06%) of
the shares of the Company in issue at that date. The total number of
shares in respect of which options may be granted under the Scheme

is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in

issue at any point in time, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders. The number of shares issued and to be issued in respect
of which options granted and may be granted to any individual in

any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any point in time, without prior approval from the
Company’s shareholders. Options granted to substantial shareholders or
independent non-executive directors in the 12-month period up to and
including the date of such grant in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s
share capital in issue or with an aggregate value in excess of HK$5
million based on the closing price of the shares at the date of each grant
must be approved in advance by the Company’s shareholders.
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

There was no option granted to substantial shareholders, executive
directors or independent non-executive directors during both years.

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share options
held by employees during the years ended 31 December 2007 and

2008:

Option type

AREEH

2007 Type |
JITHEER

2007 Type
“EELEECE
2007 Typell
TIRERR
2008 Type
“IR\EE-R

2008 Type

Date of grant

RiRd

27 July 2007

I5tE
tAZTtA

27 July 2007

Z55tE
tAZtTtR
27 July 2007

IERE
tA-t¢A
16 July 2008

2R
tATAR
16 Juy 2008
R)\E
tATAR
16 Juy 2008

ZER)\E
At

Exercisable at the end of the year

ERBTNE

Weighted average exercise price

MEFSRE

Vesting
period

BRE

1 year

2 years
s
3 years
=
Tyear
-
2 years
s

3 years

Exercisable period

s

1 July 2008 0 26 July 2017
Z35\ErA-RE
ZEtELACTAR
11y 200910

26 1uly 2017
“EENELA-BZ
ZE-tFLAZHAA
11y 201010

26y 2017
Z5-TELA-AE
ZE-tELAZTAA
1July 20090

15 July 2018
ZEENELA-RE
“E-)\EtATRR
11y 201010

15 July 2018
“5-3Ftf-AZ
“5-\EtAtRA
1y 201110

15)uly 2018
i 2 g
5 /\ELE1RA

Exercise

price

ikl

1.76

1.76

1.76

169

169

169

2 s = .
26. R EETE] ()

RATRFRLEAEEZRR - HITESL

B IEITE BRI R
TREBEHEENBE _TZLFR-_ZTF
NE+ZAZ+—HILEFEHBEZARRR

RS -
Granted Forfeited Granted Exercised Forfeited

Outstanding during during  Outstanding during during during  Outstanding
at  yearended  yearended at  yearended  yearended  yearended at
1.1.2007 31.12.2007 31.12.2007 31.12.2007 31.12.2008 31.12.2008 31.12.2008 31.12.2008
B HEE HEE i HEE HEE HEE i
CERLE CEBtF CERYE CERtE C38\F CERNE ZERNF CEENE
-f-B tZB=t-B tZB=t-B tZBZt-B tZAZt-B tZB=t-B tZBZt-B tIAZ1-A
WATE  LEERM  LEERN HAGE  LEERE  LEEGR  LEERK WA
- 864,771 (225,341) 639430 - (639,430) - -
- 518,863 (135,204) 383,659 - - - 383,659
- 345,908 (90,136) 255,712 - - - 255,712
- - - - 1,106,728 - (668,177) 438,551
- - - - 664,037 - 400,906) 263,131
- - - - 44,691 - (267,211) 175420
- 1729542 (450,681) 1,278,861 221345% (639.430)  (133%63%4) 1516533
Nil Nil Nil
£ g B
- 176 176 176 169 176 169 172

During the year ended 31 December 2007, the Group granted option
to certain employees to subscribe for a maximum of 1,729,542 shares
and will be vested on a ratio of 50%, 30% and 20% over a three year
period subject to the grantees achieving certain performance targets.
The options were granted on 27 July 2007. The estimated fair values of
the options granted on that date were HK$673,000.

REBEZE-_ZT+E+-_A=+—HILFE
AEBMEETEE R RAE - URERA
ENETREBBRHRERE1,729,542%
B+ W ZFMNIZ50% * 30% 20%LE
REE - RREECR -_ETL+F+A -+
BiEHE - REBARERBEAFEMRBTA
673,000/ 7T ©

BAXENNEBERLT —TT)\FFR

121



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e VSR

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE_ZEN\F+_A=1+—HILFE

26 SHARE OPT|ON SCHEME (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group granted options
to certain employees to subscribe for a maximum of 2,213,456 shares
and will be vested on a ratio of 50%, 30% and 20% over a three year
period subject to the grantees achieving certain performance targets.
The options were granted on 16 July 2008. The estimated fair values of
the options granted on that date were HK$984,000.

As an additional employee incentive, the Company will pay the relevant
option holder a cash bonus in the amount of the total exercise price
payable for the exercise of the options. The option holders are required
to use any such cash bonus towards payment of the exercise price of the
relevant options and a cash bonus of approximately HK$1,125,000 had
been paid and used directly for the exercise of those options for 639,430
share issued during the year ended 31 December 2008.

These fair values were calculated using the Black-Scholes Options Pricing
Model. The inputs into the model were as follows:

2007 Options

Vest date B A
Grant date share price R A HRRE
Exercise price TE(E
Expected volatility TEETRIE
Expected life TEET A
Expected dividend yield TEET AR &
Risk-free interest rate [ B R 2
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26. I HERH

REBE-_EZNE+_A=+—HILFE -
AEBAE TIEE R RIE - UREEA
ENAETREBEHRERZ2,213,456%
f&1n - WK =F ANIL50% * 30% K% 20%
LOIBE - RBRECR=ZZZNFLA+S
BEL REBMRERREQNTEGBTA
984,000/ 7T °

ERREIME B 128) - AR RS AEERR
BB AT ERE R RITE R EN
BMITHEBZIRETEA - RSB ABER
FAZER AT HBERRE TS
B mREE_2FN\F+_RA=+—HI
FE - BXM#1,125,0008 T2 IR ETEAL
I E B FAETT#3£77639,430 0% i 11 2 7R A%
T o

8% DTSRI % — SR BT
BREE © RERGAZ BT ¢

“ERLFEARE
Option type
AR

2007 2007 2007
Type | Type Il Type Il
—RELE —RELE —BBtF
£—8 £-H £=8
01/07/2008 01/07/2009 01/07/2010
—EENF ZEENF —E-TF
+H—H +tH—H +HA—H
HK$1.76 HK$1.76 HK$1.76
1.76787C 1.7678 7T 1.76/8 7T
HK$1.76 HK$1.76 HK$1.76
1.76787C 1.7678 7T 1.76/8 7T
39.88% 39.88% 39.88%
3 years 4 years 5 years
=% s hF
5.91% 5.91% 5.91%
5912 5912 5.91E
4.17% 4.28% 4.38%
4172 4282 4388
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26 SHARE OPT|ON SCHEME (Continued)
2008 Options

Vest date EREAH
Grant date share price R A HRRE
Exercise price TE(E
Expected volatility TEETE R
Expected life TEETHA
Expected dividend yield FAEHRR A2
Risk-free interest rate A1\ P N 2=

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility of
the Company'’s share price over the previous 7 years. The expected life
used in the model has been adjusted based on management’s best
estimate for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions, and
behavioural considerations.

The Group recognised the total expense of approximately HK$840,000
(2007: HK$138,000) and reversal of expenses of HK$595,000 (2007:
HK$37,000) for the year ended 31 December 2008 in relation to

share options granted and share options forfeitured by the Company
respectively.

The number of share options granted expected to vest has been reduced
to reflect historical experience of forfeiture of 60% (2007: 26%) of
options granted prior to completion of vesting period and accordingly
the share option expenses has been adjusted. At each balance sheet
date, the Group revises its estimates of the number of options that are
expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognized in the profit and
loss over the remaining vest period, with a corresponding adjustment to
the share options reserve.

The Black-Scholes Options Pricing Model has been used to estimate

the fair value of the options. The valuables and assumptions used in
computing the fair value of the share options are based on the directors’
best estimate. The value of the option varies with different variables of
certain subjective assumptions.

206. u/uHXT u*%u (42

—EEN\FRRE
Option type
AR

2008 2008 2008
Type | Type Il Type Il
ZETNF —TTNF ZETN\F
F—1R E-E |
01/07/2009 01/07/2010 01/07/2011
—TENEF —ER-EF T
+A—H +A—H +tH—H
HK$1.69 HK$1.69 HK$1.69
1.698 7T 1.69/87T 1.69% 7T
HK$1.69 HK$1.69 HK$1.69
1.69% 7T 1.69% 7T 1.69% 7T
47.97% 47.97% 47.97%
3 years 4 years 5 years
=% kR HF
5.44% 5.44% 5.44%
5.44]2 5.44]2 5.44J8
2.61% 2.94% 3.13%
261 2.942 313

AR E IR AARBRERBELF2E
SRIREEE o FTRARN 2B F D RIE
BEEHNAEE  TERRTAERE
BREZEZKEMRHE -

HE_ZZ)\F+_A=Z+—HIFE &
SEEBREEAARRL 2 RRERAS B
EE#9840,00078 L ( ZFEZ 4 : 138,000
70 ) K8 W 2 SR AR A # [B1 FE  595,0007%8 7T
(=TT : 37,00087T) °

AERBECROREEEEE R UR
BTN BT AR IN60% (ZEZ+
E'E : ZGWO)E#ﬁwu\Hxﬁg uuHXTgFFﬁS‘ZE.
MR - REEHEB - REBETHHER
RIXGRIE 2 RSB 2 fhEt - BEBREIE
FIRBMF ZHE(WME) ERARTHBHR
BRER - RIRERBIMELERTRE -

AN — AR E EE R E AEGEER
feiE 2 AF{E - BRETEREER ?TEZ““"
HRBRBIIRIBE S 2 & EEFHED © 328
EEEERE TEHEBELR 2 TRE %(ﬁﬁxﬁT
A o

BAXENNEBERLT —TT)\FFR
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27.DEFERRED TAXATION

The following are the major deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised

in the consolidated balance sheet and movements thereon during the

current or prior years are as follows:

At 1 January 2007 RZEEtE-A—H
Exchange realignment [ A%

Effect of change in tax rate ﬁR’Z“ifJZ

Charge (credit) to consolidated ﬂ*AuﬁzmﬂuWM)

income statement
At 31 December 2007 ji e
+=A=+-H
Exchange realignment B 5%
(Credit) charge to consolidated ~ A&RAMER (GFA) 30K
income statement
At 31 December 2008 RZZZNE
+-A=1+—H

27. IR TR
UTREFNSBEFENGEEERBRRE
RZEBRLERBEERBBEUAREZE)

Allowance Other Undistributed
forbad and Revaluation Defined  Unrealised short-term  earnings
doubtful of benefit  profitson  temporary of PRC
debts  properties liability inventories differences entities Total
EBRA AR HES TEERZ
AEREE  EROX Bt HERF  ENEE  ROEEA L
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TER TER TR TR TR
(465) 2,583 (2,955) (8,925) 325 - (9,437)
M (24) (18) (304) 9) - (356)
- - - 617 1 - 618
134 (3,413) (191) 5,182 (87) - 1,625
(332) (854)  (3164) (3430 230 - (7,550)
18 4 66 (152) 24 - (40)
(327) 3 (362) (1,814) (158) 1,092 (1,566)
(641) (847) (3,460) (5,396) 96 1,092 (9,156)

At the balance sheet date, the Group has unutilised tax losses of
approximately HK$127,343,000 (2007: HK$91,231,000) available for

offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised

of such tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

The Hong Kong tax losses of HK$44,170,000 (2007: HK$38,278,000)

do not expire under the current tax legislation in Hong Kong and all
other tax losses will expire from 2009 to 2013 (2007: 2008 to 2010).

Deferred taxation has been provided in full in respect of the
undistributed earnings of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries arising since
1 January 2008 as the directors consider that such earnings are

estimated to be distributable in the foreseeable future. In respect of the

undistributed earnings of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries for the same

period, because the Group is in a position to control the quantum and

timing of the distribution thereof, deferred taxation is only provided
to the extent that such earnings are estimated to be distributable in
the foreseeable future. Deferred tax has been provided for in respect

of the temporary differences attributable to such profits amounting to

approximately HK$20,874,000.
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REEH  AEBEBEARBDAHREEEY
127,343,000 7 ( ZFZ 4 : 91,231,000
BTT) Al REH SR R T o R ARAEREE
B 1% m FIZOR - B I # 5 A R R 18 R
RIELEHIBEE - BEABROTEM - &
B IEET1844,170,0008 T ( 2T+ 4F ©
38,278,000/8 7T ) ﬂiﬁﬂuﬁﬂ AT A E A F
HEBER-_ZEZNFE= Tf*iﬂﬁﬂ
(ZZEZL+F T N\FE_ZT—ZFEF|
H) -

BRAEBERBEAEMRBARE —ZTTN
F—A—BUKRTEEA R REF Z ELTFH
HEER2HEE  REAEERALER
FHEFTA AT IE R RATBIED IR © LB
BEMIBRARRREZ RS REFFE - AR
IREB AR DR 2 SR R BRI - Bt
EERZSHENAIER BRI H YR &F
VEHIRIEF BB - AEEE B EZEHF
B2 R EFEEL £20,874,000/8 7T 2 IE
IETH AR -
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28. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY
(i) For the year ended 31 December 2008

On 20 August 2008, the Group acquired 100% interest in
Shanghai Natural Beauty Bio-Med Company Limited (/8B #A3
EYEEE2ERAF]) (“Bio-Med”), from Uni Way Associates Limited,
a company beneficially owned by shareholders of the Company,

at a consideration of USD3,313,966 (equivalent to approximately
HK$25,848,936). Bio-Med is engaged in the business of
manufacturing and sale of health supplement. This acquisition has

been accounted for using the purchase method.

The net assets acquired in the transaction are as follows:

Net assets acquired:
Bank and cash balances
Plant and equipment
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Trade and other payables

Total consideration

Satisfied by:
Cash consideration paid

Net cash outflow arising on
acquisition:
Cash consideration paid

Bank balances and cash acquired

BABEHME
RITMR ST
B35 Mo 7
rE
B 5 K EA IR
B 5 R EAMEMRR

HAR(E

AT B I3E AT -
ENRENE

WHRELZREREFE

ENRERE
FBARTTEFRR S

Note: The fair value of the net assets acquired approximate to their carrying
amounts on or before the date of acquisition.

28. WEE—xX B 7]

(i) B82=—FEFENF+=-H=+—H
ILEE
RIEBEZNFNA=-1+H  KEEKZRAK
183,313,966 TT(XI4H & 7225,848,936
BIT) MBAARRBRREREEZA
AUni Way Associates Limited & /&
BAXEMEEERAB( BAEEY
B2 )2IER c BAXEMBENSE
BE RIS RER M o RTEUHE AKE
VENER ©

MNZEXZBAZBEFENT

Acquiree’s carrying
amount before
combination (Note)
AR E R
SR B (P RE)
HK$°000

FHER

22,726
1,068
1,337

984
(266)

25,849

25,849

(25,849)
22,726

(3,123)

MIEE : PTIB ABESE 2 D FEEERNKE
B sz BIMEREERS -

BAXENNEBERLT —TT)\FFR
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28. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued) 28. Wi —RIB A Rl )

(i) For the year ended 31 December 2008 (Continued) (i) B2=—EN\F+=-A=+—H
If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January 2008, total MEKWBER - NFE— A —
group revenue for the year would have been approximately Bxpk r SEFABKAENAR
HK$593,343,000, and profit for the year would have been 593,343,000/ 7T « MEE @ FELN A
approximately HK$237,040,000. The pro forma information is for 237,040,000/ 7T © #E EFLHEH A
illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of A% T ERBHEKER T )\F
revenue and results of operations of the Group that actually would —A—HZEK  NEETREER I
have been achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1 ANMEEELE T BHERIRELE 2B
January 2008, nor is it intended to be a projection of future results. S o

(ii) For the year ended 31 December 2007 (i) BE=—2EtFE+=-A=+—H

LtFE
On 15 August 2007, the Group acquired an additional 1% interest RZZZLFNATHRB  AEBEZRR
in In A B EXEARHE B EER AT, previously a 50% jointly 1B %96,000/8 7o U 8 AR &= [ LA T2 1550%
controlled entity of the Group, at a consideration of approximately ZHEIESH TSRS REERAR P
HK$6,000. This acquisition has been accounted for using the BRARFEINM %z o RIBUEE AU
purchase method. AN -
The net assets acquired in the transaction are as follows: RZERFBAZEEFAENT :

Acquiree’s carrying
Amount before
Combination (Note)

EOtATNBE R~
BREME (MiEE)
HK$°000
FERT
Net assets acquired: BAREFE -
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E A EWER R 1,383
Trade and other payables B 5 REMER R (506)
Minority interests DERRER (431)
446
Transfer from interest in EEE —RARIEHEE 2R
jointly controlled entity (440)
Total consideration BRE 6
Net cash outflow arising on WHBEE A 2 IR 558 ¢
acquisition:
Cash consideration paid BfReRE 6)
Note: The fair value of the net assets acquired approximate to their carrying MizE : FTBABEFEATFEEERNKER
amounts on or before the date of acquisition. sk 2 RIRIBREERE ©
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28. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued)
(ii) For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Continued)

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January 2007, to

total group revenue for the year would have been approximately
HK$450,774,000, and profit for the year would have been
approximately HK$178,948,000. The pro forma information is for
illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of
revenue and results of operations of the Group that actually would
have been achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1
January 2007, nor is it intended to be a projection of future results.

29. OPERATING LEASES
The Group as lessee
During the year, the Group made rental payments for office premises
under operating leases as follows:

Minimum lease payments RIERAESMAR
Contingent rental payments AT ST

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments for future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases which
fall due as follows:

Within one year —F A
In the second to fifth year inclusive FE_EFERAF(BREEEMT)
Over five years B AF

28 WHE—KIWEB AR W
(i) BE=2BLF+=-A=+—8

IEEFEEE)

WMEKRBER _ZTZTLHF— A —
HER  SEFRNRKRAEROA
450,774,000 7T+ i E = ELN A
178,948,00078 7T & & FEHE 5 #F
BiE T ERMEKER -ZT+F
—A—H%K - NEEEREESR K
ARGEEZELE - T RERRERE 2B

Al e

29. &RETHA

AEEEREEA
FA - ARBERBEEERORERRAEY
EHNUATES
2008 2007
—EENE —ERLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET TET
18,929 15,920
5,393 2,315
24,322 18,235

REER  ARERETATHEHLEHENA

-

THREEAN 2 BR&REHESAENR

2008 2007

S % —ELs
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT T
18,705 14,807
24,612 22,412
8,478 6,010
51,795 43,229

BAXENNEBERLT —TT)\FFR
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29. OPERATING LEASES (continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for
certain of its leased properties. Leases are negotiated and rentals are
fixed for an average term of five years. In addition, the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries have commitments to make rental payments at a percentage
of turnover for certain leased properties.

The Group as lessor

(i)  Property
Property rental income earned during the year was HK$4,723,000
(2007: HK$7,109,000), net of outgoings of HK$203,000 (2007:
HK$423,000). All of the properties held have committed tenants
for the next one to five years.

At the balance sheet date, the Group had contracted with tenants

for the following future minimum lease payments:

Within one year —F A
In the second year to fifth F_EZFERF (BIEEERE)
year inclusive

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited Annual Report 2008

Z<<<

T ==

B

AEBERAABAE)

SR RERNAEEGE THREMES N
2%  BESEAMESERTHAEHE
HAETSE o Woh - AEMhRMBARERE

FHE

FEEBRERSENESR

FEBE/HAA

(i)

TEE=E

Bk $5203,0008 T( Z T F ¢
423,000 70) % - RERRE 2 M3
& Uz A4,723,0008 T (— ST+
F 17,109,000 7T) - BB ZTE
EACDEAEMAFE HEFHNT—F2
HEF -

REER - AEBRBFCEAINZBR
REESMARAT

2008 2007
—EENFE —ETEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
T FAT
623 4,547

623 2,195

1,246 6,742
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29. OPERATING LEASES (continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)
(i)  Entrustment arrangement
At the balance sheet date, the Group had contracted with
operators for the following future minimum lease payments for use
by them of the Group's plant and machinery:

Within one year —%FR
In the second year F-F
In the third year E=F
In the fourth year Epuikes

30. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital expenditure in respect of PUETBIE - BIS
acquisition of property, plant P& AR OLI=]
and equipment contracted RIRNERE TG R R
for but not provided in the ZERFAEZ

consolidated financial statements

29. L&RETH A )
AEBEARBAE
(i) ZATACEZHE
WEER - AEEREAERERAS
BB RRER A BERERS

T
2008 2007
—EBEENE —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
- 1,802
- 1,132
- 587
- 231
- 3,752
30. BANHIE
2008 2007
—EENE —ETHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
349 1,545

BRZEYRFEERAIT —ZT/\FFHR 129
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31.CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY 31.
DISCLOSURES

During the year, the Group had significant transactions with related
parties, some of which are also deemed to be connected parties

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited Annual Report 2008

pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock WIS VERIE A+ - FEREZE
Exchange. The significant transactions with these parties during the year AZZWT -
are as follows:
(A) TRANSACTIONS (A) X3
() CONNECTED PARTIES () [E#EAL
2008
—EENF
Name of company Nature of transactions HK$'000
ARIERE RHMHE FET
Companies controlled by
the substantial shareholders:
FEREAIEHI D A] -
B R FEHEEAL Rental income 9
el
HEEAB MBI AR ELZESE  Rental income 5
el
FERBREAEHE Rental income 5
el
B R H it Rental income 9
el
FRERBERNOERADF Rental income 9
A=
BitmEARRIMHE Rental income 5
el
InABEBEAREEERMNAERAR Rental income =
ik g
EEEAEZEMEEBFRAR Rental income 235
el
(Prior to 20 August 2008, Note a) Purchase of natural health food 7,327
(ZE2EZE)\FNAZ=1+HAT  Hizta) KERXARER D
FEEARRKARAR] Purchase of lingerie 15
HREAR
Balance due to at 31st December
— trade payables 4
R+-—A=+—B8EHBz &%
— B I EMNERER
ERPREEAEMBBERAR Rental expenses 324
e
Director of the Company:
ALE]EE
Su Chien Cheng Rental expenses 207
BRIEM Hexd
Tsai Yen Yu Rental expenses 1,110
BHE e

FENRBREALTRS

FAAEEZRAMEATETERR
5 AP B AL REB R PIES EHARA
AT#EITZE

2007
—ETTEF
HK$ 000
FAT

4,992

125

1,131

199




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e VSR

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-_ZT)\F+-_A=1+—HILFE

31.CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY
DISCLOSURES (continued)
(A) TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
()  CONNECTED PARTIES (Continued)
Note:

(@) EEEAEEMEZER AT has become a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company on 20 August 2008 upon the
acquisition of the 100% interest from Uni Way Associates
Limited, a connected party to the Company, as set out in
note 28.

()  COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT
PERSONNEL
The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year was as follows:

Short-term benefits e EIRA
Post-employment benefits  3R{KIEF
Share based payments B& 1A 1< 3K

The remuneration of directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having regard to
the performance of individuals and market trends.

(B) OTHER ARRANGEMENTS
(i) Under a licensing agreement, a director of the Company
granted to Natural Beauty Cosmetics Company Limited (“NB
Taiwan"), a subsidiary incorporated and operated in Taiwan,
a license to use a skin test software from 1 January 1997 to
31 December 2011 for a nominal consideration of NT$1.

(i) On 5 October 2001, NB Taiwan entered into two separate
licensing agreements with two directors of the Company.
Under the agreements, the directors agreed to license
a number of trademarks to NB Taiwan, on an exclusive
basis, for a nominal consideration of NT$1. The licensing
agreements will be effective till the expiry of the registration
of the respective trademarks.

31. A MBS X5 (&)
(A) X5Z (&)
() BIEN 1 (8)
aE -

(1)

@@ RZZEENFNAZ-Z+HME
KA a2 BEE AT Uni Way
Associates Limited it i& 2 2B i e
15\ FEEREEMEBEER

RABERABRARZ 2 EN B
AT FHEHRMIEE28 ©

FEEEAS T

BEERTFEEBEAMKENSE
NZMEaT

2008 2007
—BEN\F —ET L
HK$'000 HK$'000
FitT FiET
23,998 9,316

111 172

220 98

24,329 9,586
EEREESTRABZFHNL

ZE B R IR K T 5 8 514 1S B
ZEGET -

(B) HftiZk

(i)

(ii)

IRIRFT AT i - A AEIEE MU
FHAREHEBITL  AREE
MR REEWEBAREA
EbHREOERAR(TBARE
aEDBREATE-ANEFE—A

—HEZZT——F+ZA=+—
HEHARERAE ERBE 8 275 a
TE o

RZZZE—F+ARRA BAX
BEERNRAMBERITILM
DB TR o REBEZF W

CEEZRBURBARERE
MWE WEREEMBRERE
BREETERZAAE - FFAE
BN & B AR 2 LM E AT D A
BR -
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31.CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY 31.FENBAEANLTR S @)
DISCLOSURES (continued)
(B) OTHER ARRANGEMENTS (Continued) (B) HftZHE(&)
(i)  On 10 November 2008, Dr. Tsai, Dr. Su Chien Cheng and Dr. iy R—ZTENE+—A+18 &i§

Su Sh Hsyu (collectively the “Licensors”) and the Company
(the “Licensee”) entered into a license agreement at a
consideration of HK$10 for the royalty-free, fully paid-up,
perpetual and non-revocable licence and privilege throughout
the world to use the certain trade marks on exclusive use and
non-exclusive use basis.

(iv)  On 10 November 2008, the Company (the “Licensor”) and (iv)
Dr. Tsai (the “Licensee”) entered into a license agreement at
a consideration of HK$10 for a non-exclusive, royalty-free and
perpetual licence (including the right to grant sub-licences)
to use certain trademarks solely in relation to the operation
of resorts and hotels, for education related purposes and in
the field of healthcare and only in the jurisdiction in which
such trademarks are registered or has been applied for.
The Licensee shall offer the Company the opportunity to
participate in any new investments.

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited Annual Report 2008
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32.BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY

The balance sheet of the Company is as follows:

Assets
Investments in subsidiaries
Available-for-sale investments
Amounts due from subsidiaries
Other receivables
Bank balances and cash

Liabilities
Other payables
Amounts due to subsidiaries

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves (note)

RIBRRZRE
A ERE
JEW Y B IR
HoA & AR R
RITEFLRE

BfE
HAb R ARR
R B A BRIA

BEFE

BeA R fk
[EEN
fré 48 (P 5E)

2. AREIZEERER
ARTZAEBERDT :

2008
—BENF
HK$'000
FHET

169,602
5,926
414,836
2,960
177,883

771,207

27,523
27,558

55,081

716,126

200,064
516,062

716,126

2007
ZETF
HK$'000
FAT

287,129
9,126
277,900
2,989

93,406

670,550

5,941
727

6,668

663,882

200,000

463,882

663,882
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32.BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

33.

Note:

Share
premium
BRORE
HK$'000
FHExT
At 1 January 2007 RZZET+F—H—H 336,758
Profit for the year and total recognised 4 A | &2 FF Y
income for the year B iR AR -
Dividends paid BIRARF -
Recognition of share based payments  FERRRD S FK -
Forfeiture of share options SR U R AR R -
At 31 December 2007 KRBT LF 336,758
+=-A=+—H
Shares issued upon exercise of share AT R IR R
options BT 1,298
Profit for the year and total recognised A | &2 & A
income for the year [mEG e ar L -
Dividends paid BRAEF (300,032)
Recognition of share based payments  FERRRX(D 3K -
Forfeiture of share options R U R -
At 31 December 2008 NZZBENF
+ZA=+—8 38,024

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.
The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and cash equivalents
and equity attributable to equity holders of the Company, comprising
issued share capital, reserves and retained earnings.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a semi-
annual basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost of
capital and the risks associates with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues
and share buy-backs or issue of new debt.

134 Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited Annual Report 2008

2. NRRIZEER

FiAE -

Share
option
reserve
ARERE
HK$'000
FHT

138
(37)

101

(237)

840
(595)

109

33. ERE ke B2

(EE (%8)

Retained

profits Total
R R st
HK$'000 HK$000
FAERT FAET
126,847 463,605
185,176 185,176
(185,000) (185,000)
- 138
- (37)
127,023 463,882
- 1,061
350,906 350,906
- (300,032)

- 840
- (595)
477,929 516,062

FEEEBRER - URRASEETEEE

ARFERR WS
B AR AR o

I

BBTE RS R ERE

AEEE 2 BRERAK A F

AEBEEAGERERASLRSFENAR

AR R A 2
BRIREEF -

BREZETRA - #

AARERRLFEEERMERERE - F
RENET IR EFEZRESHRARS
BEAERZRAR REEFZER A%

% 15 325 B A AL
HBEITHEHZHRA

e

 BITHAR D MBI D
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34 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

34a.Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables (including Bzt N EITERFR
cash and cash equivalents) (PRESEREEED)
Available-for-sale investments AMEHERE
Financial liabilities = =R
Amortised cost BEIHR AN

34b.Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Group’s major financial instruments include equity investments,
trade and other receivables, pledged bank deposit, bank balances
and trade and other payables. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. Management manages and monitors these

exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

Market risk

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to bank balances due to the fluctuation of the prevailing
market interest rates. It is also exposed to fair value interest
rate risk in relation to the short-term bank deposits. The
directors of the Company consider the Group’s exposure to
the interest rate risk is not significant as interest bearing bank
balances are within a short maturity period.

The Group currently does not have any interest rate hedging
policy in relation to interest rate risks. The directors of the
Company will continuously monitor interest rate fluctuation
and will consider hedging interest rate risk should the need
arise.

3. @ TH
34a. &R T 2R

2008 2007
—EENF —ETF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
622,664 673,648
5,926 9,126
70,251 52,176

34b. IR EE B E R

AEETZERTARERARE - &
Z NEMBYER - SEMRITR R
THREIFARE 5 R EAEMIRR - 1%
TR TAZFBNARMERE - Hit
FeMTABHZER SR ERRRR
ZBERBR T X - BEEEIE K%
FE - BEMSEIRIVEE R

77755 )2 2

() FEER
AEERBTTHHERBHTA
RERTREEAZRSRENRAE
B M SNIT B IR ER R T I R
ATEFRES - ARANEFR
B AKEZAEARYTE
K BE A SIRT 250
A -

7 62 [ 37 B 3f 8 ) K LB 2R
TR EEFBER - ARARES
RS SN RN E - WA
FERE EBEIPAREL o
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34 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
34b.Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for the bank balances at
the balance sheet date. For bank balances, the analysis is
prepared assuming the amount of balances at the balance
sheet date was held the whole year. A 50 basis point increase
or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk internally
to key management personnel and represents management's
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and all
other variables were held constant, the Group's profit for the
year ended 31 December 2008 would increase/decrease by
HK$2,731,000 (2007: increase/decrease by HK$2,944,000).
This is mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest
rates on its bank balances.

(i) Currency risk
The Group has bank deposits denominated in foreign
currency which expose the Group to foreign currency risk.

The Group does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arises.

Management considers that Group does not expose to
significant foreign currency risk as majority of its transactions
are either denominated in functional currency of the Group’s
subsidiaries or in USD. Since USD is pegged to HKD, relevant
foreign currency risk is minimal.
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34. &t T

B )

o<\

34b. Eﬁ%ﬂ?ﬁ%’ﬂ BERBEK(E)

(ii)

wﬁfﬁﬁ

AT URE ST HIRIBIRIT AT
REERZNEREREE - BLiR
TREEME  AMIREREER
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TREEABAMBRNEEAR
B 5 A 2 5O B E B IR R R R
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filr o

K 1) 2= 38 i > 50 8 2L Bh i =
HEHEFTE  AEEEHEC
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2 5 F 15 18 bu//ﬁz 1>2,731,000
BIL(ZETLF 8w
2,944,000,%7z> CEFEREAE
BIFIRITEFREE 2 FIERRER

ZKE lﬁLA?I\%ﬁ'J{EﬁﬁQZﬁE £
HEHMERBR 2 SRITIFX ©

AEBYEIMNEE HEK - R
i B BE 2 1 [ B 3 7 70
T EREZEEINERINERR -

EEERE ARAEBRAED
REURNEENB AR ZINEEE
B ETIIE  MAEETES
ROMNERB o AR ETTEBTE
84 - HERESNERBREM -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e VSR

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE_ZTT\F+_A=+—HALFE

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

34b.Financial risk management objectives and policies

34. €@ T B

34b. I AR EIE B ERBER (&)

(Continued)

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2008, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised financial assets as
stated in the consolidated balance sheet. In order to minimise the
credit risk, the management of the Group has delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at each balance
sheet date to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies.

At 31 December 2008, the five largest trade receivable balances
accounted for approximately 23% (2007: 20%) of the trade
receivables and the largest trade receivables attributable to the
Group's trade receivables were approximately 9% (2007: 6%) of
the Group's total trade receivables.

The Group's concentration of credit risk by geographical locations
are mainly PRC other than Hong Kong and Taiwan, which
accounted for 39% (2007: 42%) and 60% (2007: 58%) of the
trade receivables as at 31 December 2008.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by
the management to finance the Group's operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The Group relies on its
operating cash flows as a significant source of liquidity.

The Group's remaining contractual maturity for its financial
liabilities falls within 30 to 90 days as at 31 December 2007 and
2008.

1EE/EfE
R-ZEZEN\F+-_A=+—H  ~EH
AT ReBITEEEMEEMEE
BreaEERRYREGEEEAR
FRIECREDERSHEEREE -
raeEREEERR  AEBEERED
EE—EANE  HEETEERE  #t
ZEENETHMESIERF  BREE
EEBBER I BNET - W AE
EeR&&EE AR ERESER 2]
UeEl &5 - R AIREFIEEL B
SREETE o Bt - RARESRA -
AEEZEERBE KERD -

nBEZFERBAR - RERITH
I RABRBREETREBETRIFE
ERHRZIRTT

R-ZBZN\F+-_A=+—8 "AAME
W AR S AR HEE BB UIRR23% (=
ETLF 1 20%) MAEEESER
BRAPHRAEUERROEREEE SR
WER R BFEI% (Z T +HF 1 6%) ©

REBEZNFHE D 2 EERBREZESEH
AR (EBRINREE - RZTTN
F+—F=+—8 DL EFEWE
H39%(ZZFZLF : 42%) X60% (=
EELF 1 58%)

25 Gy 2R AN [ o
B E )2 f

BEERBESRARSE  AREEER
HFEEERRTMZRE MRS EE
WIRF - AAAREEZEBREES MR
ERERENBTE - ARBIRKBERE
EREREFEL/IERBDESHR -

N-BELFR-BENF+-A

=t+—H AEEHTEHEEZEL
RHIH A30290H A °
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
34c. Fair value
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined as follows:

e the fair value of financial assets with standard terms and
conditions and traded in active liquid markets are determined
with reference to quoted market bid prices; and

e the fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices
from observable current market transactions and dealer
quotes for similar instruments.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.

34. @t T E (s
34c. A F1{E
TRHEENSHEE
IBETT :

NFEBAT R

o HHREFRRMGMH BRERT S
BEZERMEENTE 12ZE
MHEAREETE + &

e HihemMEENRSBRABAY
B BREERMZEERN
RAABHRITTERZERK
REERBUT A ZRE - 28
RREREDITEE

EERB RNRAMBRRLBIEK
AAEZeREERERABEREE

BENFERE
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35. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 35. fif B~ ElFFIE
Details of the Company's subsidiaries at 31 December 2007 and 2008 R-IEELER_ZBEENE+_A=+—
are as follows: H @ AABMERRFEOT
Proportion
of nominal
value of
issued capital
held by
Registered capital/  the Company
issued and fully and its
Place of paid ordinary  subsidiaries
incorporation share capital APAR
and operations Kind of HMER/ HKBAR Attributable
Name of company HREAK legal status EETRAR FisB R4 tothe Group  Principal activity
ARER e EEED EERA  RAEERS  AREEL  TEER
Shanghai Natural Beauty The PRC Foreign investment US$29,980,000 100% 100%  Production and sale of
Cosmetics Company A RE enterprise with %429,980,0007T skin care and beauty
Limited limited liability products
HEaRF R BEREAMARE EERFEERR
BRAR FREm
Shanghai Natural Beauty The PRC Limited liability RMB8,000,000 100% 100%  Wholesale and retail of
Sanlian Cosmetics A RE joint venture AR#8,000,0007T skin care and beauty
Company Limited enterprise products; provision of
HRERAEZM IR EREMAELE beauty treatments
BRAT HERTEEER
FREm '
e 3
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35. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 35. B A RlEEE @)

Proportion
of nominal
value of
issued capital
held by
Registered capital/  the Company
issued and fully and its
Place of paid ordinary  subsidiaries
incorporation share capital APAR
and operations Kind of FmEs/ HWBAT  Attributable
Name of company MR R legal status BETRSRE FiEB %47 tothe Group  Principal activity
ARER e EEHD EERE  REEERS  AREEG  EEXE
Shanghai Natural Beauty The PRC Limited liability RMB5,000,000 100% 100%  Wholesale and retail of
Qingbo Cosmetics leiN G joint venture ARES,000,0007 skin care and beauty
Company Limited enterprise products
HEBAERBRI R EREEAERE HERTERER
BRAT FRER
Shanghai Natural Beauty The PRC Limited liability RMB500,000 100% 100%  Sale of jewellery,
Fansi Jewellery leiNGE joint venture AERH500,0007 craftwork, adornment,
Company Limited enterprise leather and horologe
HEBAERERE EREERERE HERE  T8m-
BRAR Ehm - KERER
Xi An Natural Beauty The PRC Limited liability RMB3,000,000 100% 100%  Sale of skin care and
Mingyu Cosmetics AR joint venture AR¥3,000,0007T beauty products and
Company Limited enterprise related instruments;
ARBAZHA R EREFAELE provision of skin care
BREFAF and beauty consulting
HEREREDER
TIEBEEHE
REREEER
e
Qingdao Natural Beauty The PRC Limited liability RMB4,000,000 100% 100%  Sale of skin care and
Ornaments Company AR joint venture AR #4,000,0007 beauty products and
Limited enterprise adornment
BEEEREHRERLA EREFAERE HEEERER
EmRESm
Nanjing Natural Beauty The PRC Limited liability RMB2,000,000 100% 100%  Sale of cosmetic
Cosmetics Company AR joint venture AR#2,000,0007 products and provision
Limited enterprise of beauty treatments
ARAEAE(ER EREEAERE HEMMERR
BREART REERER
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35. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 35. B A RlEEE @)

Proportion
of nominal
value of
issued capital
held by
Registered capital/  the Company
issued and fully and its
Place of paid ordinary  subsidiaries
incorporation share capital APAR
and operations Kind of HRmEL/ HfIEAR Attributable
Name of company HMEILR legal status ERIRARE FiE%{T tothe Group  Principal activity
ARER e EEHD EBREx  REEERA  AKEEE  EEER
Chengdu Natural Beauty The PRC Limited liability RMB2,500,000 100% 100%  Sale of skin care and
Cosmetics Company AR joint venture AR2,500,0007T beauty products;
Limited enterprise provision of beauty
RBEAEER BEREFAELE treatments and skin
BRARF care and beauty
consulting and
training
HERBREAER
REXAEEAEE
DAREAE AR
Hainan Natural Beauty The PRC Limited liability RMB2,500,000 100% 100%  Sale of skin care and
Cosmetics Company LeliyN 3 joint venture AR#2,500,0007T beauty products;
Limited enterprise provision of beauty
BEAREIERERAT BEREAAEDRE treatments and beauty
consulting and
training
HERBREAER
RERAEIERN
ERFARSE
Shenzhen Natural Beauty The PRC Limited liability RMB4,000,000 90% 90%  Sale of cosmetic
Cosmetics Company eleiNGE joint venture AK#4,000,000T products and provision
Limited enterprise of beauty treatments
AT ERE R BREMAERE HEMMERR
-~ RitzEER
Haerbin Sanlian Natural The PRC Limited liability RMB1,000,000 100% 100%  Sale of cosmetic
Beauty Cosmetics AR joint venture AR#1,000,0007T products and provision
Company Limited enterprise of beauty treatments
BRREB=BEAE (R BREMAERE HEMMERR
AR RitzEER

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited Annual Report 2008
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35. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 35. B A RlEEE @)

Proportion
of nominal
value of
issued capital
held by
Registered capital/  the Company
issued and fully and its
Place of paid ordinary  subsidiaries
incorporation share capital APAR
and operations Kind of FmEs/ HWBAT  Attributable
Name of company MR R legal status BETRSRE FiEB %47 tothe Group  Principal activity
ARER e EEHD EERE  REEERS  AREEG  EEXE
Ningbo Hai Shu Natural The PRC Limited liability RMB3,500,000 100% 100%  Sale of cosmetic
Beauty Cosmetics P AR joint venture AR#3,500,0007T products and provision
Company Limited enterprise of beauty treatments
ERSEANAE R BREEAERE HEMMERR
BRAT RERER
Wuhan Natural Beauty The PRC Limited liability RMB2,500,000 100% 100%  Sale of cosmetic
Cutural Development P AR joint venture AR#2,500,0007T products and provision
Company Limited enterprise of beauty treatments
REAARALER BREMAERE HEMMERR
BRAF REAER
Tianjin Natural Beauty The PRC Limited liability RMB2,000,000 90% 90%  Sale of cosmetic
Cosmetics Company P AR joint venture AE#2,000,0007T products and provision
Limited enterprise of beauty treatments
REBREHER BREMAERE HEMMERR
BRAT REEAER
Wenzhou Natural Beauty The PRC Limited liability RMB2,000,000 100% 100%  Sale of cosmetic
Cosmetics Company PR AR joint venture AE#2,000,0007T products and provision
Limited enterprise of beauty treatments
RN B AFIEHES BREMAERE HEMMERR
BRAT RHEEAER
Beijing Natural Beauty The PRC Limited liability RMB20,000,000 100% 100%  Sale of cosmetic
Cosmetics Company P AR joint venture AR20,000,0007T products and provision
Limited enterprise of beauty treatments
EREREER BRELAERE HEMMERR
BRAT RHEAER
Kunshan Natural Beauty The PRC Limited liability RMB1,500,000 100% 100%  Sale of cosmetic
Sanlian Cosmetics PR AR joint venture AE®1,500,0007T products and provision
Company Limited enterprise of beauty treatments
BIBAZ=BMIR BREMAERE HEVMERR
BRAT RERER
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35. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 35. B A RlEEE @)

Proportion
of nominal
value of
issued capital
held by
Registered capital/  the Company
issued and fully and its
Place of paid ordinary  subsidiaries
incorporation share capital APAR
and operations Kind of FmEs/ HWBAT  Attributable
Name of company SERALR legal status ERTRAE Fi#B %7 tothe Group  Principal activity
ARER e EEHD EERE  REEERS  AREEG  ETEXE
Changchun Natural Beauty The PRC Limited liability RMB1,500,000 100% 100%  Sale of skin care and
Cosmetics Company P AR joint venture AR®1,500,0007T beauty products;
Limited enterprise provision of beauty
REBAE M EREAGERE treatments and skin
BRRA care and beauty
consulting
HERENEAER
RERER
MEEREAHA
Mudanjiang Natural Beauty ~ The PRC Limited liability RMB800,000 100% 100%  Sale of cosmetic
Cosmetics Company AR joint venture AR800,0007C products and provision
Limited enterprise of beauty treatments
HATTEAR R BRELAERE HEMMERR
BRAR REERER
Suzhou Natural Beauty The PRC Limited liability RMB1,200,000 100% 100%  Sale of skin care and
Cosmetics Company AR joint venture AR1,200,0007 beauty products and
Limited enterprise related instruments
BINBRE(HER BRELAERE HERERER
BRAT G RRESR M
Fuzhou Natural Beauty The PRC Limited liability RMB1,500,000 90% 90%  Wholesale and retail of
Cosmetics Company AR joint venture AR1,500,0007C skin care and beauty
Limited enterprise products and related
BMAREER BEREFAEDRE instruments; provision
BERA of skin care and beauty
consulting
HERTERER
FREMREH
B REEER
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35. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 35. B A RlEEE @)

Proportion

of nominal

value of

issued capital

held by

Registered capital/  the Company

issued and fully and its

Place of paid ordinary  subsidiaries

incorporation share capital APAR
and operations Kind of HRmEL/ HfEAR Attributable

Name of company HMEILR legal status ERIRARE FiE%{T tothe Group  Principal activity

ARER e EEHD EBREx  REEERA  AKEEE  EEER

Shanghai Natural Beauty Fu ~ The PRC Limited liability RMB500,000 100% 100%  Wholesale and retail of
Nong Cosmetics Company ~ F B A joint venture AR500,0007C skin care and beauty
Limited enterprise products

DEEARERIER BREEAERE HERTEEER
BRAF XPER

Shanghai Natural Beauty Fuli  The PRC Foreign investment US$1,408,000 100% 100%  Production and sale of
Cosmetics Company A BE enterprise with £4£1,408,0007C skin care and beauty
Limited (Formerly known limited liability products
as Shanghai Full-Beauty BEREMNELE FERHEEER
Cosmetics Company Limited) EAEM

HEEAEER R
BRAR (AIELE
ER(EMERRAR)

ERARENGE The PRC Limited liability RMB10,000,000 51% 51%  Sale of cosmetic products
REBRAA REARE joint venture AK#10,000,0007T and provision of beauty

enterprise treatments
BRELAERE HEMMERR
REERER

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Taiwan Limited liability NT$200,000,000 100% 100%  Production and sale of
Company Limited (Formerly ~ && company #15%200,000,0007T skin care and beauty
known as Natural Beauty BRELAT products
Cosmetics Company Limited) FERHEEER

BRFEMRBRHERAT FRER
(AIEE AR ERR Y
BRAR)

Tian Ran Mei Bio- Taiwan Limited liability NT$32,000,000 100% 100%  Production and sale of
Technology Company = company #5%32,000,0007T skin care and beauty
Limited BRELAT products

RRFEMRBRG EERHEEER
BRAT FRER
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35. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 35. B A REIE @
Proportion
of nominal
value of
issued capital
held by
Registered capital/  the Company
issued and fully and its
Place of paid ordinary  subsidiaries
incorporation share capital APAR
and operations Kind of HmEL/ HfIEAR Attributable
Name of company HMEILR legal status ERIRARE FiE 8T tothe Group  Principal activity
ARER e EEHD EERA  RAEERS  AREEG  ETEXR
Huei Yao Investment Taiwan Limited liability NT$122,043,420 100% 100%  Investment holding
Company Limited &g company #E%122,043,4207T RAER
B ERNERAT BREFAF
Beauty Essen Cosmetics Taiwan Limited liability NT$1,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of beauty
Company Limited ag company $15%1,000,0007 consulting and
FREBERAERAR BREAAHA training
REEAHA RIS
Ray-Sen Medical Cosmetics Taiwan Limited liability NT$50,000,000 %% 94%  Provision of beauty
Company Limited hiE company (2007: NT$3,000,000) consulting and
hABEEARREE BREFAR #4%50,000,0007T training
BRIV BRAR (Z2ZHE: REERHA NI
#613,000,0007T)
Belem Holdings Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Limited liability MYR68,609,858 100% 100%  Investment holding
ERFAD company (2007: MYR123,235,408) RERR
BREFAT Class B shares
MYR10,000
Class A shares
B S R
68,609,8587C
(2235
Y Gl
123,235,4087T)
AREREEH
10,0007T
Billion Synergy Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Limited liability MYR2 100% 100%  Wholesale of skin care
EXkh company SRATE2T and beauty products
BREEAR HEEERERER
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iR e B SRR ML

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE_ZTT)\FH+-A=+—HILFE

35. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name of company
DAER

Ice Crystal Management
Limited
KEEEBRAR

Great Glamour Company
Limited

Next Success International
Limited

Fortune Investment Global
Limited

Natural Beauty
Bio-Technology
(Hong Kong) Company
Limited
BAREENRE(FE)
BRAF

Natural Beauty
Bio-Technology
(Macao) Company
Limited

BAEEMRF(RM)
BRAT

Place of
incorporation
and operations
ERMRIR
"

British Virgin
Islands
("BVI")

KBARARES
([RBARR
#sl)

BVI

RREMREE

BVI
RERERES

BVI
RBRERES

Hong Kong
Bl

Macau
B

Kind of
legal status
EEED

Limited liability
company

BRELRA

Limited liability
company
BEREALH

Limited liability
company
BREFAA

Limited liability
company
BREMAT

Limited liability
company
BEREALH

Limited liability
company
BREFAR

35. B A RlEEE @)

Registered capital/
issued and fully

paid ordinary
share capital

EMER/
CRIRAR
BERE

US$52,000
F£52,0007

US$50,000
%£50,0007C

US$100
21007

US$50,000
%4:50,0007T

HK$10,000
710,007

MOP25,000
JBPIH25,0007T

Proportion
of nominal
value of
issued capital
held by

the Company
and its
subsidiaries
ERAR
HIWE AR
RN <)
BRAEELH

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Attributable
to the Group  Principal activity
rEEEE  FEER

100%  Investment holding
RAER

100%  Investment holding
RERR

100%  Investment holding
REER

100%  Investment holding
REZER

100%  Sale of cosmetic
products and provision
of beauty treatments

HEMMERR
REEAER

100%  Sale of cosmetic products
and provision of beauty
treatments

HEMMERR
REERER

BAXENNEBERLT —FT)\FER
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE_ZTT)\FH+-A=+—HILFE

35. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name of company
DRER

Natural Beauty China
Holding Limited

ERETEER
BRAR

Shanghai Natural Beauty
Bio-Med Company
Limited

HEERAEENES
BRRA

LBBREXREHR
BRAF

Spring Perfect Biomedical
Company Limited
BERREBRNBRAR

Anshan Natural Beauty
Cosmetics Company
Limited

BT B AF MM
BRAT

Place of
incorporation
and operations
ERMRIR
Rk

Hong Kong
Bl

The PRC
FEAE

The PRC
FEAE

Taiwan

Ik
AE

PRC
PEAE

Kind of
legal status
EEED

Limited liability
company

BREERA

Limited liability
company joint
venture enterprise

BREAAELE

Limited liability
company joint
venture enterprise

BREAAELE

Limited liability
company joint

venture enterprises

AREMAELE

Limited liability
joint venture
enterprise

BREAAELE

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited Annual Report 2008

35. B A RIFB @

Registered capital/
issued and fully

paid ordinary
share capital

EMER/
CRIRAR
BERE

HKS1
BT

US$2,600,000
%42,600,0007T

RMB6,000,000
AE#6,000,0007C

NT$16,500,000
#15%16,500,0007C

RMB1,000,000
AE#1,000,0007C

Proportion
of nominal
value of
issued capital
held by

the Company
and its
subsidiaries
ERAR
HIWE AR
RN <)
BRAEELH

100%
(Note i)
()

100%
(Note iii)
(Pt i)

100%
(Note i)
oz

100%
(Note i)
(F13E)

100%
(Note i)
(F3Eii)

Attributable
to the Group
FEEES

100%

100%

100%

94%

100%

Principal activity
TEXHK

Investment holding

REER

Manufacture and sale
of health supplement
HWERHERERD

Beauty consulting;
wholesale and retail of
skin care and beauty
products

EREH HER
TERENEDER

Provision of professional

medical care products
HEEXBREEER

Sale of skin care and
beauty products and
related instruments;
provision of skin
care and beauty
consulting

HEREREDER
RIBBEY « Rt
EERER®



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

irE M IEmR M T
For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-_TZ)\E+-_A=+—HLEE

35. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of
incorporation
and operations
Name of company ERMRIR
ARER e
Lanzhou Natural Beauty PRC
Cosmetics Company AR
Limited
EUERSS g
BERAE
Notes:

i

Registered capital/

issued and fully

paid ordinary

share capital

Kind of HRmEL/
legal status ERTRARE
EEED EBRE
Limited liability RMB1,000,000
joint venture AK#1,000,0007C

enterprise
BREEAERE

) The subsidiary was incorporated during the year ended 31 December 2008.

(i) The subsidiary was deregistered during the year ended 31 December 2008.

(i)~ The subsidiary was newly acquired on 20 August 2008.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities outstanding at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

35. B A RlEEE @)

Proportion
of nominal
value of
issued capital
held by
the Company
and its
subsidiaries
FRAR
HWEAR Attributable
FiE 8T tothe Group  Principal activity
RAEELS  ARBEE  TEEHR

90% 90%  Sale of cosmetic
(Note ii) products and
(i) provision of

beauty treatments
HEMMERR
REEAER

iy ZHBRARARBE_ZZNF+_A=+—
HIFFE ML -

(i) ZMBRANBE_TENEF+_A=+—
B ESFERUH M

(i) ZHBRAANR-_ZZENFNAZLTANE
Ao

RERSENEABE - BENBARSGE
AR R AR -
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Financial Summary

M5B

RESULTS

REVENUE
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
INCOME TAX EXPENSE
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
EQUITY HOLDERS OF

THE COMPANY
MINORITY INTERESTS

L'ON

BRBE AT R

FREHBX

AEEEF

Beth
RATRR

LEBRRERS

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

TOTAL ASSETS
TOTAL LIABILITIES

EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE
TO EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY

MINORITY INTERESTS

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited Annual Report 2008

HEE
HmaE

RARRER
FEfLfERS

DBRRER

e

NS

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—-HLHFE

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
—ETNF —ETREF —EEXRE —EELHF —EENFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FHET FHT FAT FAT FET
358,142 357,916 363,746 450,147 592,701
99,058 119,845 174,453 208,029 308,477
(36,333) (38,834) (51,641) (29,248) (69,898)
62,725 81,011 122,812 178,781 238,579
63,262 81,092 123,198 178,707 238,477
(537) (81) (386) 74 102
62,725 81,011 122,812 178,781 238,579
EEMEBIE
At 31 December
R+=—A=+—-8

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
—EETNF —EERHEF —EEXRE —EELHF —EENFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FHET FHT FAET FAT FET
900,231 937,470 997,660 1,032,314 1,026,226
(95,600) (117,173) (118,489) (116,663) (169,819)
804,631 820,297 879,171 915,651 856,407
794,969 813,511 878,739 909,626 849,960
9,662 6,786 432 6,025 6,447
804,631 820,297 879,171 915,651 856,407




Notice of Annual General Meeting

IRRBFAS RS

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the annual general meeting (“AGM") of
Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited (the “Company”) will be held at
3:00 p.m. on 5 June 2009 (Friday) at Alexandra Room, Mandarin Oriental
Hong Kong, 5 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong, for the purpose of
transacting the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive and consider the Audited Financial Statements and the
Directors’ Report and the Independent Auditor’s Report for the year
ended 31 December 2008.

2. To re-elect Dr. Su Sh Hsyu as executive director of the Company.

3. To re-elect Mr. Yeh Liang Fei as independent non-executive director of
the Company.

4. To re-elect Mr. Chen Ching as independent non-executive director of
the Company.

5. To re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the Auditor and
authorise the Board of Directors (the “Board”) to fix its remuneration.

6. To authorise the Board to fix the directors’ remuneration.

7. To declare a final dividend of HK$0.0335 per share for the year ended 31
December 2008.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass the following
resolutions (with or without modification) as ordinary resolutions:

8. "THAT:

(@) subject to paragraph (c) below, the exercise by the directors of the
Company during the Relevant Period (as defined below) of all the
powers of the Company to issue, allot and deal with additional
shares, to issue warrants to subscribe for shares and to make offers or
agreements or grant options which would or might require shares to
be issued and allotted, be and is hereby generally and unconditionally
approved;

BESENAXEMMRBERAB (AR ) ER

REZZBTZNAFAARLR(EHE) TF=RIERE
BRPRTHBRSRBEEERTBERELR
BREOIBRRBFARS([RRBFAE])  UEE
e

BREA

I AEREEBE-TE\F+-A=+-AL
FEZEERABRE EFEREERBY
BHEDREE -

2. BERHEBE LI ARRRNTES -

3. BEREREBAE/ARFFIIFNTES -

4. BEHBEERARRELIFNTES -

5. MEREEE « BRI SRTENTT AR - AR
rEEe((EF2g ) ETHEME -

6. BEEESETESZHM -

7. EREE_ZENF+-_A=+—BIEFEZ
R EARE ) &A% 0.0335/8 7T ©

SRl
EARRIEE  EEWHERB NIRER(THR
BEER]) RERRER

8. [Eh& -

(@) ETXOBBRRT  —REEBGEAIER
REAEENABENEERE R TONTTHRE
RRR—HIRES PABEAT - BLBE IR IRRRSD
fetn - TR R 2 RAHERE - PAK
R AT SR HS S RATREREIT R
BRI 2 SR K AR

BAXENNEBERLT —TT)\FFR
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(b)

BRAFRGRE

the approval in paragraph (a) above shall authorise the directors of the
Company to make offers or agreements or grant options or warrants
during the Relevant Period (as defined below) which would or might
require shares to be issued and allotted either during or after the end
of the Relevant Period (as defined below);

the aggregate nominal amount of shares allotted or agreed
conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted by the directors of the
Company pursuant to the approval in paragraphs (a) and (b) above,
otherwise than pursuant to (i) a rights issue; (ii) the exercise of the
subscription rights under warrants issued otherwise than pursuant
to this Resolution; (iii) the exercise of the subscription rights under
the share option scheme of the Company; and (iv) any scrip dividend
or similar arrangement providing for allotment of shares in lieu of
the whole or part of a dividend on the shares of the Company; shall
not exceed 20% of the aggregate nominal amount of the existing
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of passing of this
Resolution and the said approval shall be limited accordingly; and

for the purposes of this Resolution:

"Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this
Resolution until whichever is the earlier of:

(i) the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the
Company following the passing of this Resolution; or

(i) the passing of an ordinary resolution by shareholders in a general
meeting revoking or varying the authority given to the directors of
the Company by this Resolution.”

9. "THAT:

(a

(b)

the exercise by the directors of the Company during the Relevant
Period (as defined below) of all the powers of the Company to
repurchase its own shares subject to paragraph (b) below and in
accordance with all applicable laws, be and is hereby generally and
unconditionally approved;

the aggregate nominal amount of shares of the Company which
may be repurchased by the Company pursuant to the approval in
paragraph (a) above during the Relevant Period (as defined below)
shall not exceed 10% of the aggregate nominal amount of the
existing issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this
Resolution, and the said approval shall be limited accordingly; and

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited Annual Report 2008
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RRBFAgBE

(c) for the purpose of this Resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this
Resolution until whichever is the earlier of:

(i) the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the
Company following the passing of this Resolution; or

(i) the passing of an ordinary resolution by shareholders in a general
meeting revoking or varying the authority given to the directors of
the Company by this Resolution.”

10. “THAT conditional upon Resolutions 8 and 9 above being passed (with

or without amendments), the general mandate referred to in Resolution

8 above be and is hereby extended by the addition to the aggregate
nominal amount of the share capital of the Company which may be
allotted or agreed to be allotted by the directors of the Company pursuant
to such general mandate of an amount representing the aggregate
nominal amount of shares repurchased by the Company pursuant to the
general mandate referred to in Resolution 9 above provided that such
amount shall not exceed 10% of the aggregate nominal amount of the
existing issued share capital of the Company as at the date of the passing
of this Resolution.”

. As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass with or without

amendments, the following resolution as a special resolution:

11(A) “THAT the memorandum of association of the Company be and is
hereby amended in the following manner:

(a) Clause 6
By deleting the following words:

“The share capital of the Company is HK$390,000.00 divided into
3,900,000 shares of a nominal or par value of HK$0.10 each with
power for the Company insofar as is permitted by law,”

from the first three lines of the clause and replacing with the
following words:

“The share capital of the Company is HK$400,000,000.00 divided
into 4,000,000,000 shares of a nominal or par value of HK$0.1
each with power for the Company insofar as is permitted by

"

law, "

(0 MARFRME :

[BRAHIRE e BB A REREE TIIME
hERFHHA R B

() BBARBRRZARATERRE
FREHER &

(i) BRPBRAE LBBEBRERK
HHEFRENRBRETARAE
F2HESN -

10. [BRESF EXFESRIOTAATEBR(TH

11.

BIERT) » A L ESIEAR R R AT — MR
W FABRARRESRE Fil— AR
AR ENFARREE 2 AATRANBEE
A AR RIRE E X EERE R —
MEER L 2 RHLEE - EZEESHA
REBARRERE BAARIRA B BITRAE
HEZ10% ° |

ERFRIEE  ZELBIBEEB TIIRESR
(TRBBER]) RIFRIRZES

1 [BBA T T RET AR A ZBBER
PN

BRI T HE =17 2580 ¢

[ 7K~ &) & 7K £ 390,000.0078 7T © 9
/53,900,000 &R EE0.10/8 70,2 %
- BARBIEEEATZEBATE
-

WA TSIFEAER
[ KA &I A400,000,000.0058 7T
% /4,000,000,000% & f E1E0.178

2B - BARRBEERAFZIE
TNERE -
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BRAFRGRE

118) “THAT the existing articles of association of the Company be and are

hereby amended in the following manner:

(a) Article 2

By adding the new entries in the following form to Article 2:

"business day

“Company'’s Website

"Corporate Communication

“electronic

“business day” shall mean any day
on which the Exchange is open for
business of dealing in securities;

“Company’'s Website” shall mean
the website of the Company, the

address or domain name of which
has been notified to members;”

“Corporate Communication” shall
mean any document issued or to
be issued by the Company for the
information or action of holders of
any of its securities, including but
not limited to: (a) the directors’
report, its annual accounts
together with a copy of the
auditor’s report, where applicable,
its summary financial report; (b)
the interim report and, where
applicable, its summary interim
report; (c) a notice of meeting; (d)
a listing document; (e) a circular;
and (f) a proxy form, within the
meaning ascribed thereto under
the Listing Rules;”

“electronic” shall have the
meaning given to it in the
Electronic Transactions Law;"”

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited Annual Report 2008
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BERBFRE

=

“electronic means “electronic means” includes
sending or otherwise making

available to the intended recipients
of the communication in electronic

format;”
“Electronic Signature “Electronic Signature” shall mean
an electronic symbol or process
attached to or logically associated
with an electronic communication
and executed or adopted by a
person with the intent to sign the
electronic communication;”

“Electronic Transactions Law  “Electronic Transactions Law”
means the Electronic Transactions

Law (2003 Revision) of the Cayman

Islands and any amendment
thereto or re-enactments
thereof for the time being in
force and includes every other
law incorporated therewith or
substituted therefor;”

“Non-application of section 8 of the Electronic

section 8 of Transactions Law shall not apply;”.

the Electronic
Transactions Law

Article 3

By deleting the following sentence from Article 3:

"The capital of the Company at the date of the adoption of
these Articles is HK$390,000.00 divided into 3,900,000 shares of
HK$0.10 each.”

and replacing with the following sentence:

“The capital of the Company at the date of the adoption of these

Articles is HK$400,000,000.00 divided into 4,000,000,000 shares
of HK$0.10 each.”.

[E77: [EFAAEEBE
FE AT A B X S ER
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0
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Fﬁ% S E BRI E
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BERBFRE

(0

Article 6(a)
By deleting the following words

", and that any holder of shares of the class present in person or
by proxy or, in the case of a member being corporation, by its duly
authorized representative may demand a poll”

in Article 6(a).

Article 74(a)

By deleting the following words from Article 74(a):

“An annual general meeting and any extraordinary general
meeting called for the passing of a special resolution shall be
called by not less than 21 days’ notice in writing and any other
extraordinary general meeting shall be called by not less than 14
days’ notice in writing. The notice shall be exclusive of the day
on which it is served or deemed to be served and of the day for
which it is given...”

and replacing with the following words:

“An annual general meeting (whether for the passing of a special
resolution and/or an ordinary resolution) shall be called by not
less than 20 business days’ notice or 21 days’ notice (whichever
is longer) in writing at the least, and any extraordinary general
meeting called for the passing of a special resolution shall be
called by 21 days’ notice in writing at the least and any other
extraordinary general meeting shall be called by not less than 10
business days’ notice or 14 days’ notice (whichever is longer) in
writing at the least. Subject to the requirements of the Listing
Rules, the notice shall be exclusive of the day on which it is served
or deemed to be served and of the day for which it is given...”

Article 74(c)

By deleting the words in the fourth line of Article

74(c).

“,onapoll,”
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(f)

Article 81

By deleting Article 81 in its entirety and replacing with the
following new paragraph:
“Poll 81. Atany general meeting a
resolution put to the vote at the
meeting shall be decided on a
poll.”.

Article 82(a) and (b)

By deleting Article 82(a) and (b) in their entirety and replacing
with the following new sentence:

“Manner of Poll 82. A poll shall be taken in such
manner (including the use of ballot
or voting papers or tickets) as the
Chairman directs.”.

Article 83

By deleting the Article 83 in its entirety and replacing with the
following paragraph:

"Question of 83. Any question of adjournment shall
adjournment be decided at the meeting and
without adjournment.”.
Article 84

By deleting Article 84 in its entirety and replacing with the
following new paragraph:
“Chairman to have 84. In the case of an equality of votes,
casting vote the Chairman of the meeting shall
be entitled to a second or casting

vote.”.
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() Article 85

By deleting the word “A” at the beginning of Article 85 and
replacing it with “Subject to the Listing Rules, a”.

(k) Article 86

By deleting Article 86 in its entirety and replacing with the
following new paragraph:

“Votes of Members 86. Subject to any special rights,
privileges or restrictions as to voting
for the time being attached to any
class or classes of shares, at any
general meeting, every member
present in person (or, in the case of
a member being a corporation, by
its duly authorised representative)
or by proxy shall have one vote for
each share registered in his name
in the register. A member entitled
to more than one vote need not use
all his votes or cast all the votes
he uses in the same way. For the
avoidance of doubt, where more
than one proxy is appointed by a
recognised clearing house or its
nominee(s), each proxy is under no
obligation to cast all his votes in
the same way.".
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BERBFRE

(I) Article 89

By deleting Article 89 in its entirety and replacing with the
following new paragraph:
“Votes of members of  89. A member in respect of whom
unsound mind an order has been made by any
competent court or official on

the grounds that he is or may be
suffering from mental disorder or is
otherwise incapable of managing
his affairs may vote by any person
authorized in such circumstances

to do so by proxy.”.

(m) Article 91

By deleting Article 91 in its entirety and replacing with the
following new paragraph:
“Proxies 91.  Any member of the Company
entitled to attend and vote at a
meeting of the Company shall

be entitled to appoint another
person (who must be an individual)
as his proxy to attend and vote
instead of him and a proxy so
appointed shall have the same
right as the member to speak at
the meeting. Votes may be given
either personally or by proxy. A
proxy need not be a member of
the Company. A member (whether
or not a recognized clearing
house) may appoint any number
of proxies to attend in his stead at
any one general meeting (or at any
one class meeting).”.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting
RRBFAgBE

(n) Article 93

By deleting Article 93 in its entirety and replacing with the
following new paragraph:

“Delivery of authority
for appointment of

93. The instrument appointing a proxy
and (if required by the Board)
proxy the power of attorney or other
authority, (if any) under which it
is signed, or a notarially certified
copy of such power or authority,
shall be delivered at the registered
office of the Company (or at such
other place as may be specified
in the notice convening the
meeting or in any notice of any
adjournment or, in either case, in
any document sent therewith) not
less than 48 hours before the time
appointed for holding the meeting
or adjourned meeting at which the
person named in the instrument
proposes to vote, and in default
the instrument of proxy shall
not be treated as valid provided
always that the Chairman of the
meeting may at his discretion
direct that an instrument of proxy
shall be deemed to have been duly
deposited upon receipt of telex
or cable or facsimile confirmation
from the appointor that the
instrument of proxy duly signed
is in the course of transmission
to the Company. No instrument
appointing a proxy shall be valid
after the expiration of 12 months
from the date named in it as the
date of its execution. Delivery of
any instrument appointing a proxy
shall not preclude a member from
attending and voting in person at
the meeting and, in such event,
the instrument appointing a proxy
shall be deemed to be revoked.”.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting
RRBFAgBE

(0) Article 95 (0) HHAEEIRMMBIEE 951K

By deleting Article 95 in its entirety and replacing with the
following new paragraph:

" Authority under 95. The instrument appointing a proxy
Instrument to vote at a general meeting shall:
Appointing Proxy (a) be deemed to confer authority
to vote on any amendment of a
resolution put to the meeting for
which it is given as the proxy thinks
fit; and (b) unless the contrary is
stated therein, be valid as well for
any adjournment of the meeting as
for the meeting to which it relates,
provided that the meeting was
originally held within 12 months

from such date.”.

(p) Article 97(b)

By deleting Article 97(b) in its entirety and replacing with the
following new paragraph:

“If a recognised clearing house (or its nominees) is a member

of the Company it may, by resolution of its directors or other
governing body or by power of attorney, authorise such person or
persons as it thinks fit to act as its representative(s) or proxy(ies) at
any general meeting of the Company or any general meeting of
any class of members of the Company provided that, if more than
one person is so authorised, the authorisation or proxy form shall
specify the number and class of shares in respect of which each
such person is so authorised. A person so authorised pursuant

to this provision will be deemed to have been duly authorised
without the need for producing any documents of title, notarised
authorisation and/or further evidence for substantiating the facts
that it is duly authorised and will be entitled to exercise the same
rights and powers on behalf of the recognised clearing house

(or its nominees) which he represents as that recognized clearing
house (or its nominees) could exercise as if it were an individual
member of the Company holding the number and class of shares
specified in such authorisation.”
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

BRAFRGRE

(g) Article 168(a)

By deleting Article 168(a) in its entirety and replacing with the

following new paragraph:

“Services of notices or 168.(a) Except as otherwise provided

documents

in these Articles, any Corporate
Communication may be served

by the Company and any notices
may be served by the Board on
any member either personally or
by sending it through the post in
a prepaid letter addressed to such
member at his registered address
as appearing in the register or, to
the extent permitted by the Listing
Rules and all applicable laws and
regulations, by electronic means
by transmitting it to any electronic
number or address or website
supplied by the member to the
Company or by placing it on the
Company’s Website provided that
the Company has obtained either
(a) the member’s prior express
positive confirmation in writing

or (b) the member’s deemed
consent, in the manner specified
in the Listing Rules to receive or
otherwise have made available

to him notices and documents

to be given or issued to him by
the Company by such electronic
means, or (in the case of notice)
by advertisement published in

the manner prescribed under the
Listing Rules. In the case of joint
holders of a share, all notices shall
be given to that holder for the time
being whose name stands first in
the register and notice so given
shall be sufficient notice to all the
joint holders.”.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting
RRBFAgBE

(N Article 169 () ABEIRMBIE 1695

s RS TR ARRE 1602
WA TFUFTEEIA

By deleting Article 169 in its entirety and replacing with the
following new paragraph:

“Members out of 169. A member shall be entitled to [EBEIN 169 REAENTHEF

Hong Kong have notice served on him at any B B ER G E -
address within Hong Kong. Any ERRERBI L
member who has not given an mMRAETHZ AR
express positive confirmation or AR RRERT
a deemed confirmation to the FAR S R AR A 1

Company in the manner specified
in the Listing Rules to receive or
otherwise have made available
to him notices and documents to
be given or issued to him by the
Company by electronic means
and whose registered address is
outside Hong Kong may notify
the Company in writing of an
address in Hong Kong which

for the purpose of service of
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have received any notice which
shall have been displayed at the
registered office of the Company
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and shall have remained there for RIRERTBER
the space of 24 hours and such A RN# 18 7= B &

notice shall be deemed to have
been received by such member on
the day following that on which it
shall have been first so displayed,
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provided that, without prejudice ERBRMEILEARRA
to the other provisions of these AIEHABEEARD
Articles, nothing in this Article 169 BIRNEHAR AR
shall be construed as prohibiting ek H A X F 5
the Company from sending, or fift tb 41k 7E 2538 LA SN
entitling the Company not to send, BRI o | o

notices or other documents of the
Company to any member whose
registered address is outside Hong
Kong.”.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting
RRBFAgBE

(s) Article 170

By deleting Article 170 in its entirety and replacing with the
following new paragraph:

“When Corporate 170.(a)
Communication

Any notice or document
sent by post shall be
deemed to be served deemed to have been served
on the day following that

on which it is put into a post
office situated within Hong
Kong and in proving such
service it shall be sufficient to
prove that the envelope or
wrapper containing the notice
or document was properly
prepaid, addressed and put
into such post office and a
certificate in writing signed by
the Secretary or other person
appointed by the Board that
the envelope or wrapper
containing the notice or
document was so addressed
and put into such post office
shall be conclusive evidence
thereof.

(b) Any notice or other document
delivered or left at a registered
address otherwise than by post
shall be deemed to have been
served or delivered on the day
it was so delivered or left.

(c) Any notice served by
advertisement shall be deemed
to have been served on the day
of issue of official publication
and/or newspaper(s) in which
the advertisement is published
(or on the first day of issue
if the publication and/or
newspaper(s) are published on
different dates).

162 Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited Annual Report 2008

(s) HBEERAMAE1700%

EEMRASEIZAMBIE 7062

I LA T B3

N=FNC
BB
REEX

ORI

170.(a)

—~
s>

(0)

EAIBE T
B B
PRI HIR BRR
AEBENTBE
DEPERE
mEREE 5
B 1S
et mHHED
MW  EE
0 41 36 ¢ A B
B BRAES
BRAS S
B - M
EREFGE(
2 E A AL RE
BEWBE N
P2 fEa s
HEDEZ
LRABBTE
2y EEEE
6 R

ERAHIBE
FERE it 2
EHEM TR
B RREH R
BEHEHAX
o ERERRSN o

EAE SR
FHZBERS
BELERZ T
Wk, SHHmE L
TEZRBAZE
(Fz T K&
S RIBRE 2 KR
BETE - RIA
TEEHERRAHE
HHE) -



Notice of Annual General Meeting
RRBFAgBE

(d) Any notice given by electronic
means as provided herein
shall be deemed to have been
served and delivered on the
day following that on which
it is successfully transmitted
or at such later time as may
be prescribed by the Listing
Rules or any applicable laws or
regulations.”.

(t) Article 174

By deleting Article 174 in its entirety and replacing with the
following new paragraph:

“How notice to 174. The signature to any notice to be
be signed given by the Company may be
written or printed by means of
facsimile or, where relevant, by
Electronic Signature.”.

1(C) “THAT the new restated and consolidated memorandum and articles
of association of the Company, consolidating all of the proposed
amendments referred to in paragraphs 11(A) and 11(B) above and all
previous amendments made in compliance with the Listing Rules and
applicable laws, a copy of which has been produced to this meeting
and marked “A” and initialled by the chairman of this meeting for the
purpose of identification, be and are hereby adopted with immediate
effect in replacement of the existing memorandum and articles of
association of the Company.”.

By order of the Board
Dr. Tsai Yen Yu
Chairman

Hong Kong
23 April 2009
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Notice of Annual General Meeting
RRBFAgBE

Notes:

1. A member of the Company who is a holder of two or more Shares, and who is

entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and

vote in his stead. A proxy need not be a member of the Company. Completion

and return of the form of proxy will not preclude a member of the Company from

attending the AGM and vote in person. In such event, his form of proxy will be
deemed to have been revoked.

2. Aform of proxy for the AGM is enclosed. In order to be valid, the form of proxy
together with the power of attorney or other authority, if any, under which it is

signed, or a notarially certified copy of such power or authority, must be deposited

at the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Hong Kong Registrars

Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 48 hours before the time for holding the AGM

or any adjournment thereof.

3. With regard to Resolutions 8 and 10 above, the Directors wish to state that they

have no immediate plans to issue any new shares of the Company pursuant to the

general mandate granted under Resolution 8 above.

As at the date of this notice, the Executive Directors of the Company are Dr.

Tsai Yen Yu, Mr. Lee Ming Ta, Dr. Su Chien Cheng and Dr. Su Sh Hsyu. The

Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company are Mr. Yeh Liang Fei,

Mrs. Chen Shieh Shu Chen and Mr. Chen Ching.
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